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SECTION I – GENERAL 

 

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

 

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when reading the 

information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this Letter of Offer is intended for 

the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive. 

 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined and abbreviations expanded below shall have the same 

meaning as stated in this chapter. References to statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines and policies will be deemed to 

include all amendments, modifications or re-enactment notified thereto. In this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise 

indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to ‘the/our Company’, ‘we’, ‘our’, ‘us’ or similar terms are 

to Emerald Leisures Limited as the context requires, and references to ‘you’ are to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in 

this Rights Issue of Equity Shares. 

 

The words and expressions used in this Letter of Offer, but not defined herein, shall have the same meaning (to the 

extent applicable) ascribed to such terms under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013, the SCRA, the 

Depositories Act, and the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in sections/ 

chapters titled “Industry Overview”, “Statement of Special Tax Benefits, Financial Information “Outstanding 

Litigation and Material Developments” and “Terms of issue” on pages 60,56, 47,78,92, and 103 respectively, shall, 

unless indicated otherwise, have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the respective sections/ chapters. 

 

General Terms  

 

Term Description 

“Company”, “our 

Company”, “the 

Company”, “the Issuer”, 

“Emerald” or 

“ELL”, or “Club” “we”, 

“us”, or “our” 

Emerald Leisures Limited, a public limited company incorporated under Companies Act, 

1956 having its registered office at, Club Emerald Sports Complex, Plot No. 366/15, 

Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 071, 

India. 

 

Company Related Terms  

 

Term Description 

 Articles / Articles of 

Association/ AoA 

Articles / Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time. 

Audit Committee  The Board of Directors of our Company constituted audit committee in accordance with 

Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended and Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Audited Financial 

Statements  

The audited financial statements of our Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2024 which comprises of the standalone balance sheet as at June 31, 2024, the statement 

of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the cash flow statement, the 

statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, and notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. For details, see “Financial Information” on page 78.  

Auditor / Statutory 

Auditor 

The current statutory auditor of our Company, being, M/s. P.G. Bhagwat LLP, Chartered 

Accountants having their office at Suite 101-102, Orchard, Dr. Pai Marg, Baner, Pune, 

Maharashtra – 411 045, India 

Board / Board of 

Directors 

Board of directors of our Company. For details of the Board of Directors, see “Our 

Management and Organisational Structure” on page 73. 

Chief Executive 

Officer/ CEO 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta, the Chief Executive Officer of our Company. 

Chief Financial Officer 

/ CFO 

Rajesh Motilal Loya, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. 

Company Secretary 

and Compliance 

Officer 

Mr. Kapil M. Purohit is the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our 

Company.  
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Term Description 

Equity Shareholder A holder of Equity Shares of our Company. 

Equity Shares Equity shares of our Company of face value of ₹5 each. 

Executive Directors Executive directors of our Company. 

Independent 

Director(s) 

The independent director(s) of our Company as per section 2(47) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and as described in the 

chapter “Our Management” on page 73 of the Letter of Offer. 

Key Managerial 

Personnel / KMP 

Key managerial personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations as described in the subsection titled “Our Management – Key 

Managerial Personnel” on page 73.  

Limited Reviewed 

Unaudited Standalone 

Financial Results / 

Limited Reviewed 

Unaudited Financial 

Results  

The limited reviewed unaudited financial results of our Company for the three months 

ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 33 of 

SEBI Listing Regulations, including the notes thereto. For details, see “Financial 

Information” on page 78. 

Materiality Policy  A policy adopted by our Company, in the Board meeting held on May 18, 2024 for 

identification of material litigation(s) for the purpose of disclosure of the same in this Letter 

of Offer. 

Memorandum of 

Association/ MoA 

Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time. 

 

Non-executive 

Directors 

Non-executive Directors of our Company. 

Promoter(s) The Promoters of our Company namely Jaydeep Vinod Mehta, Nikhil Vinod Mehta, 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta.  

Promoter Group Individuals and entities forming part of the promoter and promoter group in accordance 

with Regulation 2(1)(pp) SEBI ICDR Regulations and which are disclosed by the 

Company to Stock Exchanges from time to time.  

Registered Office The registered office of our Company located at Club Emerald Sports Complex, Plot No. 

366/15, Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 

400 071, India. 

Registrar of Companies 

/ RoC 

Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra situated at 100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra – 400 002, India.  

Rights Issue 

Committee 

The Committee of our Board constituted through the board resolution dated February 14, 

2024  

Shareholders / Equity 

Shareholders 

The Equity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time. 

 

Issue Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

Abridged Letter of 

Offer / ALOF 

Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect to the 

Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies 

Act.  

Additional Rights 

Equity Shares / 

Additional Equity 

Shares  

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the Rights 

Entitlement.  

 

Allot / Allotment / 

Allotted 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to 

the Issue.  

Allotment Account  The account opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue, into which amounts blocked by 

Application Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to 

successful Applicants will be transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with Section 

40(3) of the Companies Act. 

Allotment Account 

Bank 

Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue and 

with whom the Allotment Accounts will be opened, in this case being, Axis Bank Limited. 

Allotment Advice  Note, advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Applicant who has been 

or is to be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue. 

Allotment Date  Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue.  
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Term Description 

Allottee(s) Person(s) who are Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Allotment.  

Applicant(s) / 

Investor(s) 

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and / or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to make an 

application for the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of this Letter of 

Offer.  

Application  Application made through submission of the Common Application Form or plain paper 

Application to the Designated Branch(es) of the SCSBs or online / electronic application 

through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA 

process, to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares at the Issue Price. 

Application Form / 

Common Application 

Form 

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online application 

form available for submission of application through the website of the SCSBs (if made 

available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process) used by an Investor to make an 

application for the Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in the Issue. 

Application Money  Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the Issue 

at the Issue Price. 

Application Supported 

by Blocked Amount / 

ASBA 

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by ASBA Applicants to make an 

Application authorizing the SCSB to block the amount payable on application in the 

ASBA Account maintained with such SCSB.  

ASBA Account Account maintained with a SCSB and as specified in the Common Application Form or 

plain paper application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the 

Common Application Form or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity 

Shareholders, as the case may be.  

ASBA Circulars Collectively, the SEBI circular bearing reference number 

SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, the SEBI circular 

bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011 and any other 

circular issued by SEBI in this regard and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued 

by SEBI in this regard.  

Banker to the Issue Collectively, the Allotment Bank and the Refund Bank to the Issue, in this case being 

Axis Bank Limited. 

Banker to the Issue 

Agreement 

Agreement dated September 9, 2024 entered into by and among our Company, the 

Registrar to the Issue, and the Banker to the Issue for receipt of the Application Money. 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful applicants in 

the Issue and which is described in “Terms of the Issue” on page 103 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

Controlling Branches / 

Controlling Branches of 

the SCSBs 

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and the 

Stock Exchange, a list of which is available on 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes, updated from 

time to time or at such other website(s) as may be prescribed by the SEBI from time to 

time. 

Demographic 

Details 

Details of Investors including the Investor’s address, name of the Investor’s 

father/husband, investor status, occupation and bank account details, where applicable. 

Designated SCSB 

Branches 

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form submitted by 

ASBA Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=3

5, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from 

time to time. 

Designated Stock 

Exchange 

BSE Limited 

Depository(ies) NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as amended 

from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996. 

Draft Letter of Offer / 

DLOF 

The draft letter of offer dated June 10, 2024, prepared in accordance with SEBI ICDR 

Regulations and filed with the Stock Exchange, for its observations and in-principle 

approval.  

Equity Shareholder(s) / 

Shareholder(s) 

The holders of Equity Shares of our Company. 

Eligible Equity 

Shareholder(s)/ Eligible 

Shareholder(s)  

Existing Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024. 

Please note that the investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude certain overseas 

shareholders. For further details, see “Notice to Investors” on page 11. 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35


 

 

 

6  

Term Description 

Financial Statements/ 

Financial Information 

Collectively, the Audited Standalone Financial Statements and the Limited Reviewed 

Unaudited Financial Results, unless otherwise specified in context thereof. 

Issue / Rights Issue Issue of up to 1,00,12,400* Rights Equity Shares for cash at a price of ₹ 12.50 per Rights 

Equity Share (including a share premium of ₹ 7.50 per Rights Equity Share) aggregating 

up to ₹ 1,251.55 lakhs* on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our 

Company in the ratio of 2 (Two) Rights Equity Share for every 1 (One) fully paid-up 

Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders on the Record Date i.e. Tuesday, 

September 10, 2024. 
*Assuming full subscription 

Issue Closing Date  Tuesday, September 24, 2024 

Issue Material/ Issue 

Materials 

Collectively, the Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, 

the Common Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter, any other issue material 

relating to the Issue. 

Issue Opening Date  Tuesday, September 17, 2024 

Issue Period  The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both 

days, during which Applicants / Investors can submit their Applications, in accordance 

with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

Issue Price  ₹ 12.50 per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of ₹7.50 per Rights Equity Share) 

Issue Proceeds  The gross proceeds raised through the Issue 

Issue Size  Amount aggregating up to ₹ 1,251.55 lakhs* 
*Assuming full subscription 

Letter of Offer / LOF The final letter of offer dated September 9, 2024 to be filed with the Stock Exchange and 

with SEBI. 

Multiple Application 

Forms 

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder / Renouncee in 

respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However 

supplementary applications in relation to further Equity Shares with / without using 

additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated as multiple application. 

Net Proceeds Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For details, see “Objects of the Issue” on 

page 47.  

Non-Institutional 

Bidders / NIIs 

An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer as 

defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

Off Market 

Renunciation 

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring them 

through off market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with the SEBI 

Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time to time, and 

other applicable laws. 

On Market 

Renunciation 

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them over 

the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through a registered stock broker 

in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Stock 

Exchange, from time to time, and other applicable laws, on or before Wednesday, 

September 18, 2024. 

QIBs / Qualified 

Institutional Buyers  

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. 

Record Date  Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eligible to apply 

for Rights Equity Shares, being Tuesday, September 10, 2024.  

Refund Bank The Banker to the Issue with whom the Refund Account will be opened, in this case being 

Axis Bank Limited. 

Registrar to the Issue / 

Registrar 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

Registrar Agreement  Agreement dated May 17, 2024, entered into among our Company and the Registrar in 

relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining to 

the Issue.  

Renouncee(s)  Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders on renunciation either through On Market Renunciation or through Off 

Market Renunciation in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights 

Issue Circular, the Companies Act and any other applicable law. 

Renunciation Period The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights Entitlements 

which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date i.e. Tuesday, September 17, 2024. 

Such period shall close on Tuesday, September 24, 2024, in case of On Market 
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Term Description 

Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation 

through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements 

are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing Date 

i.e. Tuesday, September 24, 2024.  

Retail Individual 

Bidders(s) / Retail 

Individual Investor(s) / 

RII(s) / RIB(s) 

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through karta) who has applied for 

Rights Equity Shares and whose Application Money is not more than ₹200,000 in the 

Issue as defined under Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

Rights Entitlements / 

REs  

Number of the Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to in 

proportion to the number of the Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholder on 

the Record Date, in this case being Tuesday, September 10, 2024, in this case being 

2(Two) Rights Equity Shares for every 1(One) Equity Share held by an Eligible Equity 

Shareholder. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue 

Circulars, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialised form in respective 

demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date. 

Rights Entitlement 

Letter 

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.  

Rights Equity Shares/ 

Rights Shares 

Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue, on fully paid-up basis 

on Allotment. 

SEBI Rights Issue 

Circulars 

SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated 

January 22, 2020 read with SEBI circular bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022 read with 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD- 2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023 and any other circular or 

notifications subsequently issued by SEBI in this regard. 

Self-Certified Syndicate 

Banks / SCSBs 

Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which offers the facility of ASBA. A 

list of all SCSBs is available on 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes, updated from 

time to time or at or such other website(s) as maybe prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

Stock Exchange Stock exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being BSE Limited.  

Transfer Date  The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will be 

transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful Applications, upon 

finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock 

Exchange. 

Wilful Defaulter or a 

Fraudulent Borrower 

An entity or person categorised as a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower by any bank 

or financial institution or consortium thereof, in terms of Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations and in accordance with the master circular on wilful defaulters issued 

by RBI.  

Working Day In terms of Regulation 2(1) (mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day means all 

days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Further, in respect of 

Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public 

holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore, the 

time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock 

Exchange, working day means all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays 

and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI. 

 

Business and Industry related Terms or Abbreviations 

 

Term Description 

ADRs American Depository Receipts  

B2B Business to Business  

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

Covid-19 Coronavirus Disease 2019  

FITs Free Independent Traveler  

FHRAI The Federation of Hotel & Restaurant Associations of India  

FOB Free On Board 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
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Term Description 

GVA Gross Value Added 

H2 FY 2022 Second half of the year 

IBEF Indian Brand Equity Foundation  

IMF International Monetary Fund 

INR Indian Rupee (₹)  

MICE Meeting, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions 

PRASHAD scheme  Pilgrimage Rejuvenation and Spiritual Augmentation Drive Scheme 

SAATHI scheme System for Assessment, Awareness & Training for Hospitality Industry Scheme  

SARS-CoV-2 Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus 2 

USA/US United States of America  

USD/ US$ US Dollar 

UTs Union Territories  

 

Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations 

 

Term Description 

₹/ Rs./ Rupees/ INR Indian Rupees 

A/c Account 

AGM Annual general meeting 

AIF(s) Alternative Investment Fund, as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012 

AY Assessment Year  

AS Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

BSE BSE Limited 

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

CARO Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

CEO Chief Executive Officer  

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CIN Corporate Identification Number 

CLRA Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970. 

Companies Act, 2013 / 

Companies Act  

Companies Act, 2013 along with rules made thereunder.  

Companies Act 1956 Companies Act, 1956, and the rules thereunder (without reference to the provisions 

thereof that have ceased to have effect upon the notification of the Notified Sections). 

COVID-19 The novel coronavirus disease which was declared as a Public Health Emergency of 

International Concern on January 30, 2020, and a pandemic on March 11, 2020 by the 

World Health Organization 

CTS Cheque Truncation System 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

Depository(ies) A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996.  

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996 

DIN Director Identification Number 

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identification Number 

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting 

EPF Act Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

EPS Earnings per share 

ESI Act Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident (Bank) account established in accordance with the FEMA 

FEMA The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations thereunder 

FEMA Rules The Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt instruments) Rules, 2019 

Financial Year/ Fiscal The period of 12 months commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar 

year and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year. 

FPIs A foreign portfolio investor who has been registered pursuant to the SEBI FPI 

Regulations, provided that any FII who holds a valid certificate of registration shall be 
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Term Description 

deemed to be an FPI until the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been 

paid as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) 

Regulations, 1995 

Fugitive Economic 

Offender 

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the 

Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investors (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000) registered with SEBI 

FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 

2000 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GoI / Government The Government of India 

GST Goods and Services Tax 

HUF(s) Hindu Undivided Family(ies) 

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

IFSC Indian Financial System Code 

Income Tax Act / IT 

Act 

Income Tax Act, 1961 

Ind AS The Indian Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended 

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 

Insider Trading 

Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, as amended 

Insolvency Code Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended 

INR or ₹ or Rs. or 

Indian Rupees 

Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India. 

ISIN International Securities Identification Number 

IT Information Technology 

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax 

MCA The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, GoI 

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition 

NACH National Automated Clearing House which is a consolidated system of ECS. 

Mn /mn Million 

Mutual Funds Mutual funds registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 

N.A. or NA Not Applicable 

NAV Net Asset Value 

Notified Sections The sections of the Companies Act, 2013 that have been notified by the MCA and are 

currently in effect. 

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

OCB A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to 

the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less than 60% 

of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was in 

existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date was eligible to undertake 

transactions pursuant to general permission granted to OCBs under FEMA. OCBs are not 

allowed to invest in the Issue. 

p.a. Per annum 

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio 

PAN Permanent account number 

PAT Profit after Tax 

RTGS  Real Time Gross Settlement 

SCORES SEBI Complaints Redress System 

Payment of Bonus Act Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

Payment of Gratuity 

Act 

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
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Term Description 

RBI The Reserve Bank of India 

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended 

Regulation S Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

SCRA Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 of 1933, as amended 

SCRR The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 as amended 

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act 

SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 

2012, as amended 

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, 

as amended 

SEBI ICDR 

Regulations 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended 

SEBI Listing 

Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

SEBI Takeover 

Regulations 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended 

SEBI VCF Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996 

Securities Act The United States Securities Act of 1933. 

STT Securities Transaction Tax 

State Government The government of a state in India 

Trademarks Act Trademarks Act, 1999 

TDS Tax deducted at source 

US$/ USD/ US Dollar United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America 

USA/ U.S./ US / United 

States 

United States of America 

U.S. GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America 

VAT Value Added Tax 

VCFs Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012, as the case 

may be 

w.e.f. With effect from 

Year/Calendar Year Unless context otherwise requires, shall refer to the twelve-month period ending 

December 31 of a particular year 
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS 

 

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter 

any other issue material relating to the Issue (collectively “Issue Materials”) and the issue of Rights Entitlement and 

Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing 

in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Issue Material may come are required to inform themselves 

about and observe such restrictions. For details, refer to “Restrictions on Foreign Ownership of Indian Securities” on 

page 133. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Issue Materials will be sent/ dispatched by email/ courier only to the 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our 

Company. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of 

Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-

mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their email address, then the Abridged 

Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue materials will be physically 

dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. Those overseas Shareholders, who 

do not update our records with their Indian address or the address of their duly authorised representative in India, prior 

to the date on which we propose to e-mail or send a physical copy of this Letter of offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, 

the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form and other applicable Issue materials, shall not be sent this Letter of 

Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter the Application Form and other applicable Issue 

materials. 

 

Investors can also access this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the websites 

of our Company, the Registrar and the Stock Exchange. 

 

Our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue Materials. 

 

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that 

purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, 

and the Issue Materials or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, 

in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. 

Receipt of the Issue Materials will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such 

an offer and, in those circumstances, the Issue Materials must be treated as sent for information purposes only and 

should not be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. 

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Issue Materials should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights 

Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Issue Materials to any person outside India where to do 

so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If the Issue Materials is received by any person in 

any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the 

Rights Entitlements referred to in the Issue Materials.  

 

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in the 

Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to acquire the 

Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in his 

jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat 

any Common Application Form as invalid where they believe that Common Application Form is incomplete or 

acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements and we shall not be 

bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Common Application 

Form.  

 

Neither the delivery of the Issue Materials nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication 

that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the 

information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Letter of Offer or the date of such 

information. 

 

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX OR 

INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE FOREIGN, 

STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE OFFER RIGHTS OF 

EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD 

CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, 

BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES. IN 
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ADDITION, OUR COMPANY IS NOT MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR 

PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE 

EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR 

REGULATIONS. 

 

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES 

 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE 

REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED 

STATES AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA OR THE 

TERRITORIES OR POSSESSIONS THEREOF (“UNITED STATES”), EXCEPT IN A TRANSACTION NOT 

SUBJECT TO, OR EXEMPT FROM, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND 

APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES 

IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS 

EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION 

THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT. 

THERE IS NO INTENTION TO REGISTER ANY PORTION OF THE ISSUE OR ANY OF THE SECURITIES 

DESCRIBED HEREIN IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF SECURITIES IN 

THE UNITED STATES. ACCORDINGLY, THE ISSUE MATERIALS SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR 

TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.  

 

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person, 

or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf has reason to 

believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights 

Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any 

other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares 

Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address for registration of these Equity 

Shares in India.  

 

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States. 

 

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR 

COMPANY OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED, 

REDISTRIBUTED OR PASSED ON, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR 

PUBLISHED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY PURPOSE. 
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION 

 

Certain Conventions 

 

All references to “India” contained in this Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions 

and all references herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “GoI”, Central Government” or the “State 

Government” are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable. Unless otherwise specified or the context 

otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the ‘US’ or ‘U.S.’ or the ‘United States’ are to the United 

States of America and its territories and possessions. 

 

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time (“IST”). Unless 

indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year. 

 

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable. 

 

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this Letter of 

Offer. 

 

Financial Data 

 

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this Letter of 

Offer has been derived from our Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the Limited 

Reviewed Unaudited Financial Results for the three months period ended June 30, 2024. For details, please see 

“Financial Information” on page 78.  

 

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references 

to a particular financial year, unless stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that 

year.  

 

We have prepared our annual Audited Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS and Unaudited Standalone 

Results in accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34 prescribed under the Section 

133 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations. Our Company publishes its financial 

statements in Indian Rupees. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial 

disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly, be limited. 

 

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to 

rounding off, and unless otherwise specified, all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Unless 

stated otherwise, throughout this Letter of Offer, all figures have been expressed in lakhs. 

 

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of the 

financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those differences or 

quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult your own 

advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial 

information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s 

level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with these accounting principles and regulations on our financial 

disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. For further information, see “Financial 

Information” on page 78. 

 

Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded off 

adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals. However, 

where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to other than two 

decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off to such number of 

decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain 

numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain 

tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to 

rounding off. 
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Currency and Units of Presentation 

 

All references to: 

 

• “Rupees” or “₹” or “INR” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India; 

 

• “USD” or “US$” or “$” are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America; and  

 

• “Euro” or “€” are to Euros, the official currency of the European Union. 

 

Exchange Rates  

 

The following tables provides information with respect to the exchange rate for the Indian rupee per unit of a foreign 

currency. The exchange rates are based on the reference rates released by the Financial Benchmarks India Private 

Limited. No representation is made that any rupee amounts could have been, or could be, converted into such foreign 

currency at any particular rate, the rates stated below, or at all.  

 

Currency Exchange rate as on 

June 30, 2024* March 31, 2024*      March 31, 2023 

1 USD 83.45 83.37 82.22 

1 Euro 89.25 90.22 89.61 
(Source: www.fbil.org.in) 
*Wherever the exchange rate was not available on account of a holiday, the exchange rate as of the immediately preceding working day has been provided. 

 

Industry and Market Data 

 

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from publicly 

available information as well as industry publications and sources. We have taken extracts from the report titled ‘FHRAI 

Hotel Industry Survey 2023”and “Tourism and Hospitality Industry, May 2024” issued by the Federation of Hotel and 

Restaurant Associations of India (“FHRAI”) and India Brand Equity Foundation (“IBEF”), respectively.  

 

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from publicly 

available documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed 

and their reliability cannot be assured. Although we believe the industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer is 

reliable, it has not been independently verified by us. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us 

for the purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be comparable. Such data involves risks, 

uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in 

“Risk Factors- Industry information included in this Letter of Offer has been derived from publicly available sources. 

There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry information is complete or 

accurate and neither has our company independently verified the same. Further, despite our efforts to follow up with 

IBEF and FRHAI, we are yet to receive consent for the inclusion of data from their reports.” on page 33. Accordingly, 

investment decisions should not be based solely on such information. Further, despite our efforts to follow up with IBEF 

and FRHAI, we are yet to receive consent for the inclusion of data from their reports. 

 

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the reader’s 

familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data 

gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies and 

assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. 

  

http://www.fbil.org.in/
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FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 

This Letter of Offer contains certain “forward-looking statements”. Forward looking statements appear throughout this 

Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and 

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” and “Industry Overview”. 

Forward-looking statements include statements concerning our Company’s plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future 

events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to 

acquisitions, our Company’s competitive strengths and weaknesses, our Company’s business strategy and the trends 

our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and legal environment, and geographical locations, in which 

our Company operates, and other information that is not historical information. These forward-looking statements 

generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “continue”, “can”, “could”, 

“expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”, “plan”, “potential”, “project”, “pursue”, “shall”, “seek to”, 

“will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”, “forecast”, “target”, or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, 

statements that describe the strategies, objectives, plans or goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements. 

However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. 

 

All statements regarding our Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and 

prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our Company’s 

business strategy, planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating 

projections or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this Letter of Offer that are not historical facts. 

These forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party), 

are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause the 

actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future results, 

performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections. 

 

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or uncertainties 

associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry in 

which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our 

growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets, technological changes, our exposure to market 

risks, general economic and political conditions in India and globally which have an impact on our business activities 

or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, 

foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and 

globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important 

factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company’s expectations include, but are not limited 

to, the following: 

 

• trends in the Indian hospitability industry; 

• increased competition in the hotel sector with no assurance that new or existing competitors, hotels and homestays 

aggregators will not significantly expand or improve facilities in the markets in which we operate 

• performance of the industries in which our clients operate; 

• performance of our key clients and our relationship with our intermediaries; 

• adverse effect of competition on our market share and profits; 

• changes in technology and our ability to manage any disruption or failure of our technology systems; 

• our ability to: 

- manage our growth effectively; 

- manage our credit risk; 

- hire and retain senior management personnel and other skilled manpower; 

- manage cost of compliance with labor laws or other regulatory developments; 

- manage our operating costs; 

- manage natural disasters; 

- successfully implement our business strategies and expansion plans; 

- maintain effective internal controls; 

• inability to renew the license/ lease period or amend the terms and conditions of the license/ lease under which our 

club is maintained.  

• adverse developments affecting hotels or key geographies or regions from which we realize a large portion of our 

revenue; 

• changes in general, political, social and economic conditions in India and elsewhere; 

• general levels of GDP growth, and growth in employment and personal disposable income; and 

• economic uncertainties, fiscal crises or instability in India.  
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For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations, see 

“Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of 

Operations” beginning on pages 19, 67 and 82, respectively. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only 

estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses 

could materially differ from those that have been estimated. 

 

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. 

Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and 

not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance. 

 

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Letter of Offer and are not 

a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on the management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in 

turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-

looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-

looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, 

the Syndicate Member(s) nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any obligation to update or otherwise 

revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying 

events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material 

developments from the date of this Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading permission from 

the Stock Exchange. 

 

  



 

 

 

17  

SUMMARY OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER 

 

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified 

by the more detailed information appearing in this Letter of Offer, including the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “The 

Issue”, “Capital Structure”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Our Business”, “Industry Overview”, “Outstanding Litigation and 

Material Developments” and “Terms of the Issue” on pages 19, 39, 45,47, 67, 60, 92 and 103 respectively.  

 

Summary of Primary Business  

 

We are an integrated hospitality company engaged in the business of providing club, banquet halls and accommodation 

services. We operate our Club under the name ‘Club Emerald’ which is located at Swastik Park, Chembur, Mumbai. 

Our Club, banquet halls and rooms are located in a single business premises enabling us to recognize ourselves as a 

‘full-service provider’ in hospitality space offering services to various sections of society from middle-class segment to 

the upper-class segment. The strategic location of our Club also provides an added advantage of offering ‘Business cum 

Leisure’ services to corporate customers for conducting conferences, meetings, exhibitions etc. Our Club’s premises 

are spread across approx. 5,977 sq mtrs plot of land.  

 

For more details, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Business” on page 67. 

 

Objects of the Issue  

 

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table: 
           (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  Amount 

Repayment, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings (including interest 

thereon) availed by our Company; and 

950.00 

General Corporate Purposes  264.63 

Total Net Proceeds 1,214.63 
 

For further details, please see chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 47.  

 

Our Promoter 

 

The Promoter of our Company are Jaydeep Vinod Mehta, Nikhil Vinod Mehta, Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan 

Jashwant Mehta.  

 

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group 

 

Other than Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta, we have been informed by our Promoters vide their 

letters each dated February 28, 2024, their intention to fully subscribe to their entitlements arising out of the proposed 

Rights Issue. Additionally, Jaydeep Vinod Mehta, vide his letter dated February 28, 2024 has undertaken to fully 

subscribe to any under subscribed portion of this Issue. Further, we have been informed by Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 

and Chetan Jashwant Mehta that they may or may not fully subscribe to their entitlements arising out of the proposed 

Rights Issue and may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement in favour of third parties whom they may 

identify in due course or may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement in the open market. Therefore, the 

minimum subscription criteria (of at least 90% of the Issue) as provided in proviso to Regulation 86(1) of the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations is applicable to this Issue. Pursuant to regulation 86(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations in case of 

non-receipt of minimum subscription, all application monies received shall be refunded to the Applicants forthwith, but 

not later than four days from the closure of the Rights Issue. 

 

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters, over and above its Rights Entitlements shall not result in a 

change of control of the management of our Company and shall be in compliance with the SEBI SAST Regulations. 

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with 

the minimum public shareholding requirements under the Applicable Law. 

 

Note: Our Promoter Group does not hold any Equity Shares in our Company  
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Summary of Outstanding Litigation  

 

A summary of the pending tax proceedings and other material litigations involving our Company and our Subsidiaries 

is provided below:  

 

a) Litigations involving our Company 

 

i) Cases filed against our Company: 

 

Nature of Litigation  Number of matters outstanding  Amount involved (₹)* 

Criminal matters  1 - 

Direct Tax matters  Nil            Nil 

Indirect Tax matters  Nil Nil 

Actions taken by regulatory authorities  Nil Nil 

Material civil litigations 2 - 

*Amount not quantifiable   

 

ii) Cases filed by our Company: 

 

Nature of Litigation  Number of matters outstanding  Amount involved (₹)* 

Criminal matters  Nil - 

Direct Tax matters  Nil            Nil 

Indirect Tax matters  Nil Nil 

Actions taken by regulatory authorities  Nil Nil 

Material civil litigations  1 - 

*Amount not quantifiable 

 

b) Litigations involving our Subsidiaries 

 

Our Company does not have any subsidiary as on date of the filing of this Letter of Offer. 

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on 

page 92 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Risk Factors  

 

Please see the chapter titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 19. 

 

Summary of Contingent Liabilities  

 

For details regarding contingent liabilities, please see “Financial Information -Contingent Liabilities” beginning on 

page 78. 

 

Summary of Related Party Transactions  

 

For details of our related party transactions please refer “Financial Information- Related Party Transactions- Note 

28” on page F-46. 

 

Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash 

 

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other than cash.  

 

Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year 

 

Our Company has not carried out any corporate action to split or consolidate its equity shares in the last one year.  
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS 

 

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information in this 

Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the Equity Shares. 

In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and the terms of the 

Issue including the merits and risks involved. The risks described below are not the only ones relevant to us, our Equity 

Shares, the industry or the segment in which we operate. Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us 

or that we currently deem immaterial may arise or may become material in the future and may also impair our business, 

results of operations and financial condition. 

 

If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur, 

our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could be adversely affected, the trading price of 

our Equity Shares could decline, and as prospective investors, you may lose all or part of your investment. You should 

consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about particular consequences to you of an investment in this Issue. This 

Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties. 

Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of 

certain factors, including the considerations described below and, in the section titled “Forward-Looking Statements” 

on page 13.  

 

To obtain a complete understanding, you should read this section in conjunction with the sections “Industry Overview”, 

“Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” on 

pages60, 60 and 79, respectively.  

 

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or 

other implications of any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context requires otherwise, the financial 

information of our Company has been derived from the Financial Information, prepared in accordance with IND AS 

and the Companies Act, 2013 and audited in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  
 

Materiality:  

 

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered 

for determining the materiality of Risk Factors: 
 

• Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively; 

 

• Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and  

 

• Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future.  

 

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable have been disclosed in the risk 

factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence, the same 

has not been disclosed in such risk factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading 

and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk over another.  

 

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due to rounding 

off.  

 

In this section, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to Emerald Leisures 

Limited. 

 

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding.  

 

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

 

BUSINESS RELATED RISKS 

 
1. Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta, our Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director and Chetan Jashwant Mehta are the 

promoters of our Company and have not provided any information or confirmations required under the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations in relation to themselves or their intention to subscribe to the Issue. Further, the draft letter of offer dated 

June 10, 2024 has not been signed by Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta, our Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.   
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Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta, our Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and Chetan Jashwant Mehta are the Promoters of 

our Company. Our Company had sought information, confirmations and undertakings from them in respect of themselves as 

well as their intention of subscribing to the Issue.  

 

We neither received the requested information nor confirmations from Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant 

Mehta. Our Company has not been able to obtain any information or confirmation from the above named due to internal 

disagreements.  Further, Chetan Jashwant Mehta filed a complaint with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, under 

Section 206(4) of the Companies Act 2013, against our Company on April 29, 2023, pursuant to which our Company 

has received notices from the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai seeking clarification for the same. The Complainant 

states that the Company has committed illegalities during the course of administration of the Company including acts 

of fabrication and fraud committed by certain directors of the Company with malafide intentions. However our 

Company has categorically denied all such allegations made by the Complainant stating them to be false and fabricated. 

The last response was submitted by our Company on October 27, 2023 to the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, refuting 

the same after which there has been no further correspondence. The matter remains pending as on date of the Draft 

Letter of Offer.  

 

Our  Company  has  disclosed  information  and  confirmations  in  this Letter of Offer  in relation  to  Jashwant Bhaichand 

Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta  required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations as Director and Promoters only  to  the  extent  

available to our Company, maintained by us in our records and  accessible  from  the  publicly  available information     

published     on:     (i)     the     Ministry     of     Corporate     Affairs’     website     (accessible     

athttps://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/home.html); (ii) the “Credit Information Bureau (India) Limited” website 

(accessible at http://www.cibil.com/); (iii) the BSE’s website (accessible at https://www.bseindia.com/investors/debent.aspx);   

and (iv)   the   “Watchout   Investors”   website   (accessible   at https://www.watchoutinvestors.com/). Based on the 

aforementioned searches, our Company confirms that neither Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta or Chetan Jashwant Mehta, are 

debarred from accessing the capital markets by SEBI and neither of them are wiful defaulters or fraudulent borrowers.  

 

Further since we did not receive any confirmation from Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta regarding 

their intention to subscribe to the Issue, criteria for minimum subscription as per SEBI ICDR Regulations is applicable to this 

Issue. For further details, please refer “General Information- Minimum Subscription” on page 44. In addition, the draft letter 

of offer dated June 10, 2024 has not being signed by Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta, our Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director.  

 

In light of the above, we cannot assure you that all relevant and/or complete disclosures pertaining to Jashwant Bhaichand 

Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta are included in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

2. We rely heavily on our quality of services at our Club. Any dilution of our brand reputation or failure of our quality 

control systems could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.  

 

We operate our business under the brand ‘Club Emerald Sports Complex’, which is focused on catering to guests in the 

upper-midscale, midscale and economy club/ hotel segments. Our brand and reputation are among our most important 

assets which helps in attracting guests to our services. Developing awareness of our brand, through focused and 

consistent branding and marketing initiatives is important to increase our revenues, grow our existing market share and 

expand into new markets. The performance and quality of services offered at Emerald are critical to the success of our 

business. These factors depend significantly on the effectiveness of our quality control systems and standard operating 

procedures, which in turn, depend on the skills and experience of our personnel, the quality of our training programme, 

and our ability to ensure that such personnel adhere to our policies and guidelines. The head of department of each 

department conducts regular internal meetings with the staffs for review and training purposes. However, any decrease 

in the quality of services rendered by us including due to reasons beyond our control, or allegations of defects, even 

when false, could tarnish the image of our brand, result in negative reviews and feedback from our guests on online 

travel portals and may cause guests to choose the services of our competitors. 

 

We are also dependent on third party service providers for providing some of the services on need basis to our guests 

and members such as spa and gymnasium and any failure or deficiency on the part of such service providers may 

adversely effect our reputation and brand perception. Any adverse development or decline in quality involving our 

brands may impair our reputation, dilute the impact of our branding and marketing initiatives and adversely affect our 

business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

3. Our Company has incurred losses in the recent past and we may incur losses in the future. 

 

Our Company has incurred losses in the recent past, the details of which are provided below: 

            

https://www.watchoutinvestors.com/


 

 

 

21  

(Amount in lakhs) 

Particulars Three months 

period ended June 

30, 2024 

Three months 

period ended June 

30, 2023 

Year ended March 

31, 2024 

Year ended March 

31, 2023 

Profit/ (Loss) 

incurred  

(278.51) (231.73) (973.16) (996.99) 

 

There can be no assurance that we will not incur losses in any future periods, or that there will not be an adverse effect 

on our reputation or business as a result of such losses. Such losses incurred by us may be perceived adversely by 

external parties such as customers, bankers, and suppliers, which could affect our reputation. For further details, refer 

to the chapter titled “Financial Information” on page 78. 

 

4. Our Company has reported negative cash flow in the past. Any negative cash flows in the future would adversely 

affect our cash flow requirements, which may adversely affect our ability to operate our business and implement our 

growth plans, thereby affecting our financial condition. 

 

Our Company has experienced negative net cash flow from operating and financing activities in the recent past, the 

details of which are provided below: 

            (Amount in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023 

Net cash generated from operating activities 557.59  (360.92) 

Net cash flow from financing activities (590.22) 315.58  

 

Negative cash flow from operating activities for year ended March 31, 2023 is mainly on account of discharge of current 

liabilities. Negative cash flow from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2024 is primarily due to repayment 

of long-term borrowings and interest cost.  

 

For further details, refer “Financial Information” on page 78 of the chapter titled ‘Financial Information’. 

 

5. There are certain criminal and other outstanding legal proceedings against the Company which may adversely affect 

our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company is involved in certain legal proceedings. These legal proceedings 

are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts and tribunals. The amounts claimed in these 

proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include amounts claimed jointly and/or severally from 

us and/or other parties, as the case may be. We cannot assure you that these legal proceedings will be decided in favour 

of our Company or that no further liability will arise out of these proceedings. We may incur significant expenses in 

such legal proceedings and we may have to make provisions in our financial statements, which could increase our 

expenses and liabilities. Any adverse decision may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial 

condition.  

 

A summary of the pending tax proceedings and other material litigations involving our Company is provided below:  

 

Litigations involving our Company 

 

iii) Cases filed against our Company: 

 

Nature of Litigation  Number of matters outstanding  Amount involved (₹)* 

Criminal matters  1 - 

Direct Tax matters  Nil            Nil 

Indirect Tax matters  Nil Nil 

Actions taken by regulatory authorities  Nil Nil 

Material civil litigations 2 - 

*Amount not quantifiable   

 

iv) Cases filed by our Company: 
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Nature of Litigation  Number of matters outstanding  Amount involved (₹)* 

Criminal matters  Nil - 

Direct Tax matters  Nil            Nil 

Indirect Tax matters  Nil Nil 

Actions taken by regulatory authorities  Nil Nil 

Material civil litigations  1 - 

*Amount not quantifiable 

 

Litigations involving Subsidiaries  

 

Our Company does not have any subsidiary as on date of the filing of this Letter of Offer. 

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 

92. 

 

6. Our Company has obtained, unsecured loans from the related parties and others which may be recalled at any time. 

Any recall of the unsecured loans obtained by our Company may have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, 

financial condition and results of operations. 

 

Our Company has obtained unsecured loans, from related parties and others, some or all of which may be recalled on 

demand. As on August 31, 2024, our Company has outstanding unsecured loans of ₹ 7,047.99 lakhs. If the unsecured 

loans obtained by our Company are recalled at any time, the financial condition and results of operations of our 

Company may be adversely affected. 

 

7. A substantial portion of the Net Proceeds will be utilized for repayment of certain loans availed by our Company. 

 

Our Company intends to deploy ₹ 950.00 lakhs towards repayment of certain borrowings availed by our Company, as 

indicated in the section titled “Objects of the Offer” on page 47. The scheduled repayment of the loans is subject to 

various factors including: (i) cost of the borrowing to our Company including applicable interest rates, (ii) any 

conditions attached to the borrowings restricting our ability to prepay or repay the borrowings and time taken to fulfil, 

or obtain waivers for fulfilment of such conditions, (iii) receipt of consents for prepayment from the respective lenders, 

as applicable (iv) terms and conditions of such consents and waivers, (v) levy of any prepayment penalties and the 

quantum thereof, (vi) receipt of requisite approvals in accordance with applicable laws, (vii) provisions of any laws, 

rules and regulations governing such borrowings, and (viii) other commercial considerations including, among others, 

the amount of the loan outstanding and the remaining tenor of the loan. Accordingly, the Net Proceeds will not be 

available for any capital expenditure or creation of tangible assets by our Company. 

 

8. Our business is subject to seasonal and cyclical variations that could result in fluctuations in our results of 

operations. 

 

Although our Emerald’s club segment is not adversely affected due to seasonality as memberships of the guests are for 

a long period of time spanning from 5 to 20 years, but our sales volume of the hotel segment of Emerald experiences 

slight seasonal fluctuations during the period of June to October. The hotel and hospitality industry in India is subject 

to seasonal variations. Seasonality affects leisure travel and the MICE sector (meetings, incentives, conferences and 

events) including weddings. The winter months are preferred for travel in India, for leisure, MICE events, management 

or business travel and more recently for weddings. The combination of changes in economic conditions and in the 

supply of hotel rooms, including periods of excess supply, can result in significant volatility in results for owners and 

managers of hotel properties. The costs of running a hotel tend to be more fixed than variable. As a result, in an 

environment of declining revenues the rate of decline in profits can be higher than the rate of decline in revenues. As a 

result of such seasonal fluctuations, our room rates, sales and results of operations of a given half of the financial year 

may not be reliable indicators of the sales or results of operations of the other half of the financial year or of our future 

performance. 

 

For example, we may experience a decrease in business for rooms in during the monsoon season in the months of June 

to October. Operating costs, which remain relatively constant, have a disproportionately greater negative effect on 

operating results during periods with lower restaurant turnover. 

 

9. Our lenders have charge over our assets in respect of loans that have been availed by us. 
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We have provided security in respect of loans / facilities availed by us from banks and financial institutions by creating 

a charge over our immovable property. The total amounts outstanding and payable by us as secured loans were 

₹1,567.45 lakhs as on August 31, 2024. In the event we default in repayment of the loans / facilities availed by us and 

any interest thereof, our assets may be subject to forfeiture by lenders, which in turn could have significant adverse 

effect on business, financial condition or results of operations. 

 

10. Any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be subject to certain compliance requirements, including 

prior shareholder’s approval. 

 

We propose to utilize the Net Proceeds to repay, in full or in part, identified unsecured loan and long-term working 

capital requirement. For further details of the proposed objects of the Issue, please refer chapter titled “Objects of the 

Issue” beginning on page 47. In case of any exigencies arising out of business conditions, economic conditions, 

competition, or other factors beyond our control which adversely affect our business, we may require to use the Net 

Proceeds to meet any other expenditure which cannot be determined with certainty as on the date of this Letter of Offer. 

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, we cannot undertake any variation in the 

utilization of the Net Proceeds or in the terms of any contract as disclosed in Letter of Offer without obtaining the 

shareholders’ approval through a special resolution. In the event of any such circumstances requiring us to undertake 

variation in the utilization of the Net Proceeds disclosed in Letter of Offer, we cannot assure that we will be able to 

obtain the shareholders’ approval in a timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability in obtaining such shareholders’ 

approval may adversely affect our business.  

 

In light of these factors, we may not be able to undertake variation of objects of the Issue to use any unutilized proceeds 

of the Issue, if any, or vary the terms of any contract referred to in the Letter of Offer, even if such variation is in the 

interest of our Company. This may restrict our Company’s ability to respond to any change in our business or financial 

condition by re-deploying the unutilized portion of Net Proceeds, if any, which may adversely affect our business and 

results of operations. 

 

11. Our financing agreements contain certain restrictive covenants which may affect our financial and operational 

flexibility. In the event of breach of any covenants in our financing agreements, our lenders may take any action in 

connection with such breaches which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation, 

financial condition and prospects. 

 

There are restrictive covenants in agreements we typically enter into with certain banks and financial institutions for 

short-term loans and long-term borrowings. These restrictive covenants require us to seek the prior permission of these 

banks/financial institutions for various activities, including, amongst others, formulation of any scheme for merger, 

amalgamation or re-organization, capital restructuring by way of share capital in or lending expenditure or advancing 

to or placing of deposits with any other concern (excluding normal trade credit or security deposit in the routine courses 

of business or advances to employees), making any change in their management set-up, declaring, paying or making 

any dividend or other distribution and incurring any other financial indebtedness. Accordingly we have intimated Aditya 

Birla Finance Limited, from whom we have secured loan facilities, regarding the proposed Issue vide our letter dated 

April 11, 2024 and subsequent email correspondences. We are currently awaiting ‘no objection’ in relation to the 

proposed Issue and expect to receive the same prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus. The restrictive covenants 

may also adversely affect our ability to conduct our business and have a material adverse effect on our financial 

condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

 

12. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future, which may 

potentially involve conflicts of interest with the equity shareholders. 

 

We have in the past entered into transactions with some of our Promoters, Promoter Group Directors, and enterprises 

over which our Directors have a significant influence. While all such transactions have been conducted on an arm’s 

length basis, we cannot assure you that we might have obtained more favourable terms had such transactions been 

entered into with unrelated parties. Further, it is likely that we may enter into related party transactions in the future. 

There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will always be in the best interests of 

our minority shareholders and will not have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, 

and cash flows. In the event any conflict of interest arises between us, or to the extent that competing products offered 

by any of our related parties erode our market share, we may not be able to effectively manage any such conflict or 

competitive pressures and, consequently, our business, results of operation and financial condition may be adversely 

affected. For further information on related party transaction, see “Financial Information- Related Party Transactions- 

Note 28” on page F-46.  
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13. Customer’s taste and preference may change and they may not prefer our services in the future which may adversely 

affect demand for our services. Further, an inability to maintain our competitive position in the hospitality industry, 

and failure to adapt our service offerings to changing market trends and consumer tastes, preferences and spending 

habits could cause our engagements with the clients to decline and may adversely affect our business, prospects and 

future financial performance. 

 

We compete in a highly competitive industry where the success of our business depends on customer behavior and 

preferences and their affinity and loyalty to the services offered by us. Our future growth and success will depend 

significantly on our ability to anticipate changes in market trends and customer tastes and preferences, and then to 

identify, source and bring to the market in a timely manner new or unique services that satisfy the preferences of a broad 

range of customers. In the event of a significant change in customer preferences or in the event of an inability on our 

part to anticipate or react to such changes, it could result in reduced demand for our services and erosion of our 

competitive position and goodwill and could adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial 

condition. 

 

In addition, we compete with aggressive marketing and promotional activities by other private clubs, hotels and 

banquets on price and promotional discounts announced from time to time. Other clubs and hotels in the market typically 

match the pricing of our services. However, if the competitors alter their pricing model, and we are unable to change 

our product prices in response to such competitive measures, our results of operations and profitability may be materially 

and adversely affected. 

 

14. Our business is heavily dependent on our suppliers. 

 

As we are engaged in the business of operating a hotel cum club which has 4 restaurants and 6 banquet halls, we are to 

a large extent dependent on our suppliers for the supply of raw materials namely vegetables, fruits, grocery, beverages 

and other items. We procure vegetables and fruits from various suppliers on annual rate contract basis and other items 

based on availability of desired quality and quantity and urgency of need from wholesale markets as per prevailing 

market rates. We are required to rely heavily on a few suppliers and the quality of products supplied by them. Our sales 

and profitability would be adversely affected in case of any management inabilities or errors on part of our suppliers. 

 

Further, being a hospitality Company located at Chembur, which is a large residential and commercial hub in Mumbai, 

we face the risk of our suppliers reducing their focus to a particular customer due to competitive pressures and other 

internal management decisions and hence we may not receive the necessary support from our suppliers. Also, we face 

the risk of the management of our suppliers collaborating with some other trader and thus reducing our share of supply, 

which we cannot ensure would be as per our required terms. Any negative development involving our suppliers and 

their products, could adversely affect our business growth, profitability, results of operations and goodwill and we may 

not be in a position to alter or avoid such developments. 

 

15. Negative publicity could adversely affect our revenue model and profitability. 

 

We may, from time to time receive negative publicity with respect to quality of our facilities, services or food, ambience, 

hygiene & safety, employee relationships or other matters. We may in future experience adverse publicity as a result of 

employee misconduct, including employee theft. Any adverse publicity will create a negative image of our Company, 

irrespective of the fact that such allegations are true or not. The repercussion of such negative publicity may affect the 

revenue generation ability of all our outlets. This could lead to an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, 

results of operations and prospects. 
 

16. Our inability to manage the timing of vacation requests of our members or customers could lead to member 

dissatisfaction as well as loss of revenue generation opportunities.  

 

Presently we have a total of 35 rooms where we provide accommodation services to our clients. Our clients may choose 

a time to book their stay with Emerald within such time period which could be peak of holiday or wedding season. If 

more than the anticipated number of clients apply for a vacation at Emerald on the same dates of the year, we may not 

be in a position to satisfy their requests. Declining members the usage of their requested week / days may lead to client 

dissatisfaction, which could have an adverse effect on our reputation, growth and results of operations.  

 

Conversely, if less than the anticipated number of clients apply to stay at Emerald at any given time, we may have a 

large number of unused rooms, which could lead to a loss of revenue generation opportunities. 
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17. Failure to successfully update our menus and introduce new menu items, products and member engagement 

activities may adversely affect our business. 

 

Product development is an important factor in our industry in generating increase in sales. We regularly develop and 

introduce new menu items and products. However these new menu items and products may prove to be unsuccessful. 

If a new product is successful in all aspects, items are introduced on promotional menus and only the most successful 

are considered for inclusion on our regular menus. Further, we also aim to develop and introduce new guests activities 

and events for our members which will help us attract new customers by word of mouth. We organize various activities 

to engage our existing members and attract new clients, such as food festivals, musical programmes, festive celebrations, 

etc. However there can be no assurance that such efforts will be successful in identifying successful new products and 

services and avoiding unsuccessful introductions. Although we periodically do introduce new items to our menu, an 

inability to successfully introduce such new menu items and products could adversely affect our business, financial 

condition, results of operations and prospects.  

 

18. Increases in costs and inability to accurately forecast the demand for our supplies could result in a loss of revenue 

and adversely impact our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. 

 

Our profitability depends in part on our ability to anticipate and react to changes in the cost of our supplies. Any inability 

to accurately forecast demand of our food products and beverages would lead to excess supply of materials from our 

suppliers which would have a material adverse impact on our business. Increases in the cost of important products could 

significantly increase our expenses. The supply of materials for our food and beverages is based primarily on forecasts 

requirements prepared by our general manager/ head of departments in consultation with the chefs/bar tenders and is 

one of the more significant expense items in our business. The cost of materials of food and beverages constituted for 

47.27% and 49.02% of the total cost in the financial year 2022-23, 2023-2024, respectively, and 53.65% and 57.55% 

for the three months period ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively. These forecasts are based on past 

sales as well as anticipated demand, which is based to a certain extent on the subjective assessment of the general 

manager/ head of department. Most ingredients used by us, including liquor, cooking oil and vegetables, are 

commodities and therefore subject to price fluctuations as a result of seasonality, weather, supply and demand in local 

and international markets, economic conditions and other factors which are beyond our control. Increases in the cost of 

important raw materials could significantly increase our expenses. We have no control over fluctuations in the price 

and availability of ingredients or variations in products caused by these factors. If we are not able to obtain requisite 

quantities of quality ingredients at commercially reasonable prices, our ability to provide the menu items that are central 

to our business would be adversely affected. In addition, we purchase electricity, oil, piped natural gas and other related 

supplies needed to operate our facilities. Any significant increase in energy costs could adversely affect us through 

higher rates or imposition of fuel surcharges by our suppliers. In particular, we purchase a majority of our liquefied 

petroleum gas from certain Indian state-owned enterprises, and any significant increases in their prices for liquefied 

petroleum gas could result in increased expenses and loss of revenue.  

 

We cannot predict whether we will be able to anticipate and react favorably to changing costs by adjusting our 

purchasing practices and menu prices, and a failure to do so could adversely affect our business, financial condition, 

results of operations and prospects. In addition, because we operate in price sensitive markets, we would likely be unable 

to fully pass on price increases to our guests. Increases in our costs for any reason including those discussed above could 

adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In addition, if we are unable to 

adjust our significant fixed costs including lease costs and staff costs, in response to a reduction in revenues in the 

future, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be adversely affected. 

 

19. Certain of our Group Companies and our Promoters are engaged, or are authorized by their constitutional 

documents to engage, in business activities which are similar to those undertaken by our Company and Subsidiaries, 

or have interests in other companies, which are in businesses similar to ours, which may result in conflicts of interest. 

 

Certain of our Promoter Directors/ Group Companies are engaged in the same line of business. We cannot assure you 

that our Group Companies, will not compete with our existing business or any future business that we may undertake 

or that their interests will not conflict with ours. Any such present and future conflicts could have a material adverse 

effect on our reputation, business and results of operations. 

 

Further, a conflict of interest may occur between our business and the business of certain of our Promoters and Group 

Companies which could have an adverse effect on our operations. For example, Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan 

Jashwant Mehta, own and control Juhu Resorts & Development Private Limited which operates a hotel in Mumbai 

named ‘Hotel Emerald’. Further Juhu Resorts & Development Private Limited, Neptune Resorts & Developers Private 

Limited, our Group Companies, in which Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta are directors, are in 



 

 

 

26  

the same line of business as our Company and may compete with our existing business. Conflict of interest may also 

arise out of common business objectives shared by us and certain of our Promoters. Our Promoters may compete with 

us and have no obligation to direct any opportunities to us. We cannot assure you that these or other conflicts of interest 

will be resolved in an impartial manner. 

 

20. Any occurrence of negative event in the consumer food and beverage services industry in Maharashtra where we 

have presence could materially affect our overall business and results of operations. 

 

Customer preferences and taste may vary from time to time and place to place. Currently, we are serving in Mumbai, 

Maharashtra based on our experience and study of customer preferences and tastes of the particular state. However, any 

negative event affecting its consumer food and beverage industry, such as a local economic downturn, a natural disaster, 

a contagious disease outbreak, or a terrorist attack, or if the local authorities adopt regulations that place additional 

restrictions or burdens on us or our industry in general, our overall business and results of operations may be materially 

and adversely affected. 

 

21. We have a large workforce deployed at our Company, consequently we may be exposed to service related claims and 

losses or employee disruptions that could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations 

and financial condition. 

 

As of June 30, 2024, we have 39 employees at our Company. In addition, we utilize 21 personnel on a contract basis at 

our hotel. The risks associated with the utilization of a large workforce include possible claims relating to: 

 

• actions, inactions, errors or malicious acts by our personnel, including matters for which we may have to indemnify our 

guests; 

• failure of our personnel to adequately perform their duties including rendering deficient services, shortage in shift, 

absenteeism or lateness; 

• violation by personnel of security, privacy, health and safety regulations and procedures; 

• any failure by us to adequately verify personnel backgrounds and qualifications resulting inefficient services; 

• injury or damages to any guest’s person or property due to negligence of our personnel; and 

• criminal acts, torts or other negligent acts by our personnel. 

 

These claims may give rise to litigation and claims for damages, which could be time-consuming. These claims may 

also result in negative publicity and adversely impact our reputation and brand name. We may also be affected in our 

operations by the acts of third parties, including subcontractors and service providers. Any losses that we incur in this 

regard may have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

22. We require certain licenses and approvals in the ordinary course of the business and the failure to renew, obtain or 

retain them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect our operations.  
 

We are governed by various applicable laws and regulations for our business and operations. We are required and will 

continue to be required, to obtain and hold relevant license, approvals and permits for carrying out our services and 

activities. The approvals, licenses, registrations and permits obtained by us may contain conditions, some of which 

could be onerous. Additionally, we will need to apply for renewal of certain approvals, licenses, registrations and 

permits, which expire or seek fresh approvals, from time to time, as and when required in the ordinary course of our 

business. An inability to obtain or maintain approvals or licenses required for our operations may adversely affect our 

operations.  

 

Further, the approvals required by us are subject to numerous conditions and we cannot assure you that these would not 

be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged noncompliance with any terms or conditions thereof, 

or pursuant to any regulatory action. If there is any failure by us to comply with the applicable regulations or if the 

regulations governing our business are amended, we may incur increased costs, be subject to penalties, have our 

approvals and permits revoked or suffer a disruption in our operations, any of which could adversely affect our business. 

In case we fail to comply with these requirements, or a regulator alleges we have not complied with these requirements, 

we may be subject to penalties and compounding proceedings. 

 

23. Our operations are dependent on our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including our key senior 

management and any inability on our part to do so, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and 

financial condition. 
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Our operations are dependent on our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel since we aim to provide our guests 

with high levels of service. While we believe that we currently have adequate qualified personnel for our operations, 

we may not be able to continuously attract or retain such personnel, or retain them on acceptable terms, given the 

demand for such personnel. We have experienced attrition at a rate of 32.35% 50.67% and 31.17% in relation to our 

employees for Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Competition for qualified personnel with relevant industry 

expertise in India is intense and the loss of the services of our key personnel may adversely affect our business, results 

of operations and financial condition. We may require a long period of time to hire and train replacement personnel 

when qualified personnel terminate their employment with our Company. We may also be required to increase our 

levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to remain competitive in attracting employees that our 

business requires. 

 

Apart from personnel hired for providing their services at Emerald, we are highly dependent on our directors, senior 

management and other key personnel for setting our strategic business direction and managing our business. The inputs 

and experience of our senior management and key managerial personnel are valuable for the development of business 

and operations and the strategic directions taken by our Company. We currently do not have any non-compete 

agreements with our directors, senior management or other key personnel. We cannot assure you that we will be able 

to retain these employees or find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. Any inability on our part to attract 

and retain qualified personnel and senior management could adversely affect our business, results of operations and 

financial condition. 

 

24. Operational risks are inherent in our business as it includes rendering services at high quality standards at our 

hotels. A failure to manage such risks could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and 

financial condition. 

 

Certain operational risks are inherent in our businesses due to the nature of the industry in which we operate. We provide 

hospitality services, including food and beverage, cleaning and housekeeping, and security services, at our hotels. In 

rendering such services our personnel are required to adhere to regulatory requirements and standard operating 

procedures with regard to health, safety and hygiene and in their interaction with our guests and other members of the 

public. Food and beverage services require proper packaging and labelling and the careful and hygienic handling of 

food products, which if improperly packaged or handled may have an adverse impact on the health of our guests. 

Similarly, cleaning and housekeeping services involve the handling of chemicals such as cleaning solutions, which if 

handled improperly may have an adverse impact on the health of our employees, guests and on the environment. 

Consequently, our business is associated with certain safety, privacy and public health concerns. Failure to effectively 

implement crisis response, training and management policies and protocols and to adequately address and manage risks 

inherent in our business, or a failure to meet the requirements of our guests, or a failure to develop effective risk 

mitigation measures, could have an adverse effect on Emerald’s reputation, guest loyalty and consequently, our 

business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

25. Our business is customer oriented and the loss of customers, the deterioration of their financial condition or 

prospects, or a reduction in their demand for our services could adversely affect our business, results of operations 

and financial condition. 

 

Our room accommodations, conference/ banquet halls are dependent on our customers. Any reduction in growth or a 

slow-down in the business of our customers in India, could result in a reduction of their requirement for our services, 

and result in a significant decrease in the revenues we derive from these customers. There is no dependency on any 

customer segment and the revenue generated from all segments is evenly distributed, however the loss of our customers 

over time or a reduction in the amount of business we obtain from them could have an adverse effect on our business, 

and thus our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Further, customers may be able to negotiate better 

or more favorable terms or discounts compared to bookings made through direct channels or online travel agents. We 

cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain historic levels of business from such significant customers in the 

future. 

 

26. Once we enroll a member at our Club, we have a long term commitment to service such member. Our inability to 

maintain and operate our Club may affect the services offered to our members which in turn may affect our 

reputation, revenues and results of operations.  

 

Upon enrolment of a member to Club Emerald, we have an obligation to service our members for a period of 5 years or 

upto 20 years, depending on the tenure of their membership. Servicing our members requires us to maintain our Club 

at certain specified standards for such number of years. We can give no assurance that we will be in a position to service 
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our members for the entire tenure at their level of expectation. Our inability to maintain and operate our Club may have 

an adverse effect on our reputation, revenues and results of operations. 

 

27. Our operations entail certain fixed costs and recurring costs, and our inability to reduce such costs during periods 

of low demand for our services may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial 

condition. 

 

Our operations entail certain fixed costs such as costs incurred towards the maintenance of our property, employee 

related costs, property taxes as well as certain significant recurring costs such as utility expenses and insurance 

payments. Such fixed costs constituted to 90.03% and 90.19% of the total cost in the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-

24, respectively. We may also have to incur costs towards periodic re-designing, re-structuring, refurbishing or repair 

of defects at our Club. The costs of running a hotel cum club tends to be more fixed than variable. The hotel industry 

experiences changes in demand and supply, which we may not be able to predict accurately. Consequently, we may be 

unable to reduce fixed and recurring costs in a timely manner, or at all, in response to a reduction in the demand for our 

services. Further, our Club property may be subject to an increase in operating and other expenses in the event of 

increases in property and other tax rates, increase in utility costs due to increase in electricity or water supply charges, 

insurance costs, repairs and maintenance and administrative expenses, which may adversely affect our business, results 

of operations and financial condition. 

 

28. A portion of Emerald’s hotel segment bookings originate from online travel agents and intermediaries. In the event 

such companies continue to gain market share compared to direct booking channels or our competitors are able to 

negotiate more favorable terms with such online travel agents and intermediaries, our business and results of 

operations may be adversely affected. 

 

A portion of bookings for our accommodation facilities originate from online travel agents and intermediaries, such as 

online aggregators to whom we pay fees/ commissions. These third-parties, including online travel agents, offer a wide 

breadth of services, often across multiple brands, have growing booking and review capabilities, and may create the 

perception that they offer the lowest prices when compared to our direct booking channels. Some of these online travel 

agents and intermediaries have strong marketing budgets and aim to create brand awareness and brand loyalty among 

consumers and may seek to commoditize hotel brands through price and attribute comparison. In the event these 

companies continue to gain market share, they may impact our profitability, undermine direct booking channels and 

online web presence and may be able to increase commission rates and negotiate other favorable contract terms. 

Negative reviews and feedback on online travel portals may cause guests to choose the services of our competitors. 

Further, our competitors may be able to negotiate better or more favorable terms with such online travel agents and 

intermediaries, impacting our hotel bookings from these channels, which in turn may adversely affect our business and 

results of operations. 

 

29. The food and beverages service market is an ever-changing and dynamic industry. If we are unable to adapt to the 

ever changing trends of such industry, it will affect our business which in turn may affect our financial condition.  

 

We consider the food offered to our members as well as customers to be one of our greatest strengths. We have an in-

house kitchen where our experienced and professional chefs offer variety of cuisines to our members and customers. 

But the food industry is a fast changing industry and customer food and beverages consumption pattern may vary. Our 

business can be largely affected by changing customer preferences or pattern of consumption, including changes in 

member’s/ customer’s tastes all of which may be caused by many factors that are generally beyond our control. If we 

are unable to offer services at par with the ever evolving food industry needs and successfully meet changes in consumer 

tastes and trends, our business may be affected which in turn will affect our financial condition as well. 

 

30. We operate in a highly competitive market and may not be able to maintain our market position, which mayadversely 

impact our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

The hospitality industry is high fragmented in nature and subject to growing competition. There is increasing 

competition in respect of price, location, facilities, quality of service/ food etc. A growing, under-served market, such 

as India, is particularly attractive to new entrants, who may also offer new facilities, cuisines and beverages that appeal 

to customer tastes. We may also face competition from existing clubs and hotels willing to accept low margins on 

investment in order to enter new market as well as from business conglomerates willing to cross-subsidise club business 

in order to enter new market. Further we generally face competition from local outlets for food and classes conducted 

for sports activities. A significant increase in competition, whether from one new competitor or many, could exert 

downward pressure on prices, lower demand of our products and club concept, an inability to take advantage of new 
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business opportunities and a loss of market share, all of which would adversely affect our business, financial condition, 

results of operations and prospects. 

 

Our success is largely dependent upon our ability to compete in areas such as room rates, location of the property, the 

quality and scope of other amenities, including food and beverage facilities, quality of accommodation and service level 

as well as the brand recognition of our hospitality partners. In addition, our competitors may significantly increase their 

advertising expenses to promote their hotels, which may require us to similarly increase our advertising and marketing 

expenses and change our pricing strategies, which may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and 

financial condition. As a result, we cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully in the future against 

our existing or potential competitors or that our business and results of operations will not be adversely affected by 

increased competition. 

 

31. Any failure of our information technology systems could adversely affect our business and our operations. 

 

We utilize information technology systems that support our business processes, including centralized software and 

systems which support critical operations such as database management, application hosting, back-end processes, 

reservations systems and property management systems of our hotel operators and their affiliates. These systems may 

be susceptible to outages due to fire, floods, power loss, telecommunications failures, natural disasters, break-ins and 

similar events. Effective response to such disruptions will require effort and diligence on the part of our third-party 

vendors and employees to avoid any adverse effect to our information technology systems. 

 

In addition, our systems and proprietary data stored electronically, including our guests’ sensitive personal and financial 

information, may be vulnerable to computer viruses, cybercrime, computer hacking and similar disruptions from 

unauthorized tampering. Such technology systems may also be vulnerable to ransomware attacks, which may block or 

restrict access to these systems and impair their functionality, unless certain ransom money is paid. If such unauthorized 

use of our systems were to occur data related to our guests and other proprietary information could be compromised. 

Our Company has not faced such instance, however the occurrence of any such events could adversely affect our 

business, interrupt our operations, subject us to increased operating costs and expose us to litigation. We are also 

dependent on third party vendors for providing some of the services to our guests such as internet and television, among 

others, and any failure or deficiency on the part of such vendors may adversely affect our reputation, brand perception 

and results of operations. 

 

32. If we are unable to raise additional capital, our business prospects could be adversely affected. 

 

We intend to fund our growth and expansion plans through our cash on hand, cash flow from operations. We will 

continue to incur significant expenditure in maintaining and growing our existing infrastructure. We cannot assure you 

that we will have sufficient capital resources for our current operations or any future expansion plans that we may have. 

While we expect our cash on hand and cash flow from operations to be adequate to fund our existing commitments, our 

ability to incur any future borrowings is dependent upon the success of our operations. Additionally, if we are unable 

to arrange adequate financing on timely basis, it could adversely affect our ability to complete expansion plans. Our 

ability to arrange financing and the costs of capital of such financing are dependent on numerous factors, including 

general economic and capital market conditions, credit availability from banks, investor confidence, the continued 

success of our operations and regulatory framework that allows us to raise capital. If we decide to meet our capital 

requirements through debt financing, we may be subject to certain restrictive covenants. If we are unable to raise 

adequate capital in a timely manner and on acceptable terms, or at all, our business, results of operations, cash flows 

and financial condition could be adversely affected. 

 

33. Our operations could be adversely affected by strikes, work stoppages or increased wage demands by our employees 

or any other kind of disputes with our employees. 

 

Although we have not experienced any labor unrest, we cannot assure you that we will not experience disruptions in 

work due to disputes or other problems with our work force, which may adversely affect our ability to continue our 

business operations. Further, we cannot assure you that our other employees will not unionize in the future. In the event 

our employee relationships deteriorate or we experience significant labor unrest, strikes and other labor action, work 

stoppages could occur and there could be an adverse impact on our operations. These actions are impossible for us to 

predict or control and any such event could adversely affect our business and results of operations.  

 

34. We rely on contractual labor for carrying out certain of our operations and we may be held responsible for paying 

the wages of such workers, if the independent contractors through whom such workers are hired default on their 

obligations, and such obligations could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 
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In order to retain flexibility and control costs, we appoint independent contractors who in turn engage on-site contract 

labour for performance of certain of our operations. As of June 30, 2024, we utilized 21 personnel engaged on a 

contractual basis. Although we do not engage these workers/ labourers directly, we may be held responsible for any 

wage payments to be made to such labourers in the event of default by such independent contractor. Any requirement 

to fund their wage requirements may have an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition. In the 

event of any non-compliance by contractors with statutory requirements, legal proceedings may be initiated against us. 

Thus, any such order from a regulatory body or court may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations 

and financial condition. 

 

35. Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient or may not adequately protect us against all material hazards, which 

may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

We could be held liable for accidents that occur at our Company or otherwise arise out of our operations. In the event 

of personal injuries, fires or other accidents suffered by our members, employees or other people, we could face claims 

alleging that we were negligent, provided inadequate supervision or be otherwise liable for the injuries. We have 

insurance coverage such as fire and special perils, employee fidelity, cover for money in safe, cover for equipments, 

plate glass, etc. We also maintain director and officers’ liability policy and group mediclaim policy for our employees. 

For the financial year 2024, we had insured our net assets for an amount of₹ 9,655 lakhs representing 100% coverage 

over our total net assets. 

 

While we believe that the insurance coverage which we maintain would be reasonably adequate to cover the normal 

risks associated with the operation of our business, we cannot assure you that any claim under the insurance policies 

maintained by us will be honored fully, in part or on time, or that we have taken out sufficient insurance to cover all our 

losses. In addition, our insurance coverage expires from time to time. We apply for the renewal of our insurance 

coverage in the normal course of our business, but we cannot assure you that such renewals will be granted in a timely 

manner, at acceptable cost or at all. To the extent that we suffer loss or damage for which we did not obtain or maintain 

insurance, and which is not covered by insurance, exceeds our insurance coverage or where our insurance claims are 

rejected, the loss would have to be borne by us and our results of operations, cash flows and financial performance 

could be adversely affected. 

 

36. Disruptions or lack of basic infrastructure such as electricity and water supply could adversely affect our operations. 

 

We require a significant amount and continuous supply of electricity and water and any disruption in the supply thereof 

could affect the operations of our Company and the services to our members and guests. We currently source our water 

requirements from rain water harvesting system installed in our complex and from governmental water supply 

undertakings and depend on power generation company, Tata Power, for our energy requirements. We cannot assure 

you that our hotels will have sufficient power during power failures. Any failure on our part to obtain alternate sources 

of electricity or water, in a timely fashion, and at an acceptable cost, may have an adverse effect on our business, results 

of operations and financial condition. 

 

37. Demand for rooms or our conferencing and meeting facilities may be adversely affected by the increased use of 

business-related technology or change in preference of our corporate customers. 

 

The increased use of teleconference and video-conference technology by other businesses could result in decreased 

business travel as companies increase the use of technologies that allow multiple parties from different locations to 

participate at meetings without traveling to a centralized meeting location, such as our Club. For instance during 

COVID-19 pandemic, our revenue generated from our rooms, conferencing and meeting facilities were adversely 

affected. Revenue generated during Fiscal 2021 and 2022 was comparatively less than the revenue generated during the 

year 2023 which also indicates that the effect of pandemic has considerably reduced with only limited impact. However, 

to the extent that technologies play an increased role in day-to-day business and the necessity for business-related travel 

decreases, demand for our rooms or our conferencing and meeting facilities may decrease from business travelers and 

corporate customers. Similarly, changes in business spending and preferences of our corporate customers due to 

evolving cost of travel, spending habits and budgeting patterns may lead to a change in the perceived attractiveness of 

Emerald and services. 

 

38. We are unable to trace some of our historical records. In the event we are found not to be in compliance with any 

applicable regulations in relation to the regulatory filings or corporate actions, we may be subject to regulatory 

actions or penalties for any such possible non-compliance and our business, financial condition and reputation may 

be adversely affected.  
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We have been unable to locate copies of certain of our corporate records filed with the RoC before the calendar year 

2010. While we believe that these documents were duly filed on a timely basis, we have not been able to obtain copies 

of these documents from the RoC or otherwise. The relevant documents are also not available at the office of the RoC 

as certified by Zankhana Bhansali & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, vide his search report dated May 16, 

2024. We cannot assure you that the relevant corporate records will become available in the future or that regulatory 

proceedings or actions will not be initiated against us in the future and we will not be subject to any penalty imposed 

by the competent regulatory authority in this respect. Further we cannot assure you that we will not be subject to any 

legal proceedings or regulatory actions, including monetary penalties by statutory authorities on account of any 

inadvertent discrepancies in our secretarial filings and/or corporate records in the future, which may adversely affect 

our business, financial condition and reputation.  

 

Although, our Company endeavours to comply with all compliance/ reporting requirements, there may have been 

instances of delays/non-discourses/erroneous disclosures and non-filings of certain forms which were required to be 

filed as per the reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 with RoC. In past, 

there have been instances wherein our Company has failed to comply with the requirements of RoC, for which we have 

paid additional fees. No show cause notice in respect of the above has been issued to our Company till date and except 

as stated in this Letter of Offer, no penalty or fine has been imposed by any regulatory authority with respect to the 

same. It cannot be assured, that there will not be such instances in the future or our Company will not commit any 

further delays or defaults in relation to its reporting requirements, or any penalty or fine will not be imposed by any 

regulatory authority in respect to the same. The happening of such event may cause a material effect on our business 

reputation, divert management attention, and result in a material adverse effect on our business prospects. 

 

39. If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the total Issue size, the Issue may fail.  

 

In the event our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the total Issue Size or the subscription 

level falls below 90% of the total Issue Size after the Issue Closing Date on account of withdrawal of Applications or 

technical rejections or any other reason, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within such 

period as may be prescribed under applicable law. Further, in the event, there is a delay in making a refund of the 

subscription monies, our Company shall be required to pay interest for the delayed period at such a rate prescribed under 

applicable law. For further details, please see “General Information-Minimum Subscription” on page 44.  

 

40. Our Promoters and Directors hold Equity Shares in our Company and are therefore interested in the Company's 

performance in addition to their benefits or reimbursement of expenses. 

 

Our Promoters and Directors hold 69.07% of the Equity Share Capital, and are interested in our Company, in addition 

to benefits and reimbursement of expenses that may be received by them, to the extent of their shareholding in our 

Company. Our Promoters may exercise significant control over us, including being able to control the composition of 

our Board of Directors and determine decisions requiring simple or special majority voting of shareholders, and our 

other shareholders may not be able to affect the outcome of such voting.  

 

For further details, see “Capital Structure” and “Financial Information” on pages 45 and 78 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

41. We are exposed to the risk of events that adversely affect domestic or international travel, such as epidemics and 

terrorism or war. 

 

The room rates and occupancy levels of our hotel segment could be adversely affected by external events that reduce 

domestic or international travel, such as epidemics or pandemic like COVID-19 and spread of infectious diseases or 

threats thereof, actual or threatened acts of terrorism or war, geo-political crisis or civil unrest, travel-related accidents 

or industrial action, natural disasters, or other local factors impacting individual hotels, as well as increased 

transportation and fuel costs. A decrease in the demand for rooms as a result of such events may have an adverse impact 

on our operations and financial results. In addition, inadequate planning, preparation, response or recovery in relation 

to a major incident or crisis may prevent operational continuity, or result in financial loss and consequently affect our 

reputation. 

 

42. Our operating results may fluctuate significantly and could fall below the expectations of securities analysts and 

investors due to various factors. 

 

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly because of various factors, including: 

• changes in consumer preferences and discretionary spending; 
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• fluctuations in the cost of supplies; 

• labour availability and wages of club management and staff; 

• profitability of our club; 

• variations in general economic conditions; 

• negative publicity about the liquor we serve or the ingredients we use or the occurrence of food-borne illnesses 

• or other problems at our club; and 

• changes in comparable club sales and guest orders, including as a result of declining consumer confidence or 

the introduction of new menu items. 

 

As a result of these factors and others, results for any one quarter are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected 

for any other quarter or for any year. In the future, operating results may fall below the expectations of securities analysts 

and investors, which could cause our stock prices to fall. 

 
43. Our funding requirements and the proposed deployment of Net Proceeds have not been appraised by a public financial 

institution or a scheduled commercial bank and our management will have broad discretion over utilization of the Net 

Proceeds. 

 

Our Company proposes to utilize the Net Proceeds for repayment and/ or prepayment of debts. Our proposed deployment of 

Net Proceeds has not been appraised by a public financial institution or a scheduled commercial bank and is based on 

management estimates.  

 

44. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our earnings, financial condition, working capital 

requirements, capital expenditures and restrictive covenants of our financing arrangements. 

 

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our earnings, financial condition, cash flow, working capital 

requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants of our financing arrangements.  

 

The Company may decide to retain all future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of the business. 

In such situation, the Company may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the 

declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board and will depend on factors that our Board 

deems relevant, including among others, our future earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects 

and any other financing arrangements. We cannot state with any certainty whether we will be able to pay dividends in 

the future. Accordingly, realization of a gain on Shareholders’ investments will depend on the appreciation of the price 

of the Equity Shares. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value. 

 

45. Any inability to protect our intellectual property or any claims that we infringe on the intellectual property rights of 

others could have a material adverse effect on us. 

 

As on date of this Letter of Offer, we have 1 registered trademark. The trademark/service mark and logo in connection 

with the “CLUB e EMERALD” logo is owned and registered by our Promoter, Chetan Jashwant Mehta under classs 41 

of the Trade Marks Act, 1999. We may not be able to prevent infringement of our trademark and a passing off action 

may not provide sufficient protection until such time that this registration is granted. There may be other companies or 

vendors which operate in the unorganized segment using our trade name or brand names. Any such activities could 

harm the reputation of our brand and goodwill of our Company, which could in turn adversely affect our financial 

performance and the market price of the Equity Shares. The measures we take to protect our intellectual property include 

relying on Indian laws and initiating legal proceedings, which may not be adequate to prevent unauthorized use of our 

intellectual property by third parties. Furthermore, the application of laws governing intellectual property rights in India 

is uncertain and evolving, and could involve substantial risks to us. Notwithstanding the precautions we take to protect 

our intellectual property rights, it is possible that third parties may copy or otherwise infringe on our rights, which may 

have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. 

 

We may also be susceptible to claims from third parties asserting infringement and other related claims. If similar claims 

are raised in the future, these claims could result in costly litigation, divert management’s attention and resources, 

subject us to significant liabilities and require us to enter into potentially expensive royalty or licensing agreements or 

to cease usage of certain brand names. Furthermore, necessary licenses may not be available to us on satisfactory terms, 

if at all. Any of the foregoing could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition, cash flows 

and results of operations. 

 

46. Industry information included in this Letter of Offer has been derived from publicly available sources. There can be 

no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry information is complete or accurate and 



 

 

 

33  

neither has our company independently verified the same. Further, despite our efforts to follow up with IBEF and 

FRHAI, we are yet to receive consent for the inclusion of data from their reports.  

 

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from publicly 

available information as well as industry publications and sources. We have taken extracts from the report titled ‘FHRAI 

Hotel Industry Survey 2023” and “Tourism and Hospitality Industry, May 2024” issued by the Federation of Hotel and 

Restaurant Associations of India (“FHRAI”) and India Brand Equity Foundation (“IBEF”), respectively. However, 

despite our efforts to follow up with IBEF and FRHAI, we are yet to receive consent for the inclusion of data from their 

reports. Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from 

publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness are not 

guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. 

 

Industry Information included herein is subject to various limitations and based upon certain assumptions that are 

subjective in nature. Neither us nor anyone associated with us has independently verified the information. Although we 

believe that the Industry Information may be considered to be reliable, the accuracy, completeness and underlying 

assumptions are not guaranteed and dependability cannot be assured. While we have taken reasonable care in the 

reproduction of the information, the information has not been prepared or independently verified by us, any of our 

respective affiliates or advisors and, therefore, we make no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the 

accuracy or completeness of such facts and statistics. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or 

discrepancies between published information and market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be 

inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced for other economies and should not be unduly relied upon. 

Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as 

may be the case elsewhere. Statements from third parties that involve estimates are subject to change, and actual 

amounts may differ materially from those included in this Letter of Offer. 

 

47. The Novel Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic outbreak and steps taken control the same have significantly impacted 

our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows and further impact will depend on future 

developments, which are highly uncertain. 

 

The rapid and diffused spread of COVID-19 and global health concerns relating to this outbreak have had a severe 

negative impact on all businesses. Hospitality sector had been the worst affected owing to complete disruption in 

domestic and international travel. There was an unprecedented slowdown of economic activity throughout the world 

and operations of the businesses were impacted, by way of interruption in supply chain, unavailability of personnel, 

restriction on domestic and international travel, increased costs of maintenance and upkeep, rise in costs of input & 

services, etc. The COVID-19 pandemic could continue to have an impact that may worsen for an unknown period of 

time. Currently, there is substantial medical uncertainty regarding COVID-19 and till any cure is found, this pandemic 

may continue to cause unprecedented economic disruption in India and in the rest of the world. The scope, duration and 

frequency of such measures and the adverse effects of COVID-19 remain uncertain and could be severe. 

 

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic, and the related global economic impact, may affect our business, 

financial condition and results of operations will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot 

be predicted, including the spread, scope and duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and any recovery period, the 

effectiveness of further steps taken by the GoI and the RBI to mitigate the economic impacts in response to the pandemic 

and its effects. 

 

48. We are exposed to a variety of risks associated with safety, security and crisis management. 

 

We are committed to ensure the safety and security of our members, guests, employees and assets against natural and 

man-made threats. These include, but are not limited to, exceptional events such as extreme weather, civil or political 

unrest, violence and terrorism, serious and organized crime, fraud, employee dishonesty, cybercrime, pandemics, fire 

and day-to-day accidents, incidents, health crises of members or guests and petty crime which impact the member/ guest 

or employee experience, could cause loss of life, sickness or injury and result in compensation claims, fines from 

regulatory bodies, litigation and impact our reputation. Serious incidents or a combination of events could escalate into 

a crisis which, if managed poorly, could further expose us and our Club to significant reputational damage. Any 

accidents or any criminal activity at our Club may result in personal injury or loss of life, substantial damage to or 

destruction of property and equipment resulting in the suspension of operations. Any of the foregoing could subject us 

to litigation, which may increase our expenses in the event we are found liable, and could adversely affect our reputation 

and cause a loss of consumer confidence in our business. Such events occurring at our Club may also have an adverse 

effect on our reputation and may also adversely affect operations of our other properties. 
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ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS  

 

49. We will not distribute the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement 

Letter to overseas Shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of documents. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and SEBI Rights Issue Circulars our Company will send, only through 

email, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue 

material to the email addresses of all the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our 

Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares permitted under laws 

of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. The Issue Materials will not be distributed to 

addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials in overseas jurisdictions. 

However, the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to serve documents at any address which may be provided by 

the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is lack of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 

made there under with respect to distribution of Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may 

be prohibited under the applicable laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide 

an address in India for the purposes of distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or 

authorities would not adopt a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may subject 

us to fines or penalties. 

 

50. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form (“Physical 

Shareholder”) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar. 

 

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has recently 

been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital 

market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the 

requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated SEBI circular bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 read with SEBI circular bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022, and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to 

providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 103. 

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit 

of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only.  

 

51. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without compensation 

and result in a dilution of shareholding. 

 

Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become null and 

void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership and 

voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights 

Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you 

receive for them may not be sufficient to fully compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the 

equity share capital of our Company that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply 

in case of failure in completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements 

are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the Rights 

Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be able to apply 

in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 103.  

 

52. Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our Company 

may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters may adversely affect the trading price 

of the Equity Shares. 

 

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by our Company 

may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to 

raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales 

might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue 

additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity Shares by any of our Promoters, or the perception that such sales may 

occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoters will not 

dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future. 

 

53. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares. 
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Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares of an 

Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term capital gains 

tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will 

be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized 

on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax 

in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation 

in India in cases where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is 

a resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents 

of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on gains made upon the sale of the 

Equity Shares.  

 

54. You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date on which this 

Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk. 

 

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the depository 

participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading such Equity Shares only 

after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be no assurance that the Equity Shares 

allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the 

specified time period, subjecting you to market risk for such period. 

 

55. Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely affect the value 

of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results. 

 

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchange. Any dividends in respect of our 

Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant foreign currency for 

repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the time that it takes to undertake 

such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency 

exchange rates during a delay in repatriating outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, 

because of a delay in regulatory approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds 

received by equity shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated 

substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may adversely affect the 

trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results. 

 

56. Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the trading price of 

the Equity Shares. 

 

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoter or by other significant shareholder(s) may significantly 

affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be adversely affected even if there is a 

perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur. 

 

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

 

57. Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have adversely affect our business and results 

of operations. 

 

The Indian economy and its securities markets are influenced by economic developments and volatility in securities 

markets in other countries. Investors’ reactions to developments in one country may have adverse effects on the market 

price of securities of companies located in other countries, including India. Negative economic developments, such as 

rising fiscal or trade deficits, or a default on national debt, in other emerging market countries may also affect investor 

confidence and cause increased volatility in Indian securities markets and indirectly affect the Indian economy in 

general. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and restrict our access to capital, which could have an 

adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce the price of our Equity Shares. 

Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholders’ 

equity and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance, growth and 

market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health of the economy in which we 

operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India. Demand for our products or services 

may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional and global economies. 
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Economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade 

movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis, 

volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. 

Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations and financial 

condition. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could adversely 

affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in particular and high 

rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease 

our operating margins. 

 

58. A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer. 

 

We are incorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are highly 

dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are significantly affected by factors 

influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy could adversely affect our business, including our 

ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets, and our ability to implement our strategy. 

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility in global 

commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in turn could adversely 

affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

59. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of corporate and tax 

laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations. 

 

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavourable changes in or interpretations of 

existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our business. There can be no 

assurance that the government may not implement new regulations and policies which will require us to obtain approvals 

and licenses from the government and other regulatory bodies  or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our 

operations. Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the applicability, interpretation and 

implementation of any amendment or change to governing laws, regulation or policy in the jurisdictions in which we 

operate may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. In 

addition, we may have to incur expenditures to comply with the requirements of any new regulations, which may also 

materially harm our results of operations or cash flows. Any unfavourable changes to the laws and regulations applicable 

to us could also subject us to additional liabilities. 

 

60. Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our results of 

operations and financial condition. 

 

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other 

countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe, the United States and 

elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although economic conditions are different in 

each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have an adverse effect on the securities of 

companies in other countries, including India. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging 

markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. 

Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit conditions in the U.S. market, could also have 

a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our results of 

operations and financial condition. 

 

The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries. This includes, but is not 

limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and certain economies in Asia. Financial turmoil in Asia and 

elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Any worldwide financial instability may cause 

increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and, directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and 

financial sector and its business. 

 

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging economy may cause 

increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in other parts of the world could have 

a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy. Financial disruptions in the future could adversely affect our 

business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced 

substantial dislocations, liquidity disruptions and market corrections. 

 

These could include further falls in Stock Exchange indices and greater volatility of markets in general due to the 

increased uncertainty. These and other related events could have a significant impact on the global credit and financial 
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markets as a whole, and could result in reduced liquidity, greater volatility, widening of credit spreads and a lack of 

price transparency in the global credit and financial markets. There are also concerns that a tightening of monetary 

policy in emerging markets and some developed markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such 

developments, legislators and financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have 

implemented a number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-

term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is uncertain, and they 

may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant financial disruption in the future could have an adverse 

effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business, future financial performance and the trading price of the Equity 

Shares. 

 

61. Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial condition. 

 

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has 

experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and 

increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other expenses relevant to our business.  

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any 

increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on to our customers, whether 

entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular, we might not 

be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our 

business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.  

Further, the GoI has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear whether 

these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future. 

 

62. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to attract 

foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares. 

 

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies, including 

those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources for our projects under 

development and hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing 

indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without onerous 

conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth, results of operations and 

financial condition. 

 

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents 

and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting 

requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in compliance 

with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the 

prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a 

sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ 

tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the 

RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all. 

 

63. Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise financing. 

 

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings international debt by international rating agencies may adversely affect 

our ability to raise additional overseas financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such 

additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our ability to fund our growth on favourable 

terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity 

Shares. 
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64. The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and 

financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect the 

financial markets and our business. 

 

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes, fires, 

explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military actions, could adversely 

affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war 

may adversely affect the Indian securities markets. In addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially 

between India and its neighbouring countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could 

adversely affect the price of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years 

and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have 

an adverse effect on our business. 

 

Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of 

risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity Shares. 

 

65. Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. 

 

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, 

particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ 

reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, 

including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased 

volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial 

instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could 

harm our business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Equity Shares. 

 

Any other global economic developments or the perception that any of them could occur may continue to have an 

adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and may significantly reduce 

global market liquidity and restrict the ability of key market participants to operate in certain financial markets. Any of 

these factors could depress economic activity and restrict our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on 

our business, financial condition and results of operations and reduce the price of our Equity Shares. Any financial 

disruption could have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholders’ equity and the price 

of our Equity Shares. 
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SECTION III – INTRODUCTION 

 

THE ISSUE 

 

This Issue has been authorised through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on July 24, 2023 pursuant 

to Section 62(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The following is a summary of this Issue and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified entirely by, the 

information detailed in the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 103 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Equity Shares proposed to be issued Up to 1,00,12,400 Rights Equity Shares 

Rights Entitlements 2 (Two) Rights Equity Share for every 1 (One) fully paid-up Equity 

Shares held on the Record Date 

Fractional Entitlement Since the entitlement is 1 (One) Equity Share, fractional entitlement 

will not arise 

Record Date Tuesday, September 10, 2024 

Face value per Equity Share ₹5 

Issue Price per Rights Equity Share ₹12.50 (including a premium of ₹7.50 per Rights Equity Share)  

Issue Size Up to ₹1,251.55 lakhs* 
*Assuming full subscription 

Equity Shares issued, subscribed and paid-

up prior to the Issue 

50,06,200 Equity Shares of ₹5 each 

Equity Shares subscribed and paid-up 

after the Issue (assuming full subscription 

for and allotment of the Rights Shares) 

1,50,18,600 Equity Shares of ₹5 each 

Voting Rights and Dividend  The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue upon being fully 

paid up shall rank paripasu in all respects with the Equity Shares of 

our Company. 

Security Codes ISIN: INE044N01021 

BSE: 507265 

ISIN for Rights Entitlement: INE044N20013 

Use of Issue Proceeds For details, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 47 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

Terms of the Issue For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 103 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

Terms of Payment The full amount of the Issue Price being ₹12.50 will be payable on 

application. 

 

Please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 103 of this Letter of Offer. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Emerald Leisures Limited (“Company” or “Issuer”) was originally incorporated on March 8, 1933 as ‘Phaltan Sugar Works 

Limited’ and registered under Section 23 of the Indian Companies Act, 1913, as a limited company. Subsequently a fresh 

certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name of our Company to ‘Apte Amalgamations Limited’ was issued 

on June 29, 1982 by Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Bombay. Thereafter, the name of our Company was changed to 

‘Emerald Leisures Limited’, its current name, and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon name change of our 

Company was issued on August 30, 2013 by Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai. For details, including reasons 

for change in the name and registered office of our Company, “General Information” on page 40 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY 

 

Emerald Leisures Limited  

Club Emerald Sports Complex, 

Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, 

Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 071, India.  

Telephone: +91 22 25277504 

E-mail: info@clubemerald.in 

Website: www.clubemerald.in 

Registration Number: 006791 

CIN: L74900MH1948PLC006791 

 

Changes in our Registered Office 

 

Upon incorporation, the Registered Office of our Company was situated at 14 A The Club, near Mangal Anand Hospital 

Swastik Park Chembur Mumbai Maharashtra 400071, India. Thereafter, our Company has shifted the Registered Office, 

the details of which are set out below: 

 
Date of Change of 

Registered Office 
Old Address New Address Reason for Change 

August 14, 2015 

14 A TheClub near Mangal 

Anand Hospital Swastik Park 

Chembur Mumbai Maharashtra 

400071, India 

Club Emerald Sports Complex, 

Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, 

Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 

071, India. 

Administrative 

Convenience 

 

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES 

 

Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai situated at the following address: 

 

Registrar of Companies, Mumbai 

100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai,  

Maharashtra – 400 002, India.  

Telephone: +91-22 - 2281 2627 / 2202 0295 / 2284 6954 
 

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

 

Mr. Kapil M. Purohit, is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. His contact details are set 

forth hereunder: 

 

Emerald Leisures Limited  

Club Emerald Sports Complex, 

Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, 

Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 071, India.  

Telephone: +91 22 25277504/ +91 9967255120 

E-mail: companysecretary@clubemerald.co.in 

Website: www.clubemerald.in  

 

mailto:info@clubemerald.in
http://www.clubemerald.in/
mailto:companysecretary@clubemerald.co.in
http://www.clubemerald.in/
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Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company: 

 

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE 

 

M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co. 

4th Floor, State Bank Buildings, 

N.G.N. Vaidya Marg, Fort, 

Mumbai - 400 023, 

Maharashtra, India 

Telephone: +91 22 2266 3353 

Facsimile: +91 22 2266 3978 

Email: sanjay.asher@crawfordbayley.com 

Contact Person: Sanjay Asher 

 

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE 

 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate,  

J.R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel,  

Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 011, India 

Telephone: +91 22- 4961 4132/ 31998810 

Email: newissue@purvashare.com 

Investor Grievance Email: newissue@purvashare.com 

Website:www.purvashare.com 

Contact Person: Deepali Dhuri 

SEBI Registration Number: INRO00001112 

CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079 

Validity: Permanent 

 

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue or 

post-Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, 

with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact 

number(s), Email address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Rights Equity 

Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of 

the SCSBs where the Common Application Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by 

the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgment slip (in case of ASBA process). For details on the ASBA 

process, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 103. 

 

STATUTORY AND PEER REVIEW AUDITOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

M/s. P.G. Bhagwat LLP., 

Chartered Accountants 

Suite 101-102, Orchard, 

Dr. Pai Marg, Baner, 

Pune, Maharashtra – 411 045, India.  

Telephone: +91 022 22021938 

Email: pgb@pgbhagwatca.com 

Contact Person: Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil 

Membership No.:120570 

Firm Registration No.: 101118W/W100682 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 012842 

 

BANKERS TO THE ISSUE/ REFUND BANK  

 

Axis Bank Limited  

Jeevan Prakash Building, Ground Floor,  

Sir P M Road, Fort,  

Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra, India.  

Telephone: +91 9619698042 

Email: fort.branchhead@axisbank.com  

mailto:sanjay.asher@crawfordbayley.com
mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
http://www.purvashare.com/
mailto:fort.branchhead@axisbank.com
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Website: www.axisbank.com  

Contact Person: Manoj Sukumaran 

SEBI Registration No.: INBI00000017 

 

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided at the website of 

the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to time. 

For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Common Application Forms, refer to the website of the 

SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. On Allotment, the amount will be 

unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity Shares Allotted. 

 

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities  

 

The Company has not appointed any merchant banker as the Issue size is less than ₹5000.00 lakhs and hence there is 

no inter-se allocation of responsibilities.  

 

Investor grievances 

 

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/ post-Issue related matters 

such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment, share certificates, demat credit, Refund Orders, etc.  

 

Investors are advised to contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any 

pre-Issue or post-Issue related problems such as non-receipt of Abridged Letter of Offer/ Common Application Form 

and Rights Entitlement Letter/ Letter of Allotment, Split Common Application Forms, Share Certificate(s) or Refund 

Orders, etc. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to 

the SCSBs, giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, ASBA Account number and the Designated 

Branch of the SCSBs, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, where the Common Application Form and 

Rights Entitlement Letter or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholder, was submitted by the 

ASBA Investors through ASBA process. 

 

Expert 

 

Our Company has received written consent dated September 9, 2024 from our Statutory Auditor, M/s. P.G. Bhagwat 

LLP., Chartered Accountants for inclusion of (i) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for Fiscal 2024 and 

their report thereon dated May 30, 2024 (ii) The Limited Reviewed Unaudited Financial Results for the three months 

period ended June 30, 2024 and their report thereon dated August 14, 2024 and (iii) to include their name in this Letter 

of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to their report on the 

Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 in the form and context in which it appears in this Letter of Offer.  

 

Such consent has not been withdrawn up to the date of this Letter of Offer. The term ‘expert’ and consent thereof, does 

not represent an expert or consent within the meaning under the U.S. Securities Act. 

 

Credit Rating 

 

As the proposed Issue is of Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of a credit rating agency is not required. 

 

Debenture Trustees 

 

As the proposed Issue is of Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustee is not required. 

 

Monitoring Agency 

 

Since the Issue size does not exceed ₹10,000 lakhs, there is no requirement to appoint a monitoring agency in relation 

to the Issue under SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

Appraising Entity 

 

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any banks or 

financial institution or any other independent agency. 

 

  

http://www.axisbank.com/
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes


 

 

 

43  

Filing  

 

This Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. Further, in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall file a copy of this Letter of Offer with 

SEBI for information and dissemination on the website of SEBI i.e., www.sebi.gov.in 

 

Further, SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth 

Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the threshold 

of filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights issue size under 

Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores to Rupees fifty crores. Since 

the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchange and not with 

SEBI. However, this Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for information and dissemination through the SEBI 

intermediary portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in terms of the circular (No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011) 

dated January 19, 2018 issued by the SEBI for record purpose only, and will be filed with the Stock Exchange. 

 

Underwriting  

 

This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.  

 

Issue Schedule 

 

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking 

hours on the dates mentioned below: 

 

Event Indicative Date 

Last date for credit of Rights Entitlements  September 12, 2024 

Issue Opening Date  Tuesday, September 17, 2024 

Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights 

Entitlements# 

Wednesday, September 18, 2024 

Issue Closing Date* Tuesday, September 24, 2024 

Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) Tuesday, October 1, 2024 

Date of Allotment (on or about) Thursday, October 3, 2024 

Date of credit (on or about) Wednesday, October 9, 2024 

Date of listing (on or about) Friday, October 11, 2024 
#Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner 

that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s)on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 
*Our Board or the Rights Issue Committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to 

time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of 

Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company.  

 

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date have not 

provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their demat 

account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two (2) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, 

i.e., Thursday, September 19, 2024 to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat 

suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Monday, 

September 23, 2024. 

 

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Neither our 

Company nor the Registrar to the Issue will be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Applications on or 

before the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Common Application Forms, see “Terms of the Issue” 

beginning on page 103. 

 

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before 

Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing 

Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements 

were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the amount paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. 

Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an Application to apply for Equity Shares 

offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue. 

http://www.sebi.gov.in/
https://siportal.sebi.gov.in/
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The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such 

respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at www.purvashare.comafter keying in their 

respective details along with either security control measures implemented there at. For further details, see “Terms of 

the Issue-Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders” on page 103. 

 

Minimum Subscription 

 

The objects of the Issue involve (a) Repayment, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings (including interest 

thereon) availed by our Company and (b) General Corporate Purposes. 

 

Other than Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta, we have been informed by our Promoters vide their 

letters each dated February 28, 2024, their intention to fully subscribe to their entitlements arising out of the proposed 

Rights Issue. Additionally, Jaydeep Vinod Mehta, vide his letter dated February 28, 2024 has undertaken to fully 

subscribe to any under subscribed portion of this Issue. Further, we have been informed by Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 

and Chetan Jashwant Mehta that they may or may not fully subscribe to their entitlements arising out of the proposed 

Rights Issue and may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement in favour of third parties whom they may 

identify in due course or may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement in the open market. Therefore, the 

minimum subscription criteria (of at least 90% of the Issue) as provided in proviso to Regulation 86(1) of the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations is applicable to this Issue. Pursuant to regulation 86(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations in case of 

non-receipt of minimum subscription, all application monies received shall be refunded to the Applicants forthwith, but 

not later than four days from the closure of the Rights Issue. 

 

Note: Our Promoter Group does not hold any Equity Shares in our Company. 

 

 

 

  

http://www.purvashare.com/
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

 

The share capital of our Company as at the date of this Letter of Offer is set forth below: 
 

(₹ in Lakhs, except share data) 
Particulars Aggregate value at 

face value 

Aggregate value at 

Issue Price  

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL   

Equity Shares Capital 

1,60,00,000Equity Shares of ₹5 each 
800.00 

NA 

Preference Share Capital 

60,00,000 Preference Shares ₹100 each 
6,000.00 

NA 

 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL 

BEFORE THE ISSUE 

 
 

50,06,200 Equity Shares of ₹5 each 250.31 NA 

50,00,000 Preference Shares of ₹100 each 5,000.00  

 

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS LETTER OF 

OFFER(1) 
  

Up to 1,001,12,400 Rights Equity Shares at a premium of ₹7.50 

per Rights Equity Share, i.e., at an Issue Price of ₹12.50 per Rights 

Equity Share 

500.62 1,251.55 

 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL 

AFTER THE ISSUE(2) 

 
 

1,50,18,600 Equity Shares of ₹5 each 750.93 NA 

 

SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT   

Before the Issue Nil 

After the Issue(2) 750.93* 
(1)The Issue has been authorised by a resolution of our Board passed at its meeting held on July 24, 2023, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions. 
(2)Assuming full subscription by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of the Rights Equity Shares. 
*Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares. 

 
Notes to Capital Structure 

 

1. Details of outstanding instruments as on the date of this Letter of Offer 

 

There are no outstanding options or convertible securities, including any outstanding warrants or rights to convert 

debentures, loans or other instruments convertible into our Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of Offer.  

 

2. Except as disclosed under the heading titled “Statement showing holding of Equity Shares of the Promoters and 

Promoter Group including details of lock-in, pledge of and encumbrance thereon, as on June 30, 2024” on page 

46, no Equity Shares held by our Promoters or Promoter Group have been locked-in, pledged or encumbered as of 

the date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

3. Our Promoters and Promoter Group have not acquired any Equity Shares in the last one year immediately 

preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer with Designated Stock Exchange.  

 

4. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group 

 

Other than Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta, we have been informed by our Promoters vide 

their letters each dated February 28, 2024, their intention to fully subscribe to their entitlements arising out of the 

proposed Rights Issue. Additionally, Jaydeep Vinod Mehta, vide his letter dated February 28, 2024 has undertaken 

to fully subscribe to any under subscribed portion of this Issue. Further, we have been informed by Jashwant 
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Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta that they may or may not fully subscribe to their entitlements arising 

out of the proposed Rights Issue and may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement in favour of third 

parties whom they may identify in due course or may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement in the 

open market. Therefore, the minimum subscription criteria (of at least 90% of the Issue) as provided in proviso to 

Regulation 86(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations is applicable to this Issue. Pursuant to regulation 86(2) of the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations in case of non-receipt of minimum subscription, all application monies received shall be 

refunded to the Applicants forthwith, but not later than four days from the closure of the Rights Issue. 

 

Our Promoters reserve the right to apply for, and subscribe to, additional Rights Equity Shares over and above 

their Rights Entitlements for ensuring minimum subscription in the Issue as required under the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular and subscribe to unsubscribed portion of the Issue, if any. 

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters, over and above its Rights Entitlements shall not result 

in a change of control of the management of our Company and shall be in compliance with the SEBI SAST 

Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue 

to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements under the Applicable Law. 

 

Note: Our Promoter Group does not hold any Equity Shares in our Company. 

 

5. The ex-rigths price of the Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of SEBI SAST Regulations is ₹87.29 

 

6. At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company. 

 

7. All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of 

Offer. Further, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue, shall be fully paid up. 

 

8. Shareholding pattern of our Company as per the last quarterly filing with the Stock Exchange in compliance 

with the SEBI Listing Regulations:  

 

i. The shareholding pattern of our Company as on June 30, 2024, can be accessed on the website of the BSE 

at: https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/emerald-leisures-ltd/emerall/507265/shareholding-

pattern/  

 

ii. Statement showing holding of Equity Shares of the Promoters and Promoter Group including details of 

lock-in, pledge of and encumbrance thereon, as on June 30, 2024 can be accessed on the website of the 

BSE at: 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=507265&qtrid=122.00&QtrN

ame=June%202024   
 

iii. Statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category “Public” including 

shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as on June 30, 2024 can be 

accessed on the website of the BSE at: 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=507265&qtrid=122.00&Qtr

Name=June%202024   
 

9. Details of the Shareholders holding more than 1% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share 

capital 

 

The details of shareholders of our Company holding more than 1% of the issued, subscribed and paid -up Equity 

Share capital of our Company, as on June 30, 2024 are available at: https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-

price/emerald-leisures-ltd/emerall/507265/shareholding-pattern/    

 

  

https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/emerald-leisures-ltd/emerall/507265/shareholding-pattern/
https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/emerald-leisures-ltd/emerall/507265/shareholding-pattern/
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=507265&qtrid=122.00&QtrName=June%202024
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=507265&qtrid=122.00&QtrName=June%202024
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=507265&qtrid=122.00&QtrName=June%202024
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=507265&qtrid=122.00&QtrName=June%202024
https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/emerald-leisures-ltd/emerall/507265/shareholding-pattern/
https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/emerald-leisures-ltd/emerall/507265/shareholding-pattern/
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 

 

Our Company intends to utilize the proceeds raised through the Issue, after deducting Issue related expenses (“Net Proceeds”) 

towards funding the following objects: 

1. Repayment, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings (including interest thereon) availed by our 

Company; and 

2. General Corporate Purposes 

(Collectively, referred to herein as the “Objects”) 

 

The objects and objects incidental or ancillary to the main objects as stated in the Memorandum of Association enable 

us to undertake (i) the activities for which the borrowings were availed, and which are proposed to be repaid/prepaid 

from the Net Proceeds and (ii) activities for which funds earmarked towards general corporate purposes shall be used. 

Further, our objects as stated in the Memorandum of Association do not restrict us from undertaking the activities for 

which the funds are being raised by our Company through this Issue. 

Issue Proceeds and Net Proceeds 

 

The details of the Issue Proceeds are set forth in the table below: 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Amount 

Gross Proceeds from the Issue* 1,251.55 

Less: Estimated Issue related expenses 36.92 

Net Proceeds 1,214.63 
*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights 

Entitlement ratio. In the event the Issue is not fully subscribed, the Company shall first utilise the Net Proceeds towards repayments 

of certain borrowings as well as repayment of instalments (monthly or otherwise) of the borrowings up to the estimated amount 

mentioned above, and use the remaining Net Proceeds, if any, towards general corporate purposes, provided that the total amount 

utilised towards general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

 

Requirement of funds and utilisation of Net Proceeds  

 

The proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds by our Company is set forth in the table below: 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars 
Estimated  

Amount 

Repayment, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings (including interest thereon) 

availed by our Company 
950.00 

General corporate purposes* 264.63 

Total Net Proceeds** 1,214.63 
*The amount utilised for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

** Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment. 

 

Schedule of Implementation and deployment of Net Proceeds 

 

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds towards the Objects in accordance with the estimated schedule of 

implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below: 

 

Particulars  Amount to be funded from the Net 

Proceeds 

Repayment, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings 

(including interest thereon) availed by our Company 
950.00 

General corporate purposes* 264.63 

Net Proceeds^ 1,214.63 
*Subject to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment and the Allotment. The amount utilised for general corporate purposes shall 

not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

^Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted as per the Rights 

Entitlement ratio.  

 

The above fund requirements are based on our current business plan, management estimates and have not been appraised 

by any bank or financial institution. Our Company’s funding requirements and deployment schedules are subject to 
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revision in the future at the discretion of our Board and will not subject to monitoring by any independent agency. In 

view of the competitive environment of the industry in which we operate, we may have to revise our business plan from 

time to time and consequently, our funding requirements may also change. Our historical funding requirements may 

not be reflective of our future funding plans. We may have to revise our funding requirements, and deployment from 

time to time on account of various factors such as economic and business conditions, increased competition and other 

external factors which may not be within our control. This may entail rescheduling the proposed utilisation of the Net 

Proceeds and changing the allocation of funds from its planned allocation at the discretion of our management, subject 

to compliance with applicable law. Further, in case the Net Proceeds are not completely utilised in a scheduled Fiscal 

Year due to any reason, the same would be utilised (in part or full) in the next Fiscal Year/subsequent period as may be 

determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable law.   

 

In case of any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for any of the Objects of the Issue or a shortfall in 

raising requisite capital from the Net Proceeds, such additional funds for a particular activity will be met through means 

available to us, including by way of incremental debt and/or internal accruals.   

 

Means of Finance 

 

Our Company proposes to meet the entire funding requirements for the proposed objects of the Issue from the Net 

Proceeds. Therefore, our Company is not required to make firm arrangements of finance under Regulation 62(1)(c) of 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations through verifiable means towards 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the 

amount to be raised from the Issue. 

Details of the objects of the Issue 

 

a. Repayment of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings (including interest thereon) availed by our 

Company.  

 

Our Company has, in the ordinary course of business entered into financing arrangements with various banks, financial 

institutions, and other entities. The borrowing arrangements entered into by the Company comprise, among others, 

term loans and unsecured loans. As of August 31, 2024, the Company had a total borrowing amounting to ₹ 8,615.44 

lakhs on a standalone basis.  

Our Company proposes to utilize an amount of ₹ 950.00 lakhs from the Net Proceeds towards full or partial repayment 

of principal and interest amount of the borrowings availed by our Company from various banks, financial institutions, 

and other entities, as elaborated in the table below. The repayment will  

(a) reduce the outstanding indebtedness of our Company and enable utilization of the internal accruals for 

further investment in business growth and expansion. 

(b) improve our debt-equity ratio, which will further enable us to reduce our borrowing costs and increase 

the availability of other required facilities from banks/financial institutions; and 

(c) improve our ability to raise further resources in the future to fund potential business development 

opportunities. 

 

The following table provides details of borrowings availed by our Company, which are outstanding as on August 31, 

2024, out of which our Company may repay and/or prepay, in full or in part, any or all of the borrowings, from the 

Net Proceeds up to an amount of ₹950.00 lakhs:
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Details of the Borrowing of Emerald Leisures Limited proposed to be repaid or pre-paid out of the proceeds of the Issue: 

 
Name of the 

Lender 

Nature of 

Borrowing 

Long-

term/Short 

term 

Amount 

sanctioned 

as on 

31.08.2024 

Amount 

outstanding 

as on 

31.08.2024  

(₹ in lakhs) 

Interest rate 

p.a. as on 

31.08.2024 

Tenure Purpose of 

availing 

loan 

Security Prepayment 

penalty/conditions 

(₹ in lakhs)  

Aditya Birla 

Finance  

Limited 

Term Loan Long term 2,500.00 958.51 14% 103 

months  

INR 2,220 

lacs is 

towards 

take-over of 

its existing 

outstanding 

term loan 

facility from 

Axis bank 

and balance 

amount of 

INR 280 

lacs to be 

reimbursed 

to the 

borrower 

Note 1 In case borrower 

desires to 

prepayment of loan, 

the prepayment of 

loan will be 

accepted on the 

terms and conditions 

to be decided by 

ABFL from time to 

time.  
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Name of the 

Lender 

Nature of 

Borrowing 

Long-

term/Short 

term 

Amount 

sanctioned 

as on 

31.08.2024 

Amount 

outstanding 

as on 

31.08.2024  

(₹ in lakhs) 

Interest rate 

p.a. as on 

31.08.2024 

Tenure Purpose of 

availing 

loan 

Security Prepayment 

penalty/conditions 

(₹ in lakhs)  

Aditya Birla 

Finance  

Limited 

Term Loan Long term 435.52 23.44 14% 48 months  Sanctioned 

under 

ECLGS to 

meet the 

outstanding 

liabilities 

and restart 

the business 

i. Second charge over the 

existing Primary and 

Collateral securities 

including mortgage created 

in favour of ABFL for the 

existing facility of INR 2500 

lakhs as granted in terms of 

the Sanction Letter Ref. No. 

ABF/XTL/JUNE18/N0119 

dated Jun-22-2018 and 

ABF/XTL/JUNE18/A0143 

dated June 27, 2018 and any 

amendments thereto from 

time to time granted by 

ABFL. However, if the 

existing securities are under 

multiple 

banking/consortium, then the 

NOC /Letter ceding second 

charge from the existing 

lenders to be procured 

Nil 

Aditya Birla 

Finance  

Limited 

Term Loan Long term 244.65 240.82 13% 79 months  Capex 

expenditure 

Note 1 In case borrower 

desires to 

prepayment of loan, 

the prepayment of 

loan will be 

accepted on the 

terms and conditions 

to be decided by 

ABFL from time to 

time. 
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Name of the 

Lender 

Nature of 

Borrowing 

Long-

term/Short 

term 

Amount 

sanctioned 

as on 

31.08.2024 

Amount 

outstanding 

as on 

31.08.2024  

(₹ in lakhs) 

Interest rate 

p.a. as on 

31.08.2024 

Tenure Purpose of 

availing 

loan 

Security Prepayment 

penalty/conditions 

(₹ in lakhs)  

Aditya Birla 

Finance  

Limited 

Term Loan Long term 435.52 344.68 12% 72 months   Sanctioned 

under 

ECLGS to 

meet the 

outstanding 

liabilities 

and restart 

the business 

i. Second charge over the 

existing Primary and 

Collateral securities 

including mortgage created 

in favour of ABFL for the 

existing facility of INR 2500 

lakhs as granted in terms of 

the Sanction Letter Ref. No. 

ABF/XTL/JUNE18/N0119 

dated Jun-22-2018, 

ABF/XTL/JUNE18/A0143 

dated June 27, 2018 and 

Sanction letter (ECLGS) Ref. 

No. ABF/XTL/JUL20/E0307 

dated July 16, 2020 and any 

amendments thereto from 

time to time granted by 

ABFL. However, if the 

existing securities are under 

multiple 

banking/consortium, then the 

NOC /Letter ceding second 

charge from the existing 

lenders to be procured. 

 

ii. Creation of security 

interest on assets created out 

of the facility (Please check 

the end use and fill this) 

Nil 

Dhwani 

Mercantile 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

2,279.50 2,279.50 10% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Juhu Resorts 

& 

Development 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

2,218.65 2,218.65 10% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 
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Name of the 

Lender 

Nature of 

Borrowing 

Long-

term/Short 

term 

Amount 

sanctioned 

as on 

31.08.2024 

Amount 

outstanding 

as on 

31.08.2024  

(₹ in lakhs) 

Interest rate 

p.a. as on 

31.08.2024 

Tenure Purpose of 

availing 

loan 

Security Prepayment 

penalty/conditions 

(₹ in lakhs)  

Jashwant 

Mehta 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

511.75 511.75 10% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Chetan Mehta Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

25.00 25.00 10% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Devangi 

Welfare 

Foundation 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

25.00 25.00 12% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Giri 

Mercantile 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

871.61 871.61 12% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

IRIS 

Mercantile 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

400.00 400.00 12% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Ramaben 

Welfare 

Foundation 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

25.00 25.00 12% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Subra Trading 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Payable on 

demand 

Unsecured 

Loan 

691.48 691.48 12% Repayable 

on 

Demand  

General 

Corporate 

expenditure 

- Nil 

Total      10,663.68 8,615.44 
 

        

*As certified by P G Bhagwat LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 101118W) vide its certificate dated September 9, 2024 has confirmed that these borrowings have 

been utilised for the purposes for which they were availed. 
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Note 1:  

Primary Security: Hypothecation of all present and future current assets of the company. 

 

Collateral Securtity : 

 

Residential Property : Residential flat on 6th floor bearing no 602 situated at Mehta Residency plot no 111 hindu 

colony, Dadar east Mumbai, owned by M/S Neptune Resorts & development Pvt Ltd 

 

Commercial Property : Commercial office on ground floor entire west wing situated at Manu Mansion, CS No, 

220 and New Survey No 9315 (Part), Opp, old custom house road, Fort Mumbai Owned by M/s. Techno Property 

Developers Pvt Ltd. 

 

Commercial Property: Commercial office on first and Mezzanine floor, west wing situated at Manu Mansion, CS 

No, 220 and New Survey No 9315 (Part), Opp, old custom house road, Fort Mumbai Owned by M/s. Dhwani 

Finance & Investment Pvt Ltd. Which is currently known as M/s. Dhwani Mercantile Pvt Ltd. 

 

Listed Shares: Pledge of shares to the extent of 30% of the total paid up capital of company. 

 

Listed Shares: Pledge of shares to the extent of 21% of the total paid up capital of company. 

Residential Property: Residential flat on 303 situated at Mehta Residency plot no 111 hindu colony, Dadar east 

Mumbai, owned by Mr. Chetan Mehta and Mr. Jashwant Mehta. 

 

Land & Building: Land & Building (Club Emerald) located at plot bearing CTS No 366/15 – A behind Mangal 

Anand Hospital, CR Vyas Marg Swastik Park, Chembur Mumbai 400071 owned by Emerald Leisure Ltd.  

 

The amounts outstanding against the loans and the interest rates as disclosed above may vary from time to time, 

in accordance with the amounts drawn down, instalments repaid and the prevailing interest rates. 

 

The selection of borrowings proposed to be repaid by us shall be based on various factors including: (i) any 

conditions attached to the borrowings restricting our ability to repay the borrowings and time taken to fulfil such 

requirements, (ii) provisions of any laws, rules and regulations governing such borrowings; (iii) receipt of 

consents for prepayment from the respective lenders, and (iv) other commercial considerations including, among 

others, the quantum of monthly/quarterly instalments, the interest/ coupon rate on the borrowings, the amount of 

the borrowings outstanding, terms and conditions of consents and waivers, presence of onerous terms and 

conditions and the remaining tenor of the borrowings. Further, we may utilise the Net Proceeds for part or full 

repayment of any such additional borrowings obtained to refinance any of our existing borrowings. We will 

either repay the due instalments of the borrowings or make a bullet repayment of the borrowings identified in 

the table above, depending upon the repayment schedule of such borrowings.  

In addition to the above, we may, from time to time, enter into further financing arrangements, such as 

undertaking financing from banks and financial institutions and draw down funds thereunder. In such cases or 

in case any of the above borrowings are repaid or pre-paid or further drawn down prior to the completion of the 

Issue, we may utilize the Net Proceeds towards repayment or pre-payment of such additional indebtedness, 

including towards repayment or pre-payment of any new borrowings taken by the Company. 

 

b. General Corporate Purposes 

 

Our Company intends to deploy the balance Net Proceeds aggregating to ₹ 264.63 lakhs towards general 

corporate purposes, provided that the amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% 

of the Gross Issue Proceeds. Such utilisation towards general corporate purposes shall be to drive our business 

growth, including, amongst other things, (i) funding growth opportunities, including strategic initiatives; (ii) 

acquiring assets, such as plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, and intangibles; (iii) working capital 

requirements; (iv) repayment/prepayment of loans other than mentioned in the table above; (v) servicing of 

borrowings including payment of interest; (vi) meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in the course 

of any business; (v) brand building and other marketing expenses; and (vi) any other purpose as permitted by 

applicable laws. 

 

Our management will have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for general corporate purposes under the overall 

guidance and policies of our Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the purposes will be 
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determined by the Board, based on the amount actually available under this head and the business requirements 

of our Company, from time to time.  

 

In the event that we are unable to utilize the entire amount that we have currently estimated for use out of Net 

Proceeds in a Fiscal, we will utilize such unutilized amount in the subsequent Fiscals. 

 

Estimated Issue Related Expenses 

 

The estimated Issue related expenses are as follows: 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars 
Estimated 

expenses 

As a % of total 

estimated issue 

related expenses 

As a % of issue 

size 

Fees of Registrar to the Issue 2.95                        7.99  0.24% 

Fees to Legal advisors 
                             

12.00  
                    32.50  0.96% 

Other professional service providers and statutory 

fees 

                      

8.00  
       21.67  0.64% 

Fees payable to regulators, including depositories, 

stock exchange, and SEBI  

                        

11.50  
           31.15  0.92% 

Statutory Advertising, Marketing, and Printing and 

Distribution  

                     

2.30  
            6.23  0.18% 

Expenses relating to advertising, printing, 

distribution, marketing and stationery expenses, 

Other expenses (including miscellaneous expenses 

and stamp duty)  

                    

0.17  
                       0.46  0.01% 

Total 36.92       100.00  2.95% 

    
*All Issue related expenses will be paid out of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue. In case of any difference between the 

estimated Issue related expenses and actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount 

allocated towards general corporate purposes.  

 

Bridge Financing Facilities 

 

Our Company has not availed any bridge loans from any banks or financial institutions as on the date of this 

Letter of Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds. 

 

Interim Use of Net Proceeds 

 

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have the 

flexibility to deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, 

our Company will temporarily deposit the Net Proceeds in one or more scheduled commercial banks (as included 

in the second schedule to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934) or in any such other manner as permitted under 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

Monitoring Utilization of Funds from the Issue 

 

There is no requirement for a monitoring agency as the Issue size is less than ₹10,000.00 lakhs and deployment 

of the issue proceeds is entirely at the discretion of the Company. The Board or its duly authorized committees 

will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. We will disclose the utilization of the Net Proceeds, 

including interim use, under a separate head specifying the purpose for which such proceeds have been utilized 

along with details, if any in relation to all the Net Proceeds that have not been utilised thereby also indicating 

form of investments, if any, of the unutilized Net Proceeds in our balance sheet for the relevant financial years.  

 

We will also on an annual basis, prepare a statement of the funds which have been utilized for purposes other 

than those stated in this Letter of Offer, if any, and place it before the Audit Committee and the Board. Such 

disclosure will be made only until all the Issue Proceeds have been utilized in full. The statement shall be certified 

by our Statutory Auditor. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we will 
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furnish to the Stock Exchange on a quarterly basis, a statement including deviations and variations, if any, in the 

utilization of the Issue Proceeds from the Objects of the Issue as stated above. This information will also be 

published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial results, after placing the same before 

the Audit Committee. 

 

Appraising entity 

 

None of the objects of the Issue for which the Net Proceeds will be utilised has been appraised. 

Strategic or Financial Partners  

There are no strategic or financial partners to the Objects of the Issue. 

Key Industry Regulations for the Objects of the Issue 

 

No additional provisions of any acts, regulations, rules and other laws are or will be applicable to the Company 

for the proposed Objects of the Issue. 

Variation in Objects 

 

In accordance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, except in 

circumstances of business exigencies, our Company shall not vary the Objects of the Issue without our Company 

being authorised to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, 

the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution (the ‘Postal Ballot 

Notice’) shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Postal 

Ballot Notice will simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in the vernacular 

language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated. For details see ‘Risk Factors – Any variation 

in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be subject to certain compliance requirements, including prior 

shareholder’s approval on page 23. 

 

Other Confirmations 

 

No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoters, Promoter 

Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of our Company, except for the part of the Net Proceeds that 

will be utilized towards the  repayment and/  or prepayment  of  loans  availed  by  our  Company  from 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta, the Promoters of our Company and payments made 

in the ordinary course of business.  
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS 

 

The Board of Directors 

Emerald Leisures Limited 

Club Emerald Sports Complex,  

Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital,  

Chembur, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 071, India 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

Re: Proposed rights issue of equity shares of face value of ₹ 5 each (the “Equity Shares” and such offering, 

the “Issue”) of Emerald Leisures Limited (the “Company”) pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI Regulations”) and the 

Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the ‘Act’). 

 

We hereby report that the enclosed Statement prepared by Emerald Leisures Limited (the “Company”) states the 

possible special tax benefits available to the Company and to the shareholders of the Company under the Income-

tax Act, 1961 and Income tax Rules, 1962 including amendments made by Finance Act 2024 (hereinafter referred 

to as “Income Tax Laws”), the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax 

Act, 2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Customs Act, 1962, Customs Tariff Act, 1975 as 

amended, the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 (read with Foreign Trade Policy) including 

the relevant rules and regulations, circulars and notifications issued there under (hereinafter referred to as 

“Indirect Tax Laws”), presently in force in India under the respective tax laws as on the signing date, for inclusion 

in the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer for the proposed rights issue of the Company to the existing 

shareholders. These benefits are dependent on the Company or the shareholders of the Company fulfilling the 

conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Tax Laws. Hence, the ability of the Company or the 

shareholders of the Company to derive the special tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which 

is based on business imperatives the Company may face in the future and accordingly, the Company or the 

shareholders of the Company may or may not choose to fulfill.  

 

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement cover only possible special tax benefits available to the Company 

and to the shareholders of the Company and are not exhaustive and also do not cover any general tax benefits 

available to the Company. The tax benefits listed herein are only the possible special tax benefits which may be 

available under the current direct tax laws presently in force in India. Further, any benefits available under any 

other laws within or outside India have not been examined and covered by this Statement.  

 

Further, the preparation of the enclosed Statement and its contents was the responsibility of the management of 

the Company. We were informed that this Statement is only intended to provide general information to the 

investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the 

individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her 

own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed 

offer. Neither are we suggesting nor advising the investor to invest in the Issue based on this statement.  

 

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 

Purposes (Revised 2016)’ (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(‘ICAI’). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by 

the ICAI.  

 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, ‘Quality 

Control for Firms that Performs Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial information and Other Assurance 

and Related Services Engagements’ 

 

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether: 

 

• The Company or the shareholders of the Company will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or 

• The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits, where applicable, have been/would be met with.  

 

The contents of the enclosed Statement are based on the information, explanations and representations obtained 

from the Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company. 

Our views expressed herein are based on the facts and assumptions indicated to us. No assurance is given that the 
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revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the existing 

provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume 

responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to the Company for any 

claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, 

as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not 

be liable to any other person in respect of this Statement.  

 

This statement is solely for your information and not intended for general circulation or publication and is not to 

be reproduced or used for any other purpose without our prior written consent, other than for inclusion of extracts 

of this statement in the Draft Letter of Offer and Letter of Offer and submission of this statement to the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India, the stock exchange where the Equity Shares of the Company are proposed to be 

listed, in connection with the proposed Issue, as the case may be. 

 

For and on behalf of P G Bhagwat LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number:101118W / W100682 

 

 

CA Shriniwas Shreeram Gadgil 

Partner 

ICAI Membership Number:120570 

UDIN: 24120570BKCEYX2241 

Date: May 2, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

 

Encl: As above 

 

M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co. 

State Bank Building, 4thFloor 

NGN Vaidya Marg, 

Fort, Mumbai- 400 023 

(Crawford Bayley & Co. referred to as the “Legal Counsel”) 
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ANNEXURE I 

 

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO EMERALD LEISURES 

LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERSUNDER THE INCOME TAX LAWS 

 

1. Special tax benefits available to the Company under the Income Tax Laws 

 

There are no special tax benefits available to the Company. 

 

2. Special tax benefits available to the shareholders under the Income Tax Laws 

 

There are no special tax benefits available to the shareholders of the Company. 

 

Notes: 

 

a. The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis 

or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares.  

 

b. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect tax 

law benefits or benefit under any other law.  

 

c. The above statement of possible special tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the 

assessment year 2025-26. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholder fulfilling 

the conditions prescribed under the relevant laws. 

 

d. This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, 

each investor is advised to consult his/her own tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her 

investment in the shares of the Company.  

 

e. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our 

views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from 

time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes.  
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ANNEXURE II 

 

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO EMERALD LEISURES 

LIMITED(THE “COMPANY”) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERSUNDER THE INDIRECT TAX LAWS 

 

1. Special tax benefits available to the Company under the Indirect Tax Laws 

 

There are no special indirect tax benefits available to the Company. 

 

2. Special tax benefits available to the shareholders under the Indirect Tax Laws 

 

There are no special indirect tax benefits applicable in the hands of shareholders for investing in the shares of 

the Company. 

 

Notes: 

 

a. The above statement is based upon the provisions of the specified Indirect tax laws, and judicial interpretation 

thereof prevailing in the country, as on the date of this Annexure. 

 

b. The above statement covers only above-mentioned indirect tax laws benefits and does not cover any direct 

tax law benefits or benefit under any other law.  

 

c. This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice.  

 

d. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our 

views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from 

time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. 
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SECTION IV – ABOUT THE COMPANY 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

 

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from 

publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources. We have taken extracts from the 

report titled ‘FHRAI Hotel Industry Survey 2023” and “Tourism-and-Hospitality-May-2024” issued by the 

Federation of Hotel and Restaurant Associations of India (“FHRAI”) and India Brand Equity Foundation 

(“IBEF”), respectively. The data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. None of the 

Company and any other person connected with the Issue have independently verified this information. Industry 

sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from believed 

to be reliable, but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and their 

reliability cannot be assured. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of 

specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications may also 

base their information on estimates, projection forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. 

Accordingly, investors should not place undue reliance on information. Such data involves risks, uncertainties 

and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in “Risk 

Factors- Industry information included in this Letter of Offer has been derived from publicly available sources. 

There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry information is complete 

or accurate and neither has our company independently verified the same. Further, despite our efforts to follow 

up with IBEF and FRHAI, we are yet to receive consent for the inclusion of data from their reports.” on page 33. 

Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such information. Further, despite our efforts to 

follow up with IBEF and FRHAI, we are yet to receive consent for the inclusion of data from their reports.  

 

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the reader’s 

familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data 

gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies 

and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. 

 

Overview of Global Economic  

 

Global growth is projected to be in line with the April 2024 World Economic Outlook (WEO) forecast, at 3.2 

percent in 2024 and 3.3 percent in 2025. However, varied momentum in activity at the turn of the year has 

somewhat narrowed the output divergence across economies as cyclical factors wane and activity becomes better 

aligned with its potential. Services price inflation is holding up progress on disinflation, which is complicating 

monetary policy normalization. Upside risks to inflation have thus increased, raising the prospect of higher-for-

even-longer interest rates, in the context of escalating trade tensions and increased policy uncertainty. To manage 

these risks and preserve growth, the policy mix should be sequenced carefully to achieve price stability and 

replenish diminished buffers. 

 

Inflation is declining with rapid rate rises but remains elevated amid Financial Sectors stress 

 

Favorable global supply developments, inflation is expected to fall from an annual average of 6.8 percent in 2023 

to 5.9 percent in 2024 and 4.5 percent in 2025. A more front-loaded decline is expected for advanced economies, 

with inflation falling by 2.0 percentage points in 2024, while it declines in 2025 only in emerging market and 

developing economies. Advanced economies are also expected to return sooner to rates near their pre-pandemic 

(2017–19) average, with inflation averaging 2.0 percent in 2025, about a year before emerging market and 

developing economies are expected to return to their pre-pandemic average near 5.0 percent. The fall in global 

inflation in 2024 reflects a broad-based decline in global core inflation. This dynamic differs from that in 2023, 

when global core inflation fell a little on an annual average basis and headline inflation declined mainly on account 

of lower fuel and food price inflation. In 2024, core inflation is expected to fall by 1.2 percentage points after 

contracting by just 0.2 percentage point in 2023. As is the case for headline inflation, the fall in core inflation is 

faster for advanced economies. The drivers of declining core inflation differ by country but include the effects of 

still-tight monetary policies, a related softening in labor markets, and fading pass-through effects from earlier 

declines in relative prices, notably in that of energy.  
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Inflation (and Expectations) in Decline. 

 

Global disinflation is slowing, signaling bumps along the path. This reflects different sectoral dynamics: the 

persistence of higher-than-average inflation in services prices, tempered to some extent by stronger disinflation 

in the prices of goods. Nominal wage growth remains brisk, above price inflation in some countries, partly 

reflecting the outcome of wage negotiations earlier this year and short-term inflation expectations that remain 

above target. The uptick in sequential inflation in the United States during the first quarter has delayed policy 

normalization. This has put other advanced economies, such as the euro area and Canada, where underlying 

inflation is cooling more in line with expectations, ahead of the United States in the easing cycle. At the same 

time, a number of central banks in emerging market economies remain cautious in regard to cutting rates owing 

to external risks triggered by changes in interest rate differentials and associated depreciation of those economies’ 

currencies against the dollar. 

 

G20 Emerging Markets in the Global Economy 

 

China’s accession to the World Trade Organization in December 2001 represents a critical turning point for G20 

EM integration into the global economy. Since then, the G20 EM share of global trade has increased almost two-

thirds faster than that of trade among other countries, promoting global trade and country-wide diversification. In 

addition, in the two decades since accession, the share of G20 EM goods imports and exports in total goods trade 

has doubled, whereas foreign direct investment (FDI) from G20 EMs increased from about 6 percent of total FDI 

in 2005 to about 10 percent just before the pandemic.  

 

Weaker growth in China  

 

A sharper-than-expected slowdown in China would adversely affect global trade as well as commodity and 

financial markets. The property sector could fail to stabilize if persistent uncertainty holds back prospective 

buyers, or if mounting financial stress among developers constrain the financing of new projects or force a halt to 

existing ones. Persistent uncertainty and weak sentiment could hold back household spending and private 

investment. Against the backdrop of high and rising public and private debt, a sharp slowdown could weaken 

credit quality and become self-reinforcing, with financial stress exacerbating the challenge of servicing existing 

debts, generating negative feedback loops to activity. The international spillovers of a sharp slowdown in China 

could be severe. China’s importance as an export destination has continued to grow in recent decades, especially 

for EMDEs. At the same time, China has become a much more important source of demand for commodities, 

notably energy and metals. More recently, the country has emerged as a major consumer of commodities central 

to the green energy transition. The direct spillovers would be most acute for countries deeply engaged in trade 

with China— particularly those enmeshed in global value chains with China, including many export-oriented 

economies in the East Asia and Pacific region. In addition, exporters of commodities in Latin America, notably 

iron ore and copper, would face particularly adverse effects. Weaker activity in China would also weigh on global 

energy demand and prices, adversely impacting energy exporters. 

 

Global Economic Outlook 

 

As per the International Monetary Fund (IMF)’s World Economic Outlook July  2024, the world economy 

continue growing at 3.2 percent during 2024 and forecasted to 3.3% in 2025, at the same pace as in 2023. A slight 

acceleration for advanced economies—where growth is expected to rise from 1.6 percent in 2023 to 1.7 percent 

in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 2025—will be offset by a modest slowdown in emerging market and developing 

economies from 4.4 percent in 2023 to 4.3 percent in both 2024 and 2025. 

 

Overview of the World Economic Outlook Projection  

 

Name of the Country/ Economy Actuals Projections 

2023 2024 2025 

World Output 3.2 3.2 3.3 

Advanced Economies 1.7 1.7 1.8 

United States 2.5 2.6 1.9 

Euro Area 0.5 0.9 1.5 

Japan 1.9 0.7 1.0 

United Kingdom 0.1 0.7 1.5 

Canada 1.2 1.3 2.4 
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Other Advanced Economies 1.8 2.0 2.2 

Emerging Market and Developing Economies 4.4 4.3 4.3 

Emerging and Developing Asia 5.7 5.4 5.1 

China 5.2 5.0 4.5 

India 8.2 7.0 6.5 

Emerging and Developing Europe 3.2 3.2 2.6 

Russia 3.6 3.2 1.5 

Latin America and the Caribbean 2.3 1.9 2.7 

Brazil 2.9 2.1 2.4 

Mexico 3.2 2.2 1.6 

Middle East and Central Asia 2.0 2.4 4.0 

Saudi Arabia -0.8 1.7 4.7 

Sub-Saharan Africa 3.4 3.7 4.1 

Nigeria 2.9 3.1 3.0 

South Africa 0.7 0.9 1.2 

(Source – IMF World Economic Outlook, July 2024) 

 

Indian Economic Outlook 

India’s economy has rebounded strongly from the pandemic to become an important driver of global growth. 

After surging during FY2022/23, headline inflation has, on average, moderated although it remains volatile. 

Employment has surpassed the pre-pandemic level, and the informal sector continues to dominate while 

formalization has progressed. The financial sector has been resilient, largely unaffected by global financial stress 

in early 2023. While the budget deficit has eased, public debt remains elevated and fiscal buffers need to be rebuilt. 

Globally, India’s 2023 G20 presidency has demonstrated the country’s important role in advancing multilateral 

policy priorities. GDP growth reached 7.0 percent in FY2022/23, moderating from 9.7 percent in FY2021. Growth 

has been supported by robust consumption stemming from pent-up demand of households and strong investment, 

with historically high levels of public capital expenditure. 

 
 

Note: P – Projected 

Source: IMF World Economic Outlook – July 2024 

 

India’s hospitality industry 

Some key characteristics of India’s hospitality industry, relevant for better understanding of the market as a 

whole are briefly set out in this section: 

• The Indian travel and tourism industry is expected to record an annual growth at 7.1% per annum and 

achieve 9.2% of GDP to reach US$ 512 billion. 
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• In 2020, the travel & tourism industry’s contribution to the GDP was US$ 121.9 billion. In 2019, it 

contributed US$ 212.8 billion to the GDP.  

• India has a total of approved 1,716 hotels as on 30th June, 2023 by Hotel and Restaurant Approval and 

Classification Committee (HRACC) as per Ministry of Tourism guidelines.  

• As per the Ministry of Tourism, Foreign Tourist Arrivals (FTAs) in October 2023 were 8,11,411.  

• FTAs during the period January-October 2023 were 72,43,680 as compared to 46,55,160 in January-

October 2022.  

• The percentage share of Foreign Tourist Arrivals in India during October 2023 among the top 5 ports was 

highest at Delhi Airport (34.74%) followed by Mumbai Airport (14.75%), Haridaspur Land Check Post 

(9.03%), Chennai Airport (7.05%), Bengaluru Airport (5.71%). 

 

Segments of Tourism and Hospitality 

 

 
Source: IBEF Tourism and Hospitality, May 2024 

 

Industry Size – Approved Hotels list as on 30th June, 2023 as per India Tourism Statistics 2023 issued by 

Ministry of Tourism, GOI. 

 

Sr No. Category No. of Hotels No. of Rooms 

1 5 Star Deluxe 183 41,661 

2 5 Star 204 25,356 

3 4 Star 361 18,956 

4 3 Star 537 17,175 

5 2 Star 23 879 

6 1 Star 18 610 

7 Apartment Hotel 1 80 

9 Heritage Hotels 53 1385 

10 B&B Establishment 336 1693 

 Total 1716 107795 

 

The top category of hotels i.e. from 5 Star Deluxe to 3 Star hotels has major share of hotels and rooms ie 

approximately 2/3rd of total approved hotels with more than 90% share in rooms. 

 

Room Supply – by Markets 

 

Markets Rooms Total 
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Delhi 10,667 

Kerala 15,093 

Maharashtra 16,557 

Goa 5,369 

Tamil Nadu 5,889 

Karnataka 8,245 

Others 45,975 

Total 1,07,795 

 

Rooms – Average Monthly Occupancy 

 
Source: FHRAI Hotel Industry Survey 2023, Horwath HTL 

 

• There was a complete occupancy recovery in FY23 over FY20. Infact, for all months barring January 2023 

occupancy was higher than corresponding month in FY20. This was an outcome of pent-up demand post 

Omicron wave and growing travel demand arising out of positive economic conditions.  

 

• There was an impact of pent-up demand on occupancies during the first six months of financial year. 

Hence, occupancies were higher than typical monthly average. Travel patterns started normalizing in the 

second half of financial year. 

 

Rooms – Average Monthly Rates 
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(Source: FHRAI Survey Report 2023, Horwath HTL) 

• The higher rates earned in FY2022-23 are actually such as should normally be attached to the quality of 

several of our hotels and resorts. In that sense, we have earned what is our rightful due, a set of returns that we 

richly deserve.  

• Hotels have achieved re-rating of their products in the eye of the market. The inherent rate willingness of 

guests is sizeably higher than previously, with the extent of increase dependent upon product, experience, and 

location.  

• There was strong rate growth in 5 Star Deluxe hotels after September 2022 reflecting the price paying capacity 

of the domestic market. Rates Between September 2022 and March 2023 the ADRs ranged between Rs.10.3 

and Rs.15.2k. 

 

Market Segmentation

 
(Source: FHRAI Survey Report 2023, Horwath HTL) 

• Business travel did not fully recover in FY23. Demand from business travel continues to grow. 

• Business travel / corporate demand contribution recovered for all segments except 5 Star Deluxe hotels. 

While 4 star and 3 star hotels had 35%+ share of business demand, share at 5 Star hotels was 26% and 

5 Star Deluxe was only 20%. This indicates a slower corporate demand recovery in luxury / premium 

positioned hotels.  

• While there was a reduction in leisure FIT demand share compared to previous year it was partially 

compensated by the growth in leisure groups demand which was negligible in FY22. It was good to see 

return of leisure group demand. It is also possible that travel in FY23 was a combination of business 

and leisure purpose resulting in a significant increase in Other FIT demand as compared to previous 

year. 
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• Groups demand remained at similar levels mainly driven by weddings demand. MICE group demand 

was limited in first half of FY23.  

• Airline demand increases with opening up several local markets and international destinations. 

• Demand from essential services and quarantine rooms was almost nil as the pandemic situation 

normalised. 

Growth Drivers 

 

• Rising FDI - The hotel & tourism sector received a cumulative FDI inflow of US$ 17.29 billion between 

April 2000-September 2023. . This constitutes 2.60% of the total FDI inflows across sectors. Carlson 

Group currently has 94 operating hotels and is planning to add about 30 more hotels by the end of 2023. 

• Infrastructure - More than half of the Ministry of Tourism’s budget is channelised for funding the 

development of destinations, circuits, mega projects as well as rural tourism infrastructure projects. 

Ministry of Tourism has sanctioned financial assistance of around US$ 76.35 million to States/UTs for 

infrastructure development under Coastal Circuit theme of Swadesh Darshan Scheme. A total of 48,775 

accommodation units have been registered on the National Integrated Database of Hospitality Industry 

(NIDHI) portal and 11,220 units have self-certified for SAATHI standards in September 2022. 

• Growing Demand - Domestic expenditure on tourism is expected to rise due to the growing income of 

households. Several niche offerings such as medical tourism & eco-tourism are expected to create more 

demand. By 2029, India’s tourism sector is expected to reach Rs. 35 trillion (US$ 488 billion) with a growth 

of 6.7% and accounting for 9.2% of the total economy. 

• Policy Support - In the Union Budget 2023-24: US$ 290.4 million has been allocated to the Ministry of 

Tourism. 50 tourist destinations to be developed for providing a wholesome tourism experience under 

‘Swadesh Darshan Scheme’. An amount of US$ 30.25 million has been allocated for the PRASHAD 

Scheme aiming for holistic development of selected pilgrimage destinations in the country. 
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OUR BUSINESS 

 

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain 

forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in Equity Shares, 

Shareholders should read this entire Letter of Offer. An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of 

risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares, you should read “Risk 

Factors” on page 19, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as 

“Financial Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 

Operations” on pages 78 and 82, respectively, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, 

financial condition or results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or 

implied by these forward looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this 

section is derived from our Audited Standalone Financial Statements and Limited Review Unaudited Financial 

Results. 

 

Overview 

 

We are an integrated hospitality company engaged in the business of providing club, banquet halls and 

accommodation services. We operate our Club under the name ‘Club Emerald’ which is located at Swastik Park, 

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai - 400071, Maharashtra. Our Club, banquet halls and rooms are 

located in a single business premises enabling us to recognize ourselves as a ‘full-service provider’ in hospitality 

space offering services to various sections of society from middle-class segment to the upper-class segment. The 

strategic location of our Club premises provides us with an added advantage of offering ‘Business cum Leisure’ 

services to corporate customers for conducting conferences, meetings, exhibitions etc. Our Club’s premises are 

spread across approx. 5,977 sq mtrs plot of land. 

 

Our Company was incorporated on March 8, 1933 as ‘Phaltan Sugar Works Limited’ and later on came to be 

known as ‘Apte Amalgamations Limited’. Thereafter the name was changed to its present name i.e. ‘Emerald 

Leisures Limited’. The Company ventured into the business of providing club membership in the financial year 

2013-14. While our banquet and room accommodation facilities are open for all, our members get access to wide 

range of recreational and sports facilities provided by our Club. We provide various sports facilities to our Club 

members such as badminton, table tennis, squash, snooker/billiards and other indoor and outdoor games along 

with additional access and benefits related to gym, library, spa and beauty salon, multi-cuisine restaurants and 

bar, swimming pool and well-designed rooms on fee-based arrangement. As on June 30, 2024, we had 688 club 

members. We have 70 affiliations with other clubs and resorts as on June 30, 2024. 

 

Our Financial Performance 

 

Our financial performance for the three months period ended on June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2024 and for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are summarized below: 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Three months 

ended on June 30, 

2024 

Three months 

ended on June 30, 

2023 

Financial Year 

ended March 31, 

2024 

Financial Year 

ended March 31, 

2023 

 Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited 

Revenue from 

operations 

359.63 400.29 1578.84 1,475.37 

EBITDA 108.10 167.42 548.31 584.11 

Net Profit after 

Tax (before OCI) 

(278.51) (231.73 (973.17) (1,014.20) 

 

Our total income for the three months period ended June 30, 2024and financial year ended March 31, 2024 was 

₹364.35 lakhs and ₹1,659.31 lakhs respectively. Our business operations improved in the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 and financial year ended March 31, 2024 as our revenue from operations increased by 72.16% 

from financial year ended March 31, 2022 to March 31, 2023 and increased by 7.01% from financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024.  

 

Our Strengths 

Strategic location of club attracts leisure as well as business travelers 
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Our Club is located in Chembur which is close to Eastern Express Highway, Eastern Freeway and Santa Cruz–

Chembur Link Road providing easy connectivity to the majority of Mumbai Metropolitan Region (“MMR”) 

locations. We have strategically developed our Club in Chembur which is a large residential and commercial hub 

in Mumbai. Chembur is a well-developed residential locality with excellent connectivity and is close to major 

business centers and prominent workplaces such as Bandra Kurla Complex, Lower Parel, Worli, Andheri and 

Navi Mumbai. Further, Chembur is 15 km from the airport, and 6 km from the nearest railway station, making the 

Club easily accessible not only to members and guests but business travelers as well. Our banquet 

&accommodation services allow us to offer our guests quality yet cost-effectives services in the MMR region. As 

on June  30, 2024, we have a total of 35 rooms and 6 banquet halls. Our Company also offers its open ground for 

banquet services. Our Club has built up area of approx. 1.1 lakh sq ft out of which 50,000 sq ft is used as sports 

& recreation area, 20,000 sq ft is used for accommodation rooms and banquet halls and 40,000 sq ft is used for 

parking. 

 

Unique and diversified business model  

 

Our Club provides multiple facilities for indoor and outdoor recreation for our members. The Club is equipped 

with sports facilities for badminton, squash, table tennis, snooker/billiards and other indoor and outdoor games 

along with a swimming pool, library, spa and a beauty salon. We also let out banquet halls, rooms and have multi-

cuisine restaurants and a bar. Our Club isa ‘One stop Solution' as it offers facilities for corporate meetings and 

conferences, social events and gatherings, leisure, and recreational services, all at a single location. Our income 

from banquet halls sales and restaurants, room sales, Club Membership and other income formed 41.68%, 40.13%, 

13% and 5.19% respectively of our total income for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 35.66%, 37.12%, 

19.53% and 7.68% respectively of our total income for the three months period ended June 30, 2024. 

 

We are also affiliated with several other clubs in India and abroad, which provide paid utilization of our 

infrastructure to travelers and out of town affiliate members thereby providing us with additional revenue, over 

and above the revenue generated directly from our members.  

 

Our club membership business safeguards us against threats of seasonality and economic downturns 

 

As of June, 30, 2024, we had 688 club members. Once registered, our club members are committed to our Club 

for a long period of time spanning from 5 to 20 years thereby ensuring a steady source of revenues from 

membership fee payments, annual maintenance fees and use of our paid facilities, especially during the off-season 

or economic downturn. In addition, our affiliations provide the members with access to affiliated clubs across 

India and abroad. Further, the affiliated members also have access to our property thereby enabling optimum 

utilisation of our infrastructure throughout the year. 

 

Customer centric operations and quality services 

 

Our club premises are equipped with modern amenities such as spa, salon as well as dedicated facilities for indoor 

and outdoor sports. In addition, we also offer banquet halls, restaurants and bar, accommodation services. We 

have team strength of 60 employees as on June 30, 2024 who are competently trained, motivated and performance-

oriented staff that deliver high quality and personalized service to our members and guests. We have strong food 

and beverage capabilities with variety of vegetarian cuisines in our restaurants and banquets. 

 

Experienced management team 

 

Our operations are managed by our Board of Directors who have significant experience in the hospitality industry. 

We believe that our management team has been able to identify opportunities which will, in conjunction with the 

management's operational expertise, continue to yield positive results for us. We have also employed mechanisms 

to receive and evaluate customer feedbacks and utilise that to nurture our employees and improve services. For 

further details of the profile and experience of our management team, see “Our Management” on page 73. 

 

Our Strategies 

 

Increase club members to 2,000 

 

Through a combination of increased marketing, launching new schemes, providing incentive and discounts, we 

intend to increase the number of club members to 2,000 over a period of time as we believe the Club has capacity 

to service such increased number of members. Increased membership subscription will lead to efficient use of our 
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Club facilities and an improvement in profit margins. We also anticipate an increased demand of our banquet halls 

and rooms from the prospective members of Club. 

 

Intensifying MICE (Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions) business 

 

 Our business activities were severely hit in financial year ended March 31, 2021 due to COVID-19 and it was 

reflected by drastic reduction in revenue from our banquet halls to ₹88.13 lakhs. There has been recovery in the 

business in financial year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023 and March 24 as the impact of COVID-19 

waned and increase in business travel, social events, especially in case of banquet halls where the revenue 

increased to ₹303.14 lakhs, ₹514.57 lakhs and 658.03 respectively. Furthermore, we clocked total revenue of 

₹1659.31 lakhs for year ended March 31, 2024 and ₹364.35 lakhs for the three months period ended June 30, 

2024. We anticipate a further increase in demand with increased enquiries of banquets from corporates and 

business networking bodies for conducting conferences, meetings and for social gatherings and events. 

 

Focus on development of rooms 

 

Currently, our average room booked days for financial year ended March 31, 2024 was 11313 nights as compared 

to 11353 nights for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 was 

7,058 night. Our average room utilization for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 was 88.65% as compared 

to 88.86% for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 was 

55.24%. With ease of lockdown restrictions, the demand of rooms resurged in financial year ended March 31, 

2023 and March 31, 2024.This increase in utilization by effective management strategies, optimizing the 

availability and booking process. We may undertake further development of rooms as we anticipate a further 

increase in demand for rooms with business travel and social events resuming back to pre-pandemic levels. The 

revenue from room sales will increase with increased bookings and rise in average daily rate of rooms. 

 

Reduce debt and improve profitability 

 

We intend to continue to actively manage our operating costs to improve margins by improving staff productivity 

and efficiency to reduce payroll costs through optimum utilisation of manpower for various business activities, 

comprehensive training and performance-linked compensation. The Company may plan to implement energy 

saving initiatives by installing solar panels that are both cost-efficient and environmentally friendly. We also 

intend to improve margins for restaurants, spa and salon services. We will be repaying outstanding debts from the 

proceeds of the Issue which will reduce our finance cost. 

 

Our Services 

 

The services of our company include: 

 

Club services 

 

The Company is primarily engaged in providing club services to its members. ‘Club Emerald’ is located at Swastik 

Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai 400071, Maharashtra. It offers various memberships of 

different tenures based on suitability and requirements of the prospective members. The Club is equipped with 

dedicated fully air-conditioned sports facilities for various indoor sports, swimming pool and open ground area 

for outdoor sports. The club has recreational amenities such as library, gym, spa and salon. The details of sports 

and recreational facilities is mentioned below: 

 

• Sports Facilities: The Club has independent sections for indoor sports viz. 2 indoor badminton courts named 

as ‘Aero’, 2 squash courts named as ‘The Cube’, 3 table tennis units named as ‘Spinz’, 3 Snooker/ Billiards 

named ‘Green Room’, a card room with 6 card tables named as ‘Sequence’. The club has a half Olympic 

size swimming pool named ‘Ripple’. The club has an open ground area called ‘Kings Court’ for banqueting 

and outdoor sports such as basketball, skating, cycling, jogging, etc. The Club has arrangements for board 

games as well. 

 

• Recreational Facilities: Our Club has an air-conditioned gym ‘Burn’ which is equipped with the Startrack 

machines and steam rooms. The gym services are available to members on payment of subscription fees. 

The Club has a library ‘Papyrus’ with a seating capacity of approximately 15-20 person. The Club, has a spa 
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known as the ‘White Lotus Spa’ which provides spa and salon services to its members and guests on pay per 

use basis.  

 

Banquet Halls 

 

The Company has 6 banquet halls which has total accommodation capacity of 700 stationary and 1,100 floating 

guests. The halls are operated on two shift basis. 5 out of 6 banquet halls are fully air conditioned viz. Imperial, 

Royale, Imagine, Sequence II and Cinnamon. Company has a banquet hall which is an open space banquet hall 

viz. Galaxy. Our Company also uses the Club’s open ground area ‘Kings Court’ for banqueting services. 

 

• Imperial: The largest of the banquet halls, having 3,600 sqft area is most suitable for events such as 

weddings, conferences, seminars and other social events. The banquet hall is designed in a manner which 

allows the banquet hall to be split into 3 sections (Imperial I, II & III). This allows the hall to be used 

individually with separate access to every section. The banquet hall has total accommodation capacity of 

350 stationary and 500 floating guests.  

 

• Royale: The banquet hall having 2,400 sqft area is best suited hall for social events such as marriages and 

reception parties as it is adjacent to Galaxy banquet hall and can be used together based on the requirements. 

The hall can also be divided into 2 sections (Royal I & II) with independent access to each section. The 

banquet hall has total accommodation capacity of 200 stationary and 350 floating guests. 

 

• Cinnamon: The banquet hall is 1,200 sqft in area and is complimented with an open area section which is 

approx. 1,000 sq ft. This banquet hall can be used for events having guests ranging from 25 to 100 stationary 

and 150 floating guests. 

 

• Galaxy: The banquet hall is an open space hall having 1,200 sqft in area which is adjacent to ‘Royale’ 

banquet hall. ‘Galaxy’ and ‘Royale’ can be let out together in combination. 

 

• Imagine: The banquet hall is 500 sqft in area and suitable for small parties and gatherings suitable for 25 

stationary and 35 floating guests. 

 

• Sequence: The banquet hall is approximately 300 sqft in area and suitable for board meetings and small 

programs and can accommodate approx. 25 stationary and 35 floating guests.  

 

• Kings Court: It is an open ground area of the Club which is used for banqueting and sport activities. It is 

11,000 sqft in area and can accommodate 800-1000 guests. The Kings Court is rented on a single shift basis. 

 

Rooms  

 

The accommodation consists of 35 guest rooms which are bifurcated into 3 categories viz. 25 Deluxe rooms, 5 

Superior rooms and 5 Deluxe suits. These rooms are fully furnished and air conditioned with round the clock 

service ensuring comfort and luxury. 

 

Restaurants and Bar 

 

The company has 4 food and beverage outlets viz The Patio, Paprika, The Nook and The Adda. All the outlets of 

the company only serve vegetarian food. 

 

• The Patio: It is an open-air restaurant serving snacks and refreshments with a capacity of 70 approx. 10 

tables/ 60 seats. 

 

• Paprika: Paprika is multi-cuisine dining outlet offering varied options in typical Indian, Chinese, 

Continental, Italian, Mexican and Tandoori delicacies. It is fully air-conditioned with capacity of 70approx.. 

12 tables/ 60 seats.  
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• The Nook: The Nook is our bakery counter where bakery products such as cakes, pastries, breads, 

chocolates, cookies, savories, etc. are served. 

 

 

• The Adda: The Adda, Bar and Restaurant outlet is situated on the 1st floor of the premises with an easy 

access for guests. It is equipped with projector screen for screening of sports and other events for 

entertainment of guests. It is fully air-conditioned having capacity of approx. 12 tables/ 60 seats.  

 

Utilisation of facilities (Rooms and Banquet halls) 

 

Our company has total of 35 rooms, 6 banquet halls and an open ground area for letting out. Details of existing 

utilization of the facilities are given below: 

 

Rooms Financial year ended March 

31, 2024 

Financial Year ended March 

31, 2023 

Financial Year ended March 

31, 2022 

 Room 

days 

available 

Room 

days 

booked 

Utilisation 

(%) 

Room 

days 

available 

Room 

days 

booked 

Utilisation 

(%) 

Room 

days 

available 

Room 

days 

booked 

Utilisation 

(%) 

Deluxe 

Rooms 
8,395 7603 90.57% 8,395 7695 94.88% 8395 4838 57.63% 

Superior 

Rooms 
2,555 2213 86.61% 2,555 2209 86.46% 2555 1580 61.84% 

Deluxe 

Suits 

Rooms 

1,825 1497 82.03% 1,825 1449 79.40% 1,825 640 35.07%  

 

 

Banquet 

halls 

Financial year ended March 

31, 2024 

Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

  Hall 

Slots 

availab

le 

Hall 

Slots 

booked 

Utilisati

on (%) 

Hall 

Slots 

availa

ble 

Hall 

Slots 

booked 

Utilisatio

n (%) 

Hall 

Slots 

availab

le 

Hall 

Slots 

booke

d 

Utilisatio

n (%) 

Imperial-

I 732 330 45.08 732 341 46.58 732 224 30.6 

Imperial 

-II 732 316 43.17 732 382 52.19 732 241 32.92 

Imperial 

-III 732 208 28.42 732 285 38.93 732 219 29.92 

Royale-I 
732 383 52.32 732 365 49.86 732 252 34.43 

Royale-II 

& Galaxy 732 415 56.69 732 440 60.11 732 272 37.16 

Cinnamo

n 732 124 16.94 732 137 18.71 732 158 21.58 

Card 

Room 732 42 5.74 732 44 6.01 732 31 4.35 

Kings 

Court 366 49 13.39 365 44 12.05 365 53 14.52 

Imagine 
732 117 15.98 732 119 16.26 732 65 8.88 

 

Our Customers 

 

We are a hospitality services provider where all of our services are provided on Company premises. We maintain 

direct contact with our members and corporate clients, which allows us to understand their current needs and 

gauge their future requirements. As on June 30, 2024 we had 688 members.  

 

  



 

 

 

72 

 
 

Human Resource 

 

As on June 30, 2024, we have 39 permanent employees and 21 contractual employees/staff. We undertake 

selective and need based recruitment to maintain the size of our workforce. The following table provides 

information about our permanent employees as on June 30, 2024: 

 

Designation No. of employees 

General Manager 1 

Manager 8 

Assistant Managers 12 

Senior Executive 12 

Junior Executive 10 

Junior Staff 17 

 

Competition 

 

The industry in which we operate is highly competitive. The organized players in the industry compete with each 

other by providing high quality services. We believe the principal elements of competition in the hospitality 

industry are price, customer centric services, food quality and amenities. We compete against our competitors by 

leveraging our goodwill and establishing ourselves as quality service provider.  

Environment, Health and Safety 

We have implemented safety measures across the Company to ensure a safe working environment including 

general guidelines for health and safety and maintaining clean and orderly premises. Further, various 

environmental, health and safety requirements imposed by various authorities shall continue to have material 

effect on our operations. We've implemented a thermal storage air conditioning system that transfers the cooling 

demand to off-peak hours. Additionally, our hot water system operates on the principle of heat exchangers, 

eliminating the need for geysers and resulting in reduced electricity costs. The company premises have rainwater 

harvesting system to reduce the external water usage. We have also installed a bio-waste recycling and biogas 

generation unit for handling wet garbage and protect the environment. 

 

Insurance 

 

Our Company maintains adequate insurance policies for the key assets of the Company which cover all normal 

risks associated with operations of our business. We have obtained a standard business insurance policy, director 

and group Mediclaim policy. These insurance policies are reviewed periodically to ensure that the coverage is 

adequate. We believe that our insurance coverage is in accordance with industry custom, including the terms of 

and the coverage provided by such insurances. Our policies are subject to standard limitations. Therefore, 

insurance might not necessarily cover all losses incurred by us and we cannot provide any assurance that we will 

not incur losses or suffer claims beyond the limits of, or outside the relevant coverage of, our insurance policies. 

 

Intellectual Property 

 

In the highly competitive hospitality industry in which we operate, trademarks, service marks, trade names and 

logos are very important in the sales and marketing of our club and services. The trademark/service mark and logo 

in connection with the “CLUB e EMERALD” logo is owned and registered by our Promoter “Chetan Jaswant 

Mehta” under class 41 of the Trade Marks Act, 1999. For further details, see section titled “Risk Factors” on page 

15. 

 

Immovable Properties  

 

The Company owns the land admeasuring about 5977 sq.mts namely, CTS No. 366/15 at Village Chembur, Taluka 

Kurla, District, Registration District and Sub-district of Mumbai suburban and within the limits of 'M' Ward of 

the Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai on which the Club property and Registered Office is situated. 

Please refer “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments- Interim Application of 2023 (the “IA”) was 

filed by our Company (“Applicant”) in Writ Petition (L) No. 8386 of 2022” on page 93 to see pending litigation 

with respect to encroachment of land owned by our Company. However it is pertinent to note that the litigation 

pertains to plots other than the one where our Club is located and does not affect operation/business of our Club 

in any manner.  
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OUR MANAGEMENT 

 

 

Our Board of Directors  

 

Our Articles of Association require us to have not less than three (3) and not more than fifteen (15) Directors. As 

on date of this Letter of Offer, we have eight (8) Directors on our Board, which includes, three (3) Executive 

Directors, two (2) Non-Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Directors. In compliance of corporate 

governance norms, one (1) is a woman director. The composition of the Board of Directors is governed by the 

provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the norms of the code of corporate governance as applicable to 

listed companies in India, the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. 

 

Set forth below, are details regarding our Board as on the date of this Letter of Offer: 

 

Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, 

Occupation, Term and Nationality  

Age 

(years) 

Other Directorships 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta 

 

DIN: 00252482 

 

Date of Birth: November 1, 1970 

 

Designation: Executive Director and Chief Executive 

Officer  

 

Address: 601, Techno Residency, Road No. 2, Hindu 

Colony, Dadar, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 014, 

India.  

 

Occupation: Business  

 

Current Term: Appointed with effect from October 

28, 2022 

 

Period of Directorship: Since October 28, 2022 

 

53 i. New Famous Litho Works Private 

Limited 

ii. Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited 

iii. Techno Global Security Private 

Limited 

iv. Techno Realtors Private Limited 

 

Rajesh Motilal Loya 

 

DIN: 00252470 

 

Date of Birth: July 20, 1966 

 

Designation: Whole-Time Director and Chief 

Financial Officer 

 

Address: 601/602, Vatsalya CHS, Plot No. 85, Hindu 

Colony, Road No. 3, Near Bhagini Samaj, Dadar, 

Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 014, India.  

 

Occupation: Business  

 

Current Term: Re-appointed for a term of five 

consecutive years with effect from November 10, 

2020  

 

Period of Directorship: Since August 12, 2010 

 

58 i. Dhoot Industrial Finance Limited 

ii. New Famous Litho Works Private 

Limited 

iii. Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited 

iv. Techno Global Security Private 

Limited 

v. Techno Property Developers Private 

Limited 

vi. Techno Realtors Private Limited 

 

 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 

 

DIN: 00235845 

82 i. Mercury Realtors Private Limited 

ii. Juhu Resorts And Development Private 

Limited 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, 

Occupation, Term and Nationality  

Age 

(years) 

Other Directorships 

 

Date of Birth: October 28, 1941 

 

Designation: Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director 

 

Address: 203, Panorama Building, 5th Floor, 

Walkeshwar Road, Opposite Dena Bank, Malabar 

Hill, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 006, India.  

 

Occupation: Business   

 

Current Term: Re-appointed with effect from April 

1, 2019; Liable to retire by rotation. 

 

Period of Directorship: Since August 12, 2010 

 

iii. Panorama Mercantile Private Limited 

iv. Panorama FinvesTrade Private Limited 

v. Neptune Resorts And Development 

Private Limited 

 

Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 

 

DIN: 00252474 

 

Date of Birth: September 25, 1966 

 

Designation: Executive Director  

 

Address: 501, Techno Residency, Plot No. 84, Road 

No. 2, Hindu Colony, Dadar East, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra – 400 014, India.  

 

Occupation: Business  

 

Current Term: Re-appointed with effect from 

September 30, 2021; Liable to retire by rotation.  

 

Period of Directorship: Since October 7, 2016 

 

57 i. G.C. ChemiePharmie Limited 

ii. V Trans (India) Limited 

iii. Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited 

iv. Techno Global Security Private 

Limited 

v. Techno Property Developers Private 

Limited 

vi. Techno Realtors Private Limited 

vii. ASAP Realtech Private Limited 

 

 

Maneesh Taparia 

 

DIN: 00267558 

 

Date of Birth: May 21, 1964 

 

Designation: Independent Director  

 

Address:C-41/601, Triveni, Pokhran Road No. 2, 

Near Vasant Vihar School, Apna Bazar, Thane, 

Maharashtra – 400 610, India.  

 

Occupation: Business  

 

Current Term: Re-appointed for a term of five 

consecutive years with effect from September 29, 

2020; Not liable to retire by rotation. 

 

Period of Directorship: Since August 12, 2010 

 

60 i. Orbit Developers Private Limited 

ii. Cherry Innovest Consultancy Private 

Limited 
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, 

Occupation, Term and Nationality  

Age 

(years) 

Other Directorships 

Gautam Chandrakumar Shah 

 

DIN: 00271794 

 

Date of Birth: December 4, 1959 

 

Designation: Chairman & Independent Director  

 

Address: 3, Punil Apts, 9 Ashok Nagar Society, 

North South Road No. 11, JVPD Scheme, Opposite 

Agarwal House, Ville Parle West, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra – 400 049, India.  

 

Occupation: Professional  

 

Current Term: Re-appointed for a term of five 

consecutive years with effect from September 30, 

2020; Not liable to retire by rotation. 

 

Period of Directorship: Since September 25, 2015 

 

64 i. Novo Excipients Private Limited 

ii. Vitamystic Healthcare Private 

Limited 

iii. G.C. ChemiePharmie Limited 

iv. Manmill Sciences Private Limited 

v. Metaverse Pharmaceuticals Private 

Limited 

 

Dhwani Jaydeep Mehta 

 

DIN: 07105522 

 

Date of Birth: July 14, 1992 

 

Designation: Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director 

 

Address: 501, Techno Residency, Road No. 2, Hindu 

Colony, Dadar, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 014, 

India.  

 

Occupation: Professional  

 

Current Term: Re-appointed with effect from 

September 28, 2023; Liable to retire by rotation.  

 

Period of Directorship: Since February 13, 2015 

 

32 Nil 

Amit Vardhman Shah 

 

DIN: 07306728 

 

Date of Birth: May 20, 1966 

 

Designation: Independent Director  

 

Address: 401 Mehta Sadan, 86/88 Bhavani Shankar 

Road, Dadar West, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 028, 

India.  

 

Occupation: Professional 

 

Current Term: Re-appointed for a term of five 

consecutive years with effect from October 8, 2020; 

Not liable to retire by rotation 

58 Nil 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, 

Occupation, Term and Nationality  

Age 

(years) 

Other Directorships 

 

Period of Directorship: Since October 8, 2015 

 

 

Confirmations on directorship in companies suspended or delisted 

 

1. None of our Directors is or was a director of any listed company during the last five years preceding the date 

of filing of this Letter of Offer, whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any of the 

stock exchanges during the term of his/her directorship in such Company. 

 

2. None of our directors is, or was, a directory of any listed Company which has been or was delisted from any 

stock exchange, during the term of their directorship in such Company, in the last ten years immediately 

preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Our Key Managerial and Senior Managerial Personnel  

 

Set forth below are the details of our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management as on the date of filing 

of this Letter of Offer: 

 

Sr. 

No 

Name of Key Management 

Personnel 

Designation 

1.  Nikhil Vinod Mehta Chief Executive Officer  

2.  Rajesh Motilal Loya Chief Financial Officer  

3.  Kapil M. Purohit Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

4.  Pranabesh Dilipkumar Banerjee General Manager  

5.  Imran M. Bagalkote Head of Department – Sales  

6.  Anil Rawat Head of Department – Food & Beverages 

7.  Pravin Tukaram Shivgan Head of Department – Food & Beverages Controller & Auditor  

8.  Dinesh Dayal Singh Rawat Head of Department – Kitchen  

9.  Daniel Paul Head of Department – House Keeping 

10.  Devendra Manjrekar Head of Department – Maintenance  

11.  Shivshankar Jaiswal Head of Department – Security 

12.  Kalyani Chowhan Head of Department – Human Resource  

13.  Nirmiti Bohra Head of Department – Accounts  

14.  SyedIkramuddin Salahuddin Duty Manager  

 

All our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel are permanent employees of our 

Company.  

 

 

Management Organization Structure 

 

Set forth is the organization work structure of our Company: 
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SECTION V – FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

S. No.  Details  Page Number 

1. Unaudited Financial Results for the three months period ended 

June 30, 2024 along with Independent Auditor’s Limited 

Review Report 

F1 – F4 

2.  Independent Auditor’s Report on Audited Financial 

Statements for the Fiscal 2024 

F5 – F50 

 



P G BHAGWAT LLP MUMBAI OFFICE 
Chartered Accountants 803, Rajhans Helix 3, L. B. S. Marg, 
LLPIN: AAT-9949 Ghatkopar (West), Mumbai — 400086. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Tel.: 022 - 48252116 
Email:devdatta_mainkar@pgbhagwatca.com 

Web: www.pgbhagwatca.com 

Independent Auditors’ Review Report 

on the unaudited quarterly financial results of Emerald Leisures Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To 

The Board of Directors of 

Emerald Leisures Limited 

Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, 

Off Eastern Express Highway, 

Chembur, Mumbai — 400 071 

We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results of Emerald 

Leisures Limited (“ELL” or “the Company”) for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 (“the Statement”) being 

submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”). 

This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company’s Management, has been reviewed by the Audit 

Committee and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on August 

14, 2024, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in 

Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”), prescribed under Section 133 

of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility 

is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review. 

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 

2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the 

review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A 

review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedure applied to financial 

data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we 

oe ss 
do not express an audit opinion. SES 

\% \\ 
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P G BHAGWAT LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
LLPIN: AAT-9949 

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that 

the accompanying Statement prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and other 

recognized accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in 

terms of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that 

it contains any material misstatement. 

Emphasis of Matter 

5. We wish to draw your attention to Note 4 to the Statement regarding impairment assessment of non- 

current financial assets performed by the Company. Based on the assessment performed, the 

management believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non-current assets as on June 30, 

2024 and therefore no material adjustment is required to the financial results for the quarter ended June 

30, 2024. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 101118W / W100682 

a . AP Chass 
Digitally signed KE en arter 

ASUHAS cea Sorry 
SUHAS MAINKAR f \o \ 

Date: 2024.08.14 

MAINKAR 14:29:18 +05'30 

        

Devdatta Mainkar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 109795 

Mumbai, 14th August 2024 

UDIN: 24109795BKAEQA3650
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EMERALD LEISURES MMITED 
Registered Office: Club Emerald Sports Complex, Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai 400 071 

CIN: L74900MH1948PLC006791 Email: info@clubemerald.in , Website: www.clubemerald.com 

STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2024 

(Amount Rs, in lakhs) 
  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

    

Quarter Ended Year Ended 

4 30th June 31st March 30th June 31st March 
eva ea 2024 2024 2023 2024 

Un-Audited Audited Un-Audited Audited 

1 INCOME 

(a) Revenue from operations 359.63 418,22 400.29 1,578.84 

(b) Other Income 4.72 69.36 4.47 80.47 
Total Income 364.35 487.58 404.76 1,659.31 

2 EXPENSES 

(a) Cost of materials consumed 56.14 113.14 58.26 300.77 

(b) Purchase of stock-in trade - = ° ° 
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, 

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (0.00) (40.29) (0.65) (42.40) 
(d) Employee benefits expense 46,81 50.96 42.70 186.35 
(e) Finance cost 336.79 343.91 345,70 1,354.62 
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 54.53 76.97 57.92 247.32 
(2) Other expenses 148.59 205.06 132.56 585.82 
Total Expenses 642.86 749.75 636.49 2,632.48 

3 Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 
(1-2) (278.51) (262.17) (231.73) (973.17) 

4 Exceptional items - - - 
5 | Profit/(Loss) before tax(3-4) (278.51) (262.17) (231.73) (973.17) 
6 Tax Expense “ 

(i) Current Tax - - - 
(ii) Deferred Tax ‘ - - - 

7 Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing 

operations (278.51) (262.17) (231.73) (973.17) 
8 Profit / (Loss) for the period from discontinuing 

operations before tax = @ = 
9 Tax expense of discontinuing operations - = - 
10 Profit / (Loss) for the period from discontinuing 

operations after tax - - - 
11 | Net Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (7410) (278.51) (262.17) (231.73) (973.17) 
12 | Other Comprehensive Income - ST - 3.17 

A, (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss - B17 - 3.17 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss - - - 
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or 

loss - * “ 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 

reclassified to profit or loss 3 = : 
13 | Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

comprising profit/(loss) and other 

comprehensive income for the period (278,51) (259,00) (231.73) (970.00) 

14 | Details of equity share capital * 
Paid-up equity share capital, equity share of Rs. 

5/- each 250.31 250.31 250.31 250.31 

Face Value of Equity Share Capital (Rs.) 5,00 5.00 5.00 5.00 

15 | Earnings per share (as per face value of Rs 5/- 
each) 

(a) Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (Rs.) (5.56) (5.24) (4.63) (19.44) 
(b) Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (Rs.) (5.56) (5.24) (4.63) (19.44)       
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Notes: 

1. The above Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30th June , 2024 have been reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved 

by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on Wednesday, the 14th day of August, 2024. The limited review of these financial results as required 

under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been carried out by the Statutory Auditors. 

2. The unaudited financial results of the Company have been prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles of the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

3. As the company operates in a single business segment, viz. Hospitality Industry, in context of Ind AS- 108 “Operating Segments”. Therefore, a 
disclosure of segment information is not applicable. 

4. Due to historical financial performance ot the Company, the management pertormed detailed going concern assessment and also assessed 
whether there is any requirement for impairment of non financial assets of the Company as on March 31, 2024 as per Ind AS 36 - Impairment of 
Assets. For this purposeythe management obtained fair valuation report of the business for the purpose of computation of recoverable value of Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) as per the requirement of Ind AS 36 for the year ended 31.03.2023. The management believes that there is no adverse change 
in the fair value of assets as on 30.06.2024 considering the market conditions and other relevant internal and external factors. Therefore, there is no 
requirement for impairment of non-current financial assets, 

5. The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 as reported in these results are the balancing figure between audited figures in respect of the 
year ended March 31, 2024 and the published year to date figures up to the end of the third quarter of the relevant financial year. 

6. The unaudited Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30th June, 2024 would be uploaded and available for viewing in the Company’s website 
www.clubemerald.in and also on the website of BSE Limited www. bseindia.com. 

For Emerald Leisures Limited 

Place : Mumbai 

Dated : 14th August , 2024 
Rajesh Loyal 

Whole time Director & CFO) 

DIN : 00252470     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Emerald Leisures Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

MUMBAI OFFICE 

803, Rajhans Helix 3, L. B. S. Marg, 
Ghatkopar (West), Mumbai -400086 
Tel: +91 224825 2116 
Email : pgb@pgbhagwatca.com 
Web : www.pgbhagwatca.com 

We have audited the Financial Statements of Emerald Leisures Limited ("the Company"), which comprise 

the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 

ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaidFinancial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the 

manner sorequired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) 

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together withthe ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidenct we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

ouropinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We wish to draw your attention to Note No. 36 to the financial statements regarding impairment 

assessment of non-current finan�i.il assets performed by the Company. Based on the assessment 

performed, the management believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non-current financial 

assets and therefore no material adjustment is required to the financial statements for the year ended 

March 31, 2024. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter as well. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur profes:;ioncil judgment, were of most significance in our 
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audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Description of Key Audit Matters. 

Initial audit engagement How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Revenue recognition Our procedures included the following: 

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

The Company has a unique business model, and its policy in accordance with Ind AS 115 for

revenue comprises of individual transactions and 

also multiple streams of revenue with its members • 

/ customers. 

In accordance with Ind AS 115 (a) the membership 

fees are recognized over the effective • 

membership period. 

The application of the accounting standard on 

membership contracts entered with customers.

Evaluating the design, testing the

implementation and operating effectiveness of

the Company's internal controls over

recognition of revenue.

Perform substantive testing throughout the

period, by selecting samples of membership

contracts entered during the year and verifying

the underlying documents.

revenue recognition, involves certain judgements • Assessing the adequacy of Company's

relating to identification of distinct performance disclosures in accordance with the

obligations, determination of transaction price of 

the identified performance obligations and the 

appropriateness of the basis used to recognize 

revenue over a period. 

Other Information 

requirements of Ind AS 115

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprisesthe information included in the Director's report, but does not include the Financial Statements 

and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial 

Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and 

fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), 

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of theaccounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial 

Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includesour opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatementscan arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. 
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We are also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies

Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern.If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up tothe date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,

includingthe disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying

transactionsand events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scopeand timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

controlthat we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We descrioe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 

precludespublic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 

a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonablybe expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicati.Qo. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in 2(h)(vi) below

on reporting under rule ll(g) regarding audit trail (edit log) facility.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with in this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 as amerided.

e On e basis of the wrtten representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 

ta e., 011 record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 

2024 from being appo·nted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) Witn respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

Annexure B.

g) The Company did not pay any remuneration to its Directors; hence, in our opinion and according

to the information and explanation provided to us, section 197 is not applicable to the company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

informationand according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31st 

March 2024;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company;

iv) (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the financial statements, if any, no funds

havebeen advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or

any othersources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
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in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) the management has represented to us, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the Financial Statements, if any, no funds have 

been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the information and explanation given to us and audit procedures performed as

considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 

that has caused us to believe that the representations made by the management and as 

mentioned under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above contain any material misstatement. 

v) The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

v0 Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 

log) facility except in case of below mentioned softwares, wherein there is no feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility. 

Sr. no. Name of software Type of software Utility 

1 Shawman MMS* Ultra Web based Management of 

inventory at various 

stores within the 

entity 

2 Property Management system Application based Management of 

(PMS) room occupancies 

and invoicing 

3 Point of Sale (POS) management Application based Management of 

system restaurant and 

outlet operations at 

the club from order 

booking to invoicing 
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Further, where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year 

for the accounting software, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 

tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 

2023, reporting under Rule ll(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 

preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 

applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 101118W / W100682 

Devdatta Mainkar 

Partner 

Membership Number: 109795 

UDIN: 24109795BKAEJ06775 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May 2024 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors' Report 

i. 

ii. 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, "Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements" of 
ourreport on even date: 

a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.
(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b) The Property, Plant & Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
program designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, a portion of the Property, Plant & Equipment has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 2 on
Property,Plant & Equipment to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations provided to us there are no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder. Hence reporting under clause 3(i) (e) of the order is not applicable.

f) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and
based on the policy adopted by the management, the coverage and procedure of such verification
is appropriate. The discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book records have been properly dealt
with in the books of account.

a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore during the year, in aggregate, from banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable.

iii. The Company, during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence reporting under Clause (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c),
(iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f), of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.
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iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or

security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of

Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the

public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under

tothe extent notified.

vi. The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of

the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

vii. 

a) According to the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,

income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any

other statutorydues to the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examinedby us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been

deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and records

examinedby us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessmentsunder the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the order is not

applicable.

ix. 

a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation

given to us, except for the loans and interest thereon as described below, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any

lender as at the balance sheet date.

Nature of Name of lender Amount not Whether Number of Remarks 

borrowing paid on due principal or days delay 

date interest 

Term Loan -1 Aditya Birla Finance 26,13,152 Principal 41 Principal 

Limited paid on 

25/04/2024 
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Term Loan- 2 Aditya Birla Finance 

Limited 

Term Loan - 3 Aditya Birla Finance 

Limited 

2,25,717 Interest 

9,05,515 Interest 

7,61,823 Principal 

3,40,272 Interest 

11,94,272 Principal 

1,09,737 Interest 

1,20,636 Principal 

34 Interest paid 

on 

18/04/2024 

(partial) 

41 Interest paid 

on 

25/04/2024 

(full) 

41 Principal 

paid on 

25/04/2024 

41 Interest paid 

on 

25/04/2024 

39 Principal 

paid on 

23/04/2024 

(partial) 

39 Interest paid 

on 

23/04/2024 

55 Principal 

paid on 

09/05/2024 

(full) 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or government or any government authority.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of

books of account and records of the company, we report that term loans were applied for the

purposes for which the loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
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X. 

xi. 

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that funds 

raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used for long-term purposes by the 

company during the year. 

e) The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under

clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

f) The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under

clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer

(includingdebt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the

Order is not applicable.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 

partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under

Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the

informationand explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by

the Company or on the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed

of any such case by the Management.

b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the

informationand explanations given to us, report in the form ADT-4 as specified under sub-section

(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has not been filed. Accordingly reporting under clause

3(xi)(b) of the orderis not applicable.

c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the

information and explanations given to us, we have taken into consideration the whistle blower

complaints received by the company during the year while determining the nature, timing and

extent of audit procedures.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions

of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of

Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in

the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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xiv. 

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued by the internal auditors of the company till

date, for the period under audit.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected

with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. 

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report that the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the 

Company is not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

Bank of India, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

d) Based on information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, the

Group does not have any Core Investment Company {CIC) as part of the Group.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses during current financial year as well as in the immediately

preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation by statutory auditors during the year hence reporting under clause

3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and

management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as

on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet as andwhen they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date. We, however, state that thisis not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We 

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither

give any guarantee nor any assurance thatall liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. Also refer to 

Emphasis of Matter section in our Main Audit Report.
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a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly,

reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b) The Company does not have any ongoing projects in accordance with the requirements of CSR

guidelines and hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the

year.

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 101118W / W100682 

Devdatta Mainkar 

Partner 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May 2024 
., 
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, "Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements" 
of our report on even date: 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) ofSub­

section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Emerald 
Leisures Limited ("the Company") as of 31'1 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the d$sign, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
theFinancial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procec;;°ures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Sta �Jfl:ie.tb_er due
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements includes those policies 

andprocedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

company are beingmade only in accordance witt1 authorisations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) providereasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial 

Statements. 

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 

Statements,including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatementsdue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 

of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject 

to the risk that theinternal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become 

inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal controls over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

F

�� 

101118W / W100682 

Devdatta Mainkar 

Partner 
Membership Number: 109795 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May 2024 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 
Registered Office: Club Emerald Sports Complex, Plot No. 366/15, Swast1k Park, 

Near Mcrngal Anand Hospital , Chembur, Mumbai 400 071 

CIN: l74900MH1948PLC006791 Email: mfo@clubemerald. in , Website: www. clubemerald. com 

STATEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

( Amt. In la�hs) 

Quarter Ended Year Ended 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/12/2023 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

Audited Un-Audited Audited Audited Audited 

INCOME 

(a) Revenue from operations 418.215 437.601 434.365 1,578.845 1,475.375 
(b) Other Income 69.361 4.471 3.830 80.468 13.215 

Total Income 487.576 442 .072 438.194 1,659 .312 1,488.590 

EXPENSES 

(a) Cost of materials consumed 113.141 58.261 70.148 300.771 247.863 
(b) Purchase of stock-in trade 

(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, 

work-In-progress and stock-in-trade (40.292) (0.649) 0.225 (42.400) 
(d) Employee benefits expense 50.965 42.700 53.820 186.346 174.262 
(e) Finance cost 343.911 345.703 545.724 1,354.617 1,284.957 
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 76.969 57.923 93.304 247.31S 309.351 
( g) Other expenses 205.060 132.558 154.182 585.824 469.149 
Total Expenses 749.754 636.496 917.403 2,632 .474 2,485.583 

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional Items and tax (1·21 (262.178) (194.424) (479,208) (973.161 ) (996.993 ) 

Exceptional items 

Profit/ (Loss) before tax(3-4) (262.178) (194.424) (479 ,208) (973.161 ) (996.993 ) 

Tilx Expense 

(i) Current Tax 
(Ii) Deferred Tax 17.206 17.206 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (262.173) (194.424) (496.414) (973.161 ) (1,014.199 ) 

Profit/ (loss) for the period from discontinuing 

operations before tax 

Tax expense of discontinuing operations 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period from discontinuing 

operations after tax 

Net Profit/ (loss) for the Period (7+10 ) (262.178) (194.424) (496.414) (973 .161 ) (1,014.199 ) 

Other Comprehensive Income 3.171 1.223 3.171 1.223 

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3.171 1.223 3.171 1.223 
(ii) Income ta)( relating to items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss 

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period comprising 

proflt/ ( loss) and other comprehensive Income for the 

period (259 .006 ) (194,424) (477.986 ) (969.990 ) (1,012.976 ) 

Details of equity share capital 

Paid-up equity share capital, equity share of Rs. 5/ - each 250.310 250.310 250.310 250.310 250.130 
Face Value of Equity Share Capital 5.000 5 .000 5.000 5 .000 5 .000 

Earnings per share ( as per face value of Rs 5/• each) 

(a) Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (5.237) ( 3 .88) (9.572) (19.439) (20.259) 
(b) Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (5.237) (3 .88) (9.572) (19.439) (20,259) 

1. The above Financial Results for the Quarter and Year ended 31st March, 2024 have been reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee 
and approved by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on Thursday, the 30th day of May, 2024 -

�O LE"t
s, 

�'� 
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3.The limited review of audited financial results for the quarter and year ended 31stMarch, 2024 as required under Regulation 33 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been carried out by the Statutory Auditors. 

4.As the company operates in a single business segment, viz. Hospitality Industry, in context of Ind AS- 108 "Operating Segments•. 
Therefore, a disclosure of segment information is not applicable. 

5.Deferred Tax impact not calculated in view of accumulated losses. 

6.Figures for the previous penod have been regrouped/re-arranged.wherever necessary. 

7.The company will account for gratuity/leave salary provisions at year end on actuarial basis 
8.The Company had issued non-cumulative redeemable preference shares amounting to Rs. 4000.00 Lakhs and Rs. 1000 Lakhs during the 
financial year 2017-18 and 2019-20 respectively. The Company did not account for the fair value gain on initial recognition and unwinding 
of interest cost associated with the issuance of these non-cumulative redeemable preference shares. During the financial year 22-23, the 
Company has restated the opening numbers as at April 01, 2021 and has appropriately accounted the fair value gain on initial recognition 
and unwinding of interest cost on these redeemable preference shares amounting to Rs. 3072. 28 lakhs and Rs. 694. 06 lakhs respectively. 
Further, the Company, during FY 22-23 has also restated the results for the year ended March 31, 2022 along with quarter ended March 

9. Due to historical financial performance of the Company, the management performed detailed going concern assessment and also 
assessed whether there is any requirement for impairment of non financial assets of the Company as on March 31, 2024 as per Ind AS 36 -
Impairment of Assets. For this purpose, the management obtained fair valuation report of the business for the purpose of computation of 
recoverable value of Cash Generating Unit (CGU) as per the requirement of Ind AS 36 for the year ended 31.03.2023. The man,gement 
believes that there is no adverse change in the fair value of assets as on 31.03.2024 considering the market conditions. Since the 
recoverable value of CGU is higher than the carrying cost, the management believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non­
current financial assets.Further based on the evaluation of external and internal information available with the Company, future business 
projections prepared, no instances of default in paying current liabilities (including repayment of borrowings from banks and interest 
thereon), continued financial support from the promoters till March 31, 2024 along with the letter of support received from the 
promoters as on March 31, 2024, the management believes that the company will be able to meet its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet (i.e. March 31, 2024) as and whellllhey fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date and no material 
uncertainty exists about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore considering aforementioned factors, the 
management believes that there is no requirement for impairment of non financial assets as on March 31, 2024 and therefore no material 
adjustment is required to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

10. The Audited Financial Results for the Quarter and Year ended 31st March, 2024 would be uploaded and available for viewing in the 
Company's website www.clubemerald.in and also on the website of BSE Limited www.bseindia.com. 

11.lnvestor Complaint for the Quarter Ended 31-03-2024. Opening - 0, Received -0, Resolved -0, Closing - 0 

Place : Mumbai 
Dated : 30th May, 2024 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

ST A TEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

PARTICULARS 

ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property , Plant & Equipment

(c) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Other Financial Assets

(e) Other non- current assets

Sub-Total - Non-Current Assets 

2 Current Assets 

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans

(v) Others (Advances)

(c) Current Tax Assets

(d) Other current assets

Sub-Total - Current Assets 

TOTAL - ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other equity

Sub-Total - Shareholders Funds 

2 LIABLITIES 

Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liablities , 
(i) Borrowings

(ii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Provisions

(c) Other Non Current Liabilities

Sub-Total - Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liablities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 

Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues other than Micro Enterprises and 

Small Enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liablities

(b) Other current liablities

(c) Provisions

Sub-Total - Current Liabilities 

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

As per our report of even date attached 

For P G  BHAGWAT LLP 

C 

Partner 

Membership No 

Place Mumbai 
Date . 30/05/2024 

As at 31st March, 

30,24 

(Amount in Rs.) 

6,252.78 

151.07 

33.40 

29.35 

6,466.60 

112.57 

64.84 

20.97 

20.00 

1.45 

0.78 

58.56 

17.89 

297.06 

6 763.66 

250.31 
(7,948.66) 

7,698.35 

4,565.71 

304.95 

18.14 

818.16 

5,706.96 

7,493.82 

22.22 

165.58 

842.96 

224.51 

5.96 

8,755.05 

6 763.66 

As at 31st March, 

2023 

(Amount in Rs.) 

6,497.82 

153.14 

30.87 

43.84 

6,725.67 

70.73 

96.18 

40.73 

20.00 

3.35 

8.89 

43.90 

19.03 

302.81 

7 028.48 

250.31 
(6,978.67) 

6,728.36 

5,027.68 

390.70 

16.68 

821.39 

6,256.45 

6,414.58 

151.93 

675.35 

253.24 

5.28 

7,500.39 

7 028.48 

Rajesh Loya 

CFO & Director 

(DIN:00252470) 

Kapil Purohit 

Company Secretary 

::: 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2024 . 

PARTICULARS Notes 

I ASSETS 
1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 

(b) Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 3 1 

(ii) Other Financial Assets 3.2 

(c) Deferred tax assets (net)
(d) Other non current assets 4 

Sub-Total• Non-Current Assets 

2 Current Assets 
(a) lnventones 5 

(b) Financial Assets 
(i) Trade receivables 6,1 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 

(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 6,3 
(1v) Loans 6,4 
(v) Other financial assets 6.5 

(c) Current Tax Assets 7 
(d) Other current assets 8 
Sub-Total• Current Assets 

TOTAL - ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share Caprtal 9 
(b) Other equity 10 

Sub-Total· Equity 

2 LIABLITIES 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial LiabiMies 

(i) Borrowings 11, 1 
(ii) Other financial liabilrties 11.2 

(b) Provisions 12 

(c) Other Non Current Liabilities 13 
Sub-Total • Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities • 

(a) Financial Liabllrties 
(i) Borrowings 14,1 

(ii) Trade Payables 
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro 14.2 

enterpnses and small enterprises 

(a) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1 4.2 
than micro enterprises and small enterpnses 

(11i) Other F1nanc1al Liabilities 14,3 
(b) Other current l iabilities 15 
(c) Prov1s1ons 16 

Sub-Total • Current Liabilities 

TOTAL· EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Significant Accounting Policies 1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For PG BHAGWAT LLP 

DevCiatta Mainkar 
Partner 
Membership No 109795 

... 

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 

6,252.78 6,497.82 

151.07 153.14 

33.40 30 .87 

29.35 43.84 

6,466.60 6,725.67 

112,57 70.73 

64,84 96.18 
20.97 40,73 
20,00 20,00 

1.45 3.35 
0.78 8 89 

58,56 43.90 

17 89 19.03 
297,06 302.81 

6 763.66 7 028.48 

250 ,31 250,31 
(7,948.66' (6,978,671 
17,698.351 16,728.361 

4,565.71 5,027.68 
304.95 390.70 

18.14 16.68 
818.16 821.39 

5 706.96 6,256.45 

7,478.01 6,414.58 

22.22 

165,58 151 93 

858,76 675.35 
224.51 253,24 

5,96 5.28 

8,755.05 7,500.39 

6 763.66 7 028.48 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
M/S EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

� 

f.;(.JJ � :::: .... 
CEO & Director CFO & Director Company Secretary 

(DIN:00252482) (DIN:00252470) 

Place . Mumbai Place Mumbai 
.;D;.:a::.te"-'-: 3:;,;0::,I0:;,;5::.12::;;0;.:2;,,;4

��;,,.Q,���"'!i!���;e,....;,�.-
------------------ Date 30/0512024 
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EMERAIO LEISURES LIMITED 
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024 
Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operatina activities 
Net Profrt I (Loss) before extraord,narv ,terns and tax 
Ad1ustments for 

Fair value aa,n on investment 
Depreaabon and amortJsabon 
Finance costs - Loans 
Finance costs - Unwond,nA of membership depcsit 
Finance costs - Unwond,na of interest - preference shares 
Liabthbes / prov,s,ons no lonaer reouired wntten back 
Interest received 
Bad debts 
Balances wntten back 

Operat1na profit / (loss) before work1na capital changes 
Chanqes in worlana caP1tal 

Ad1ustments for (increase) I decrease in operaMnQ assets 

Inventories 
Trade receivables 
Financial Assets 
Other non current assets 
Other current assets 

Ad1ustments for increase I (decrease) in operabnQ /1ab1kbes· 
Trade payables 
Other current liabthlles 
Other non- current liabthbes 
Prov1st00s 

Cash now from extraord1narv ,terns 
Cash aenerated from operations 
Net income tax (paid) / refunds 

Net cash flow from I (used in) operatina activities (A) 

B. Cash flow from lnvestinq activities 
Capijal expenditure on fixed assets. ,ncludinA capital advances 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Interest receoved on Bank Depcslls 
Proceeds from sale of investment 
Investments in Corpcrate Bond Funds 

Net cash flow from / (used in) investina activities (Bl 

C. Cash flow from flnanclnq activities 
Repayment of Iona-term borrow,nas 
Proceeds from other short-term borrow,nas 
Interest paid 

Net cash flow from / (used in) financlna activities (C) 

Net increase I (decrease) In Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beainnina of the vear 
Cash and cash e ulvalents at the end of the ear 

As per our report of even date attached 
For P G  BHAGWAT LLP 
Charlered Accountants 
Fi 10111 SW/ W

�
10068

;::::-=:
2

��===:::::� 

Place Mumbai 

•·

For the Period ended 
31 March, 2024 

(11 41) 
247 32 
940.56 

96.80 
317 23 

(1 11) 
(2 04) 

44,16 
65.35 

(42 40) 
(12 81) 
10.02 
12.21 

1.14 

102.99 
(8.25) 

(88 98) 
5.32 

(2 38) 
1 79 

13 46 

(779 20) 
1.063 44 

(874.46) 

(973 16) 

1 566 19 
593 03 

(20.77) 

572.26 

572 26 
(14,67) 

557.59 

12.87 

(590.22) 

(19.76) 

Nlkhll Meh!JI 
CEO& Dnctor 
(DIN 00252482) 

Place · Mumbai 
Date 30/05/2024 

40.73 
20.97 

For the Period ended 
31 March, 2023 

(996 99) 

(8 69) 
309 35 
892.91 
103 66 
288 39 

(0 99) 
(1 93) 

23.33 1 606 03 
609.04 

3 40 
(13 09) 

(5 83) 
25 84 

(29 51) 

(15 45) 
(899.24) 

(41 08) 
5 00 (9' 

(36092) 

(360 92) 

360.9 

(12 81) 
1 93 

60 00 

49.12 

(420 37) 
1,628 85 

(892.91) 

315,58 

3.78 
36 95 
40.73 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
MIS EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED ,. 

R1Juh Loya 
CFO & Ovector 
(DIN 00252470) 

Kapll Purohlt 
Company Secretary 

--. 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024 

Particulars 

I Income 

(a) Revenue from operations 
(b) Other Income

Total Income (I) 

II Expenses 
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 
and stock-in-trade 
(c) Employee benefits expense
(d) Finance Cost 
(e) Depreciation & amortisation expense 
(f) Other expenses 

Total expenses (II) 

Ill Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (1-11) 

IV Exceptional items 

V Profit / (Loss) before tax (Ill-IV) 

VI Tax expense: 
(a) Current tax
(b) Deferred tax

VII Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V-VI) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Re-measurements of the defined benefit 
liabilities/(asset) 

•

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss 

IX Total Comorehensive Income for the oeriod IVll+VIII) 

X Earnings per share (of Rs. 5/- each): 
(a) Basic 
(b) Diluted

SiQnificant Accountina Policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For P G  BHAGWAT LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 10111.aw J.W100682 

� ��<> "'�'Tt:D 
Oevd� ' 

�)��•frn� !/-

Partner 10J.1trJ<.Vf>.J1(f:)jJ_��'A 11 ::> S 
MembershipNo.109795 ,.,,,�,.s•-0" � � J:I 

>-l1 - AlJI_.."""__ ......-: ;$) :'-\ �· � ) Ol'rJ'C>">.,· Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30/05/2024 

-

Ill>-· 

Note 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 

17 1,578.84 1,475.37 
18 80.47 13.21 

1.659.31 1 488.59 

19 300.77 247.86 

20 (42.40) 

21 186.35 174.26 
22 1,354.62 1,284 96 
2 247.32 309 35 

23 585.82 469 15 

2 632.47 2 485.58 

(973.16) (996.99) 

. 

(973.16) (996.99) 

. -

. 17.21 

(973.16) (1,014.20) 

3.17 1.22 

3.17 1.22 

-

1969.99 (1 012.98 

27 
(19.44) (20.26) 
(19.44) (20.26) 

1 

For and on bohalf of the Board of Directors of 
M/S EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

,,;!/! �7 
CEO & Director CFO & Director 

(DIN:00252482) (OIN:00252470) 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30/05/2024 

Kapil Purohit 
Company Secretary 

-= 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024 
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

(•) Equity Share Capttal 
Particulars 
Balance at April 01 2022 

Shares Issued dunno the vear 
Balance at March 31 2023 

Shares Issued during the vear 
Balance at March 31, 2024 

(b) Other Equity_ 

Amount 
250.31 

250.31 

250.31 

Reserves and Surplus Items of other 
comorehensive income 

Particulars 

Balance as on April 01 2022 

Profit/ i loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive 1ncome/1 loss\ 
Balance at the End of recortina oeriod i.e. March 31 2023 

ProfiV floss] for the vear 
Other comprehensive lncome/Oossl 
Balance at the End of recortina oeriod i.e. March 31 2024 

Partner 

Place Mumbai 
Date 30/05/2024 

Retained Earnings 

18 892.35 

(1 014.20) 

19 906.551 

1973 16] 

(10 879.71 

\.,lpllll Total 
Redemption Revalu ation Re-measurements of the 

Reserve Reserve defined benefit plan 

64.27 2 852.25 10.15 15 965.691 

11 014W 
1 22 1 22 

64.27 2 852.25 11.37 16 978.66 

1973.161 
3 17 3.17 

64.27 2,852.25 14.54 (7,948.65 

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of 
MIS MERA

; 
LEIS

� C:::::---�VV\C� 

t .. 
Ni ii M a Rajesh Loya Kapil Purohit 

CEO 
. ftcior CFO 4 Director Company Secreiary 

( N 00252482) (DIN 002524 70) 

Place Mumbai 
Date 30/05/2024 

-- ◄ 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. BACKGROUND 

...... 

The Company is a Public limited Company, domiciled in India and registered with the ROC - Mumbai (Maharashtra) vide Corporate Identification number 
(CIN) L 74900MH1948PLC006791. Registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, off E. 
Express Highway, Chembur, Mumbai-400071 

The Company is into the business of Club and Sports Complex having sports facilities and other Hospitality Services. 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on May 30, 2024. 

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

Iii Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified 
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

{iii Historical cost convention, accrual and going concern basis of accounting 

ne financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost 
-basis, except for the following. 

1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) Net defined benefit liability - Measured at present value of defined benefit obligations less fair value of plan assets 
3) Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model 

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market part1c1pants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of 
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liab1hty if market participants would take those characteristics 
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these financial 
statements 1s determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 and measurements that 
have some s1m1larit1es to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36 . 

• 

In add1t1on, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the 
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows· 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, 
and 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

(iii) Current and non-current classification 

assets and liab1lilies have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the 
... vision II of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non­
current classification of assets and liabilities. Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year and Current 
L1ab11ities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date. 

{iv) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 1n the application of accounting policies 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is 
done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively 

C. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Ill Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and accumulated impairment losses, if any 

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties and non­
refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended 
use and, in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs. Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 
site on which it is located is also included if there is an obligation to restore it. First time issues of operating supplies for a new club property, consisting 
of linen and chinaware, glassware and silverware (CGS) are capitalised and depreciated over their estimated useful life. 

/ 1,9C1 t r � 
��� 
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Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment ,s cap,tahsed only when ,t ,s probable that future economic benefits asSOC1ated with 
these will flow to the Company and the cost of the ,tern can be measured reliably 

•·

An asset's carrying amount Is wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount 

Property, plant and equipment under revalualton model 

Land Is measured at fair value at the date of revaluation Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amount of a 
revalued asset does not differ materially from ,ts fair value 

The Company has also determined that revaluation as at 31 March 2024 does not differ materially from fair valuation during FY 2014-15. 
Accordingly, the Company has not revalued the property at 31 March 2024 again 

A revaluation surplus Is recorded ,n OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus In equity. However, to the extent that 11 reverses a revaluation 
deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit ,s recognised In the 
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluat,on reserve 

Deprec,at,on ,s charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under 
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the written down value method, as per the useful hfe prescribed In part ·c· of 
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets, In whose case the hfe of the assets had been re­
assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking ,nto account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating cond1t1ons 
of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers· warranties and maintenance support, etc 

Class of Assets Estimated Useful life 
Plant & Machinery 5-15 years 
Office Equipment 2 years 
Computers 6 years 

The assets' estimated useful hves, residual values and deprec,at,on method are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of any changes in 
estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis 

An ,tern of property, plant and equipment ,s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued 
use of the asset Any ga,n or loss ans,ng on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment Is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Proportionate depreciation Is 
charged for the addition and disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment made during the year 

(ii) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are 1nillally measured at acquIsI1ion cos't including any directly attnbutable costs of prepanng the asset for ,ts intended use and are 
earned at cost less accumulated amort,sahon and accumulated impairment losses. 

Intangible assets with finite hves are amortised over their estimated useful life and assessed for ,mpa,rment whenever there ,s an ind,callon that the 
1ntang1ble asset may be impaired Intangible assets with indefinite useful hves are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there ,s an 
indication that the asset may be 1mpa1red 

An intangible asset ,s de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Ga,ns 
or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset, and are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset Is derecognised 

(iii) Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument ,s any contract that gives nse to a financial asset of one enhty and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity 

a. Financial assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

F1nanc1al assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument The 
Company determines the class,fication of ,ts financial assets at initial recognition. 

When financial assets are recognised 1nit1ally, they are measured at fa,r value, plus, In the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss 
directly attributable transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. 
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Subsequent Measurement 

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value"itirough other comprehensive income or fair value 
through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset 

1. Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those 
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest Interest income from these financial assets is included as a part of the Company's income 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method. 

2 Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ffVOCI\ 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if these financial assets are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest 

3. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss CFVTPLl 
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt instrument 
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as well as interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

De-Recognition 

A financial asset Is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset. Where the Company 
has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In 
such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the 
extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

J. Financial liabilities 
Financial instruments with a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets is recognised as financial liability by the Company 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument The 
Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 

All financial liab111t1es are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value, through profit or loss directly attributable 
transaction costs 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than tho� which are classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR The amortization done using the EIR method Is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

De-Recognition 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Refundable membership deposits are recognised initially at fair values as financial liability and subsequently measured at amortised cost The same are 
'">own as Refundable Membership Deposits under Financial Liabilities in the Balance Sheet. Difference between transaction price of refundable 

,mbership deposit and its fair value is recognised as deferred revenue and amortised over period of membership contract 

c. Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses. at each reporting date, whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired Ind AS-109 on Financial 
Instruments, requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. For trade receivables only, the Company recognises expected 
lifetime losses using the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS-109, from initial recognition of the receivables. For other financial assets (not being 
equity instruments or debt instruments measured subsequently at FVTPL) the expected credit losses are measured at the 12 month expected credit 
losses or an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses 1f there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

(iv} Income Taxes 
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year Current and deferred tax are 
recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively. 

(a) Current tax 

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Current tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. .,_::=:;�==:,,.__ 

•. ◄ 
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(b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the !fix bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 1n joint ventures, when the timing of 
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred 
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

(vl Inventories 
Work in progress is valued at lower of cost compns1ng of cost of land and development expenses incurred to date, or net realizable value, whichever 1s 
lower 

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted Average basis) or net 
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling 
expenses Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and other 
expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase. 

(vi) Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents 1n the Balance Sheet and cash flow statement includes cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with 
an original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(vii) Retirement and other employee benefits 

a. Short-Term-Employment Benefits 

The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The accruals for employee entitlements / 
to benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represent the amounts which the Company has a present obligation to pay as a result of the .-,, 
employee's services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary 
levels at the Balance Sheet date 

b. Post-Employment Benefits 

Defined Benefit Plans 
A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined 
benefit plans 1s calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that 
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using 
the proJected unit credit method. 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the 
obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods 
approximating to the terms of related obligations. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately 
1n the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Defined Contribution Plans 
Contributions to the provident fund and employees' state insurance scheme, which are defined contribution schemes, are recognised as an expense in 
the Profit and loss account in the period in which the contribution is due. 

:: 
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(viii) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the 
promised goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering 
of services 1s net of Indirect taxes, returns and variable consideration on account of discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the 
contract. 

Income From Operations 

Rooms. Food and Beverage & Banquets 
Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage sale 
and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per 
the contract with the customer. 

Membership Fees 

Membership fee income maJorly consists of club membership fees and annual maintenance fees. In respect of performance obligations satisfied over a 
period of time, revenue is recognised at the allocated transaction price on a time-proportion basis. The Company recognises the membership fees 
income on straight line basis over the tenure of membership as the performance obligation is fulfilled over the tenure of membership. 

Sharing Fees 
Sharing Fees income consists of income received from gain sharing arrangements for Spa and Gym fees. Revenue is recognised at the transaction 
price that is allocated to the performance obligation. 

Tower Rental & Maintenance 
Rentals basically consist of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for tele-communicallon towers at the property. These contracts for rentals are 
generally of long-term in nature Revenue is recognised in the period in which services are being rendered. 

Other Allied Services 
In relation to laundry income. communication income and other allied services, the revenue has been recognised by reference to the time of service 
rendered 

(ix) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use or sale. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

(ix) Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profiV (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 
adjusting the bonus element for all the reported period arising on account of issue of equity shares on rights and including potential equity shares on 
compulsory convertible debentures. DIiuted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profiV (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and 
other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares. by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share 

·�1 Provisions and Contingencies

A Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources is 
expected to settle the obligation, 1n respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability 1s disclosed in case of 
(a) present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. 
(b) present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
(c') a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not remote. 

Contingent assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed. 

Prov1s1ons, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

(xi) Segment reporting
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) which is a 
single business segment of Club and Sports Complex having sports facilities and other Hospitality Services 

D. RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing

' 

. 
standards applicable to the Cotnpanr, 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note 3.1- Non-Current Investments 

Particulars 

Investment in Mutual Funds 

Unquoted 

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

14847 4.442 (Previous year-2,26,683.150) Units of Aditya Birla Sun life Corporate Bond 
Fund of Face Value of Rs 10/- each 

Investment in equity instruments 

Unquoted 

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

1000 (Previous year-1000) shares of Rupee Co Op Bank Limited of the 

face value of Rs. 25/- each 

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments 

Total 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

Aggregate amount of diminuition in the value of investments 

' 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

151.07 153.13 

151.07 153.13 

- 0.25 
- 0.24 
- 0.01 

151.07 153.14 

151.07 153.38 
- 0.24 

•• 
1 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(All amounts are In Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note - 5 Inventories 
(At lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Particulars As at 31 
March, 2024 

Food and Beverages 7.59 
Operating Supplies 25.04 
Work in Progress 79.94 

Total 112.57 

.... 

As at 31 
March, 2023 

6.34 
26.85 
37.54 
70.73 

• Work in Progress of Rs 42.40 Lakhs has been valued at cost including cost of land and development expenses incurred. The 
plots and area of these land spaces are as under: 

1 Plot No CTS 366, area 2372 Sq Meters (Mani garage) - Encroached 

Ii. Plot No CTS 366 / 6 area 10,004.1 Sq Meters - Encroached by slum & unauthorized 
occupants 

Note- 6.1 Trade Receivables (Unsecured) 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 
Receivables from related parties 

Of which 
- considered good 
- considered doubtful 
- which have significant increase in credit risk 
- credit impaired 

Impairment allowance 

Trade receivables ageing schedule 

As at 31 March 2024 

• 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

64.84 96.18 
. 

64.84 96.18 
. 

. 

- . 

. 

64.84 96.18 

Both the above aggregate 12376 
Sq Mtrs. 

FY 23-24 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Not Due 
Less than 6 months -1 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
6months Year 

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 34.99 3.82 1.72 6.54 4.07 
(Iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired . . . . 

Total 34.99 3.82 1.72 6.54 4.07 

As at 31 March 2023 

FY 22-23 Outstandlna for followlna oerlods from due date of oavment 

Particulars Not Due 
Less than 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
6months Year 

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 27.65 9.23 5.41 1.28 
; (1iil Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit imoaired 

Total 27.65 9.23 5.41 1.28 

Notes-

More than 3 
vears 

13.71 

13.71 

More than 3 
vears 

52.62 

52.62 

(i) Trade receivable does not consist any amounts due from directors or other officers or the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other 
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 
(1i) The above balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and consequent adIustments, if any. 

::: 

Tot1J 

b4.84 
. 

64.84 

Total 

96.19 

96.19 
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Note • 6.2 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 

Balances with banks 

- On current accounts 

Total 

Note -6.3 Other Bank Balances 

Particulars 

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 

months 

Note-6.4 Loans • Current 

Particulars 

-

Unsecured considered good 

Loans and advances to employees 

Note-6.5 Other current financial assets 

Particulars 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Advance to suppliers 

Considered good 

Considered doubtful 

Less. Provision for doubtful advances 

No' Current Tax Assets 
� 

Particulars 

Prepaid Income Taxes 
. 

Note- 8 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Prepaid expenses 

Balances with Government authorities 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

12.15 8.28 

8.82 32.45 

20.97 40.73 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

20.00 20.00 

20.00 20.00 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

1.45 3.35 

1.45 3.35 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

' 

0.78 8 89 

. 

. 

0.78 8.89 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

58.56 43.90 

58.56 43.90 

As at 31 As at 31 

March, 2024 March, 2023 

6.69 

11.20 

17.89 

15.54 

3.49 

19.03 

...... 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Marc.h, 2024 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note 3.2 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) 

Particulars As at 31 March, 

2024 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Bank balances with original maturity of more than 12 months* 
8.00 

Security Deposits 23.53 

Other Deposits 0.10 

Interest accrued on deposit 1.78 

Total 33.40 

As at 31 March, 

2023 

8.00 

21.24 

0.10 

1.53 

30.87 

* Above Fixed Deposit includes Rs. 8 lakhs of Fixed Deposit with Sangli Urban Co-Operative Bank Ltd

which is pledged against Bank Guarantee.

Note - 4 Other non current assets 

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 

2024 2023 

Receivables from Government auttiorities 29.35 43.84 

Total 29.35 43.84 -◄ 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note 9 • Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 
As at 31 March, 2024 

No. of Shares Amount 

Authorised 
Equitv Shares of face value Rs. 5/- each 16,000,000 800.00 
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each (LY Rs. 100/-
each)' 6,000.000 6.000.00 

22 000 000 6800 
Issued. Subscribed and Fullv Paid up 
Equity Shares offace value Rs 5/- each 5 006 200 250.31 

As at 31 March, 2023 

No. of Shares Amount 

16,000,000 800.00 

6,000,000 6.000.00 

22 000 000 6800 

5 006 200 250.31 

• Preference shares include 50,00,000 (Previous year: 50,00,000) Non Cumulative, Non Convertible, Non Participating, Redeemable 
Preference shares of face value of Rs 100/- each. The preference shares carry 10% Dividend and are redeemable at par after 10 years from 
the date of issue 

a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

1) The company has only one class of Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 5/-. Each shareholder of equity share is entitled to one vote per 
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining balance of assets if any, after 
preferential payments and to have a share In surplus assets of the Company, proportionate to their individual shareholding in the paid up 
equity capital of the Company 

2) The shareholders of the company through a resolution passed in the meeting held on 23.04.2021 approved the subdivision of the equity 
share of the company from Face value of Rs. 10/- each into two equity shares of Face value of Rs. 5/- each. The record date of subdivision 

05.05.2021. 

b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year: 

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

Particulars 

Number Amount Number Amount 
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,006,200 250.31 5,006,200 250.31 
Shares issued / subscribed during the year - . 

Shares outstandina at the end of the vear 5,006,200 250.31 5,006,200 250.31 

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: 

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

Particulars 
% of share % of share 

No. of Shares 
holding 

No. of Shares 
holding 

l;gu1!Y share§ QI R§ �/- ea�h ful!Y Qaid UQ held b� • 

Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 864,450 17.27% 864,450 17.27% 

N1khil Vinod Mehta 864,440 17.27% 864,440 17.27% 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 864,440 17.27% 864,440 17.27% 

Chetan Jashwant Mehta 864,440 17.27% 864,440 17.27% 

T 3,457,770 
-

69.07% 3,457,770 69.07% 

d) Details of shares held by promoters: 

No. of shares 
No. of shares •� of change 

at the % of Total 
Promoter Name 

beginning of 
at the end of 

Shares 
during the 

the year 
the year year 

Javdeeo Vinod Mehta 864,450 864,450 17.27% 
Nikhil Vinod Mehta 864.440 864,440 17.27% 
Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 864.440 864,440 17.27% 
Chelan Jashwant Mehta 864,440 864,440 17.27% 

e) The aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash on the last five 
years immediately preceding the balance sheet date ,s NIL 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note 10 • Other Equity 

Particulars 

(a) Capital redemption reserve 

Opening balance 

Add Additions during the year 

Less Ulll1sed during the year 

Closing balance 

(b) Revaluation Reserve - Land 

Opening balance 

Add Additions during the year 

Less Utilised during the year 

Clos,ng balance 

(c) Retained Earnings 

Opening balance 

Add Profit/ (LOSS) fO( the year 

Closing balance 

(d) Other comprehensive income 

Opening balance 

Add Movement during year 

Closing balance 

Total 

As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 2023 

2024 

64 27 64 27 

64.27 64.27 

2,852 25 2,852 25 

2,852.25 2,852.25 

(9,906 55) (8,892 35) 

(973 16) (1,014 20) 

(10,879, 71) (9,906.55) 

11.37 10 15 

3 17 1 22 

14.54 11.37 

(1,948.66) (6,978.67) 

a) Capital Redemption Reserve Capital Redemption Reserve was created on redemption of Preference shares in earlier 

years. / As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve ,s created when company purchases ,ts own shares out of 

free reserves or secunhes premium A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased 1s transferred to capital 
redemption reserve The reserve ,s utilised In accordance with the provIsIons of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013 

b) Revaluation Reserve The revaluation reserve 1s credited on account of revaluation of freehold land It 1s not available ford1stnbuhon as d1v1dend 

c) Retained earnings are the profits / losses that the Cocnpany has earned till date, less any transfers to General reserve and payment of d,v,dend 

d) Other Comprehensive Income This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on remeasurement of defined benefits obhgat,on 

The above reserves will be utilised ,n accordance with the prov,sIon of the Companies Act, 2013 

':: 

'· ' 
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Note 11 1 Non-Current Borrowings 
Particulars As at 31 March, 11:1·at 31 March, 

2024 2023 

Unsecured 
Redeemable Preference Shares (Refer Note (1) Below) 3,489 58 3,172 34 

Term loan from NBFC (Refer Note (11) Below) 1,076 13 1,855 33 

Total 4,565.71 5,027.68 

(1) Terms of the Preference Shares are as follows 
Preference shares include 50,00,000 (Previous year 50,00,000) Non Cumulative, Non Convertible, Non Part,c,pat,ng, Redeemable Preference shares of face value of Rs 100/­
each The preference shares carry 10% D1v1dend and are redeemable at par after 10 years from the date of ,ssue 
The Company had issued these non-cumulative redeemable preference shares amounting to Rs 4000 00 Lakhs and Rs 1000 Lakhs during the financial year 2017-18 and 2019-20 

respeci1vely (refer note 35) 

(11) Term Loans 
a) Term Loan includes 4 loans from an NBFC amounting to Rs 1862 19 Lakhs (Previous year· 2305 44 Lakhs) carrying floating interest rate linked to the NBFC's Internal reference 
rate Total amount outstanding as on 31 03 2024 ,s Rs 1862.19 Lakhs out of which Rs 786 06 Lakhs has been shown under Other Current F,nanc,al L1ab1ht1es as current maturity of 
long term loan The Tenure details of the abOve loans ,s as follows• 

Sr No Loan Tenure ,n Months Starting EMI 

1 Term Loan - 1300 103 16-Aug-18 

2 Term Loan. 0795 72 15-Sep-21 
3 Term Loan • 4009 79 15-Nov-20 

4 Term Loan - 3590 49 05-Oct-20 

Principal & interest portion of EMls for the month of March 2024 amount1Ing to Rs 46 90Iakhs and Rs 15,81Iakhs (falling due on 15 03 2024) for abOve mentioned term loans 
have been paid subsequently in April 2024 & May 2024 

The loans are secured as follows 
1) Primary Security Hypothecat,on on all present & future current assets of the company and equitable mortgage of immovable property of company 
2) Collateral Security ( Owned by others ) 

(1) Res,denllal Property at Dadar East Mumbai 
(11) Commerc,al Property located at Fort Mumbai 

3) There has been no cont,nu,ng default as on the balance sheet date ,n repayment of any of the abOve loans and interest thereon, except stated abOve 
4) The company has used the borrow,ngs from NBFC for the purpose for which ,t was taken as at the balance sheet date 

Note 11.2 Other financial liabilities (Non Current) 

Refundable Membership Deposits 

Note 12 Provisions (Non Current) 

Pr9v1519n tor Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 
Leave encashment 

Particulars 

Particulars 

Note 13 Other Non Current Llabllitles 

Particulars 

Non refundable membership fees received 1n advance 

Deferred Revenue 
Refundable Membership Income received ,n advance 

' 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 2023 
2024 

304 95 390 70 

304.95 390.70 

As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 2023 
2024 

13 65 12 41 
4 49 4 27 

18.14 16.68 

As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 2023 
2024 

265.60 249. 04 
246.60 222 20 

305 96 350 15 

818.16 821.39 

. 
,., 

.. ; 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note 14.1 Borrowings (Current) 
As at 31 March, 

Particulars 2024 

Loans repayable on demand (Unsecured)' 

From related parties 4,683 90 
From others 2,023.86 

Current Matunt1es of Long Term Loan 770.25 

Total 7 478.01 

• Above loans carry interest rate ranQinQ from 8% to 12%. 

Note• 14.2 Trade Pavables 

Particulars As at 31 March, 

2024 

T'>tal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 22.22 
I enterpnses 

tn,,er note 26) 

• Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 165.58 
micro enterpnses and small enterprises 

Total 187.80 

As at 31 March, 

2023 

4,000.90 
1,969.14 

444.54 

6 414.58 

As at 31 March, 

2023 

151 93 

151.93 

(1) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterpnses as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" 
has been determined to the extent such parties have been 1dent1fied on the basis of information collected by the Management. 
(1i) The above balances are subJect to confirmation and reconciliation and consequent adjustments, ff any. 

Trade payables ageing schedule 

As at 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

ii Und1souted • MSME 
11) Undisouted • Other than MSME 

(111) Disputed Dues - MSME 
(1vl Disputed Dues - Other 

Total 

As at 31 March 2023 
-

Pa, ars 

llil Undisputed· MSME 
llii\ Undisouted • Other than MSME 
l(i1i) Disputed Dues - MSME 
l(1vl Disputed Dues- Other 

Total 

Note 14 3 Other Current Financial Llabilitles 
Particulars 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 

Refundable Membership Depas1ts 

Total 

• 

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 
Due Not Due 

10.49 11.73 . 

34.81 124.80 1.29 
. 

45.30 136.53 1.29 

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 
Due Not Due 

. 

107.39 1.85 
. 

. 
. 

107.39 1.85 

As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 

2024 2023 

408.66 342.54 

450.10 332.82 

858.76 675.35 

2-3 Years 

. 

1.76 

1.76 

2-3 Years 

. 

28.18 
. 

. 

28.18 

More than 3 vears Total 

22.22 .. ' 
2.92 165.58 

. 

2.92 187.80 

More than 3 vears Total 

14.52 151.93 

14.52 151.93 

F40



Note 15- Other current liabilities 

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March, ...... 

2024 2023 

Creditors for caprtal expenditure 1.51 53 99 

Advance received from customers 50.47 38.11 

Deferred Revenue 35.48 26.64 

Refundable Membership Income received in 5.58 14.18 

advance 

Non-Refundable Membership fees received in 20.50 26.33 

advance 
Statutory dues payable 82.37 76.47 

Other current liabilijies 28.60 17.52 

Total 224.51 253.24 

Note 16 Provisions fCurrentl 

Particulars 
As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 

2024 2023 

.E.[Qyjsion for Employee Benefrts 
Gratuity 2.27 2.06 

Leave Encashment 3.70 3.21 

Total 5.96 5.28 

- , 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

. Note 17 Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Room income 

Banquets and Restaurant income 
Membership Sales & AMC Income 
Guest Fees & Other Club Income 
Other operating income 

Total 

... 

For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 
SMS 

633.56 502.07 
658.03 633.06 
205.29 224.27 

19.91 33.92 
62.06 82.06 

1,678.84 1,475.37 

The Company's revenue primarily comprises of Revenue from membership fees, room income, banquet and restaurant 
operations, as given above. 

Revenue based on timing of revenue recognition 

• Product I services transferred at a point in time 
• Product / services transferred over time 

Contract balances 

1,326.87 
251.97 

1,578.84 

1,170.71 
304.66 

1,475.37 

The contract liabilities pnmanly relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is 
recognised when the performance obligation is over/ services delivered. Advance Collections is recognised when 
payment Is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied This includes advances received from the 
customer towards rooms/restauranVbanquets Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. on 
room stay/ sale of food and beverage I provision of banquet services. It also includes membership fees received in 
advance and disclosed as Income received in advance. 

Note• 18 Other Income 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 
2023 

Interest Income 

• on bank deposits 2.04 1.93 

• on other deposits 0.57 

• on income tax refunds 0.58 
Net Qain arismQ on financial assets desiQnated as at FVTPL 11.41 9.71 

Liabilities no lonQer payable written back 65.35 . 

Miscellaneous income 1 11 0.99 
' 

Total 80.47 13.21 

Note• 19 Cost of Material Consumed 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 
?R?� 

Food, beverages and other operating SUIJ(Jlies 

OpernnQ stock 33.19 36.58 

Add: Purchases 243.51 229.77 

Closina Stock 32.63 33.19 
244.07 233.16 

Other operating expenses 
Laundrv expenses 12.04 12.24 

Stock loss / damage 2.26 2.46 

Approval fees 42.40 . 

Total 300.77 247.86 

Note- 20 Chanaes in inventories of finished aoods work-in-oroaress and stock-in-trade 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 

2023 

Inventories at the end of the year 
Stock-in-trade • Land . 37.54 

Work In prOQress 79.94 . 

79.94 37.54 

inventories at the beQinninQ of the year· 
Stock-in-trade • Land 37.54 37.54 

Work in prOQress . . 

37.54 37.54 

� 
-

. � Net (increasel / decrease /42.401 . 

·- j 
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fl Note- 21 Employee bene ts expense 
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 
2023 

Salaries and waQes 173.43 162.38 
Contnbut1ons to provident and other funds (refer note 29(i)) 2.22 2.57 
Gratuity (refer note 29(i1)) 4 61 4 33 
Staff weWare expenses 6.08 4.98 

Total 186.36 174.26 I 

Note- 22 Finance costs 
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 
2023 

lat!lr:§:SI !!Xll§n�!! 2n !22!z:2!!!!n!l� 
Secured Loans 288.08 305.34 
Unsecured Loans 652 49 587 56 

Qther ml!!!:§:�t !,Q�I� 

Unwinding of interest on Non-cumulative redeemable Preference Shares 317.23 288.39 
Unwinding of interest on membership deposits 96.80 103.66 

Total 1,354.62 1,284.96 

Note- 23 Other expenses 
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 

31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 
?MO 

QQ!!.rating !!XQ!!.nses 

Banquet Expenses 18 52 22.20 
Repairs to Buildings 2.43 0.52 
Repairs to Machinery 15.37 10.76 
Repairs to Others 5.01 6 00 
Fuel, Power and Light 158 00 151 69 
Comm1ss1on, Brokerages & Shanngs 92 12 58.88 

!z!!neral 11xQ!!n�11� 

Licence Fees 26 95 10 30 
Rates & taxes 89.46 97 53 
Insurance 9 63 5 52 
Advert1s1ng and Pubhc1ty 1 24 0.60 
Telephone & Postage ' 1 78 2.39 
Legal & Professional charges 21.92 5.37 
Payment to Auditors (Refer note below) 2.75 2.50 
Bank Charges 11 78 10.74 

... '
Outsourced Support Services 47.42 51.08 
Directors' fees 0.08 0.13 
Travelhng and Conveyance 1.50 2 06 
Security Expenses 15.51 7.90 
Loss on Sale of Asset . 1 03 
Bad Debts 44 16 . 

Sundry balances wntten off . 3 30 
Software charges 4 71 4.63 
Miscellaneous Expenses 15.48 14.02 

Total 685.82 469.15 

Notes: 
1. Payment to Auditors 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year 
31 March, 2024 ended 31 March, 

?n?� 

Statutory Audit 2.25 2.00 
I Tax Audit 0 50 0 50 

. 

Total 2.76 2.so 1
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

Note • 24 Income Tax 

Particulars 

(a) Income Tax recognised in profit or loss 
Current Tax: 
In respect of current year 
In respect of prior years 

Deferred tax: 
In respect of current year 
In respect of prior years 
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 
relatinQ to continuinQ operations 

(b) Income tax recognised in other Comprehensive income 
Deferred tax: 
Remeasurements gains and losses on post employment benefits 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of other 
comprehensive income 

l(c) Unrecognised Deferred tax • 

Deferred tax relates to the following: 
Deferred tax asset/ lliabilitvl 

Deferred tax asset 
Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 
Gratuity 
Leave encashment 
carry foiward losses 
unabsorbed depreciation 

Total 
Deferred tax liability 
Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 

Net Gain/loss on Finanacial Assets FVTPL (cummulative) 

Total 
Net deferred tax asset/ (liabilitvl 
Deferred tax exoensemncomel 

Deferred Tax Assets not recognised in the balance sheet in view of 
continued losses 

As at 31st 
March, 2024 

(Rs.I 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

-

Balance sheet 

As at 31st 
March, 2024 

(Rs.I 

-

-

4.14 

2.13 

1,810.96 

1,261.82 

3 079.04 

130.59 

5.22 

135.81 
2 943.23 

2,943.23 

As at 31st 
March, 2023 

/Rs.I 

. 

. 

17.21 
. 

17.21 

. 

. 

Balance sheet 

As at 31st 
March, 2023 

/Rs.I 

-

-

3.76 

1.94 

1,520.47 

1,196.32 

2 722.51 

129.39 

2.80 

132.19 
2 590.32 

2,590.32 

F44



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

..• 

Note - 25 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) 

A. Continoent Liabilities: 

Contingent liabilities 

B Commitments· 

Particulars 

Particulars 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for 

As at 31st 
March, 2024 

/Rs.I 

. 

As at 31st 

March, 2024 

(Rs.I 

. 

As at 31st 
March, 2023 

(Rs.l 

. 

As at 31st 

March, 2023 

/Rs.I 

Note - 26 Dues to micro and small enterprises - As per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED' Act) 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company 

As at 31st As at 31st 

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023 

!Rs.I /Rs.I 
Principal amount remainInA unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 22.22 . 

Amount of Interest due remaininA unpaid to any supplier as the end of the year . -

Amount of interest paid under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the . . 

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year. 

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not 

- . 

paid). 

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpa� at the end of year. - -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
lvear. 

. . 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of intimation received from the 
suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There are overdue amounts 
payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006, as at 
the reporting date or anytime during the year, amount is outstanding because of pending reconciliation of ledgers due to rate overcharged 
,n bills and hence no interest has been paid or payable. 

Note - 27 Earnings per share 

Particulars 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2024 March 2023 

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per 
share 
Weighted average number of basic equity shares 5,006,200 5,006,200 

Weighted average number of diluted equity shares 5,006,200 5,006,200 

Computation of basic and diluted earnlnqs per share 
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (97,316,147) (101,419,864) 

Basic earnings per equity share of INR 1 0 each (19.44) (20.26) 
Diluted earninas per eauitv share of INR 1 0 each (19.44) (20.26 

·- j 
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(All amounts are in Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note - 28 Related party transactions 

-

A. Related Parties (As identified by the Management In the Light of Requirements of Ind AS 24)

1. Key Management Personnel (KMP)
(a) Rajesh Loya
(b) Jashwant Mehta
(c) Nikhil Mehta
(d) Jaydeep Mehta
(e) Chelan Mehta
(f) Maneesh Taparia

(g) Amit Vardhaman Shah 
(h) Gautam Shah (Independent Director)
(i) Dhwani Mehta (Women Director)

2. Parties in which KMPs have substantial interest
(a) Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited
(b) Juhu Resorts and Development Private Limited
(c) Neptune Resorts & Developers Private Limited
(d) Ahmednagar Finance Ltd.
(e) Techno Equity Broking Private Limited

(f) Techno Property Developers Private Limited
(g) Juhu Tours & Travels Private Limited
{h) Techno Finvestrade (India) Private Limited
(i) Techno Realtors Private Limited

B. Transactions with Related Parties:
Details of transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31 2024

2024 

Key 

Description• managerial 

oersonnel 

Purchase of Services 
- Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited . 

Interest Expense 
- Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited . 

- Techno Property Developers Private Limited . 

- Techno Realtors Private Limited . 

- Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited . 

- Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 45.61 

- Chelan Jashwant Mehta 2.51 

Software AMC 
- Techno Finvestrade (India) Private Limited . 

Reimbursement of expenses paid 
- Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited -

- Chelan Jashwant Mehta . 

- Nikhil Mehta 1.06 

Sitting fees to Independent Directors/Non-executive Directors 

- Amit Vardhaman Shah 0.03 

- Maneesh Taparia 0.04 
- Gautam Shah 0.01 

Others 

. 

180.02 
. 

0.02 
208.35 

. 

. 

3.50 

. 

. 

-

. 

. 

. 

2023 

Key 

managerial Others 

oersonnel 

. 0.21 

. 131.02 

. 9.82 

. 19.52 

. 190.80 
27 33 . 

2.11 . 

. 3.43 

- 0.39 

0.21 -

4.10 . 

. 0.05 
- 0.04 
. 0.04 
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Annual Membership Fees (Income) 

• Amit Vardhaman Shah

Loans / Inter Corporate Deposits received 

- Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited

- Techno Property Developers Private Limited

- Techno Realtors Private Limited

- Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited

- Jashwant Bha1chand Mehta

- Chelan Jashwant Mehta

Repayment of Loans/ Inter corporate deposits received 

- Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited

- Techno Property Developers Private Limited

- Techno Realtors Private Limited

- Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta

Outstanding Balances 

Loans/ Inter corporate deposits from related parties 

- Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited

- Techno Realtors Private Limited

- Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited

- Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta

- Chelan Jashwant Mehta

Interest payable on inter corporate deposits 

- Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited

- Techno Property Developers Private Limited

- Techno Realtors Private Limited

- Juhu Resorts And Development Private Limited

- Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta

- Chelan Jashwant Mehta

... 
-

-

-

-

-

124.25 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

511. 75 

25.00 

-

-

-

41.05 

2.26 

0.17 - 0.14 

498.25 - 1,989.15
- . 113.50 
- - 651.65 

198.25 - 786.15 
- 275.03 -

- 25.00 -

1,227.50 - 1,147.15
- - 393.50

15.00 - 919.65 
- 0.03 -

1,928.50 - 1,553.00 
- - 15.00 

2,218.65 - 2,020.40
- 387.50 -

- 25.00 -

162.02 - 117.92
- - 8.84 

0.01 - 17.57 

187.52 - 171. 72
- 24.60 -

- 1.90 -
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EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(All amounts are In Rs Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Note. 29 Employee benefits 

..... 

(I) Defined Contribution Plans: 

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, Employees State Insurance Corporation and other retirement benefits for qualifying 
employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage / fixed amount of the payroll costs to fund the 

benefits. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the respective fund set up by the government authority. 

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year : 

Description 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 

Post-emclovment defined contribution plans 2.22 

Total 2.22 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan: 

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of 

provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,or as per the Company's scheme whichever is more beneficial 

2.57 

2.57 

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were earned out as at March 
31, 2024 The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method (PUC) 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained In this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised In 
the Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date: 

a) Amounts for the current period are as follows : 

Gratuitv 
31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

I Change in defined benefit obligation 

Liability at the beginning of the year 14.48 13.07 

Expenses recognised in profit and loss account - -

- Interest cost 1 07 0 82 

- Current service cost 3.54 3.51 

- Past service cost - -

Remeasurement (gains) / losses -

Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from 
• 

- -

i Change in demographic assumptions - -

11 Change m financial assumptions 0.14 (0.48) 

iii Experience variance (3.31) (0.74) 

Benefits paid - (1.70) 

Disbursements from Plan Assets - -

Disbursements directly paid by the employer -

L1abI11tv at the end of the vear 15.92 14 48 

II Fair value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - -

Expenses recognised In profit and loss Account 

- Return on plan assets 
Remeasurement gains / (losses) 

- Actuarial gain I (loss) on plan assets - -

Contnbut,ons - -

Benefits paid - -

Less Acquis1tion/Divesture - -

Fair value of clan assets at the end of the vear - -

Ill Actual return on plan assets 

Return on plan assets - -

Actuarial gain I (loss) on plan assets - -

Actual return on olan assets - -

IV Amount recognised in the balance sheet 

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 15.92 14.48 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 
-

(Surplus) / Deficit 15.92 14.48 

Effect Of Asset Ceiling -

Current portion of the above 2 27 2.06 

Non Current oortion of the above 13.65 12.41 
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V.a Expenses recognised In the statement of profit and loss 
Net Interest Expense 1 07 0 .82 
Current service cost ,-

3.54 3.51 
Past service cost 
Expense recoanised 1n statement of profit and loss 4.61 4 .33 

V.b Included In other comprehensive Income 
Return on plan assets excluding net interest 
Net actuarial ( gain)/ loss recognised (3 17) (1 22 
Actuanal (aa1nl / loss r=nised in OCI (3.17) ( 1.22 

VI Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount Rate 7 20% 740% 
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 
Attnt1on rate 

up to 30 years 1500% 1500% 
31-40 years 15.00% 15 00% 
4 1-50 years 15.00% 1500% 
above 50 years 1500% 1500% 

Salarv Escalation rate 5.00% 500% 

Mortality rate Indian Assured lives Mortality (20 12-
14 ) Ultimate (IALM ult) 

VII WeiAhted Averaqe Duration of Defined Benefit ObllAatlon 
Duration Years 6 4 1  6.74 

VIII A quantitative sensitivity analysis for slAniflcant assumption Is shown as follows: 
Sens1tiv1ty analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the present value of
obligation Sens1t1v1ty analysis 1s done by varying ( increasing/ decreasing) one parameter by 100 basis points (1% ) 

al Impact of chanae In discount rate when base assumotion is decreased/ increased bv 100 basis ooint 
Discount rate Present value of obligation 

31/03/2024 I 31/03/2023 
6.20% 16.641 15 17
8 .20% 15.24 13 84 

Figures of 31 March 2023 are as per d1scouting rate of 6 4% and 8 4%. For 31 .03 2024 the d1scout1ng rate 1s changed to 6 2% and 8 2% 

b) Impact of change In salary Increase rate when base assumption is decreased/ Increased by 100 basis point

Salary Increment rate Present value of obligation 
• 31/03/2024 I 31/03/2023 

4.00% 15.371 13.95 
6.00% 16 49 15.04 

cl lmoact of chanae In withdrawal rate when base assumotlon Is decreased I increased bv 100 basis =Int 
Withdrawal rate Present value of obligation 

31/03/2024 I 31/03/2023 
14 00% 15841 14 40 
16 00% 15.98 14 55 

IX Risk Exposure And Asset liability Matching 

Prov1s1on of a defined benefit scheme poses certain nsks,some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies take on uncertain long term 
obligations to make future benefit payments 

Liability Risks 

a) Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk-

Risk which arises 1f there 1s a mismatch In the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, 
the company 1s successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements Hence companies are encouraged to adopt 
asset-liability management 

b) Discount Rate Rlsk-
Vanations 1n the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but 1n prac\Jse can have a significant impact on
the defined benefit liabilities 

c) Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk -

Since pnce inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salanes will often result 1n higher 
future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's 
discretion may lead to uncertainit1es in estimating this Increasing nsk. 

Unfunded Plan Risk 

This represents unmanaged nsk and a growing liability There is an inherent nsk here that the company may default on paying the benefits in 
adverse circumstances Funding the plan removes volatlhty in company's financials and also benefit nsk through return on the funds made available 
for the plan. 

...,., 

-::: 

-◄ 
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS 

 

The following tables present certain accounting ratios as of respective periods. For details, see “Financial 

Statements” on page 78. 

 

Accounting Ratios: 

   

 Based on Unaudited Financial 

Results 

Based on Audited Financial 

Statements 

Particulars As at and for the 

three months 

period ended 

June 30, 2024 

As at and for the 

three months 

period ended June 

30, 2023  

As at and for 

the year 

ended March 

31, 2024 

As at and for 

the year 

ended March 

31, 2023 

Basic earnings per share (₹) (5.56) (4.63) (19.44) (20.26) 

Diluted earnings per share (₹) (5.56) (4.63) (19.44) (20.26) 

Return on Net Worth (%) # NA NA NA NA 

Net Asset Value per Equity 

Share (₹) 

(216.60) (196.23) (211.04) (191.60) 

EBITDA (₹ in lakhs) 108.09  167.42  548.30 584.10 

# As Net Worth is negative for the period concerned, Return on Net Worth cannot be calculated 

 

The formula used in the computation of the above ratios are as follows: 

 

Particulars 

Basic earnings per 

share 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity 

Shareholders from continuing operations, as applicable / Weighted Average number 

of Equity Shares. 

Diluted earnings per 

share 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity 

Shareholders from continuing operations, as applicable / Weighted Average number 

of Equity Shares (including convertible securities). 

Return on net worth 

(in %) 

Profit/(Loss) for the Period/Year as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to 

Equity Shareholders (prior to other comprehensive income)/ Net worth at the end of 

the period/year on basis. 

Net asset value per 

Equity Share 

Net Worth on basis divided by the number of Equity Shares outstanding for the 

period/year. 

Net Worth as per 

2(1)(hh) SEBI 

(ICDR) 

Regulations,2018 

Net worth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves 

created out of the profits and securities premium account and debit or credit balance 

of profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated 

losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per the 

audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of 

assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation. 

EBITDA Profit/(Loss) for the year before finance costs, tax, depreciation, amortisation, 

exceptional items and other income as presented in the statement of profit and loss in 

the Financial Statements. 
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Calculation of Return of Net Worth 
(In ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise specified) 

Particulars  As at and for 

the three 

months period 

ended June 30, 

2024 

As at and for 

the three 

months period 

ended June 30, 

2023  

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2024 

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2023 

Return on Net Worth (%) #  NA NA NA NA 

PAT   (278.51) (231.73) (973.16) (1,014.20) 

Net worth   (10,843.61) (9,823.71)  (10,565.13) (9,591.97) 

# As Net Worth is negative for the period concerned, Return on Net Worth cannot be calculated 

 

Calculation of Net asset value per Equity Share 
(In ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise specified) 

Particulars As at and for the 

three months 

period ended 

June 30, 2024 

As at and for the 

three months 

period ended 

June 30, 2023  

As at March 

31, 2024 

As at March 

31, 2023 

Net Worth (A) (₹ in Lakhs) (10,843.61) (9823.71) (10,565.13) (9,591.97) 

No. of shares (B) (in numbers) 50,06,200 50,06,200.00 50,06,200 50,06,200 

Net Assets Value (₹) [(A x 

100,000) / B] 

(216.60) (196.23) (211.04) (191.60) 

 

Calculation of EBITDA 
(In ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise specified) 

Particulars  As at and for the 

three months 

period ended 

June 30, 2024 

As at and for the 

three months 

period ended 

June 30, 2023 

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2024 

For the year 

ended March 

31, 2023 

Profit / (Loss) before tax (278.51) (231.73) (973.16) (996.99) 

Add: Finance Cost 336.79 

 

345.70 

 

1354.62 1,284.96 

Add: Depreciation and 

Amortisation Expenses 

54.53 

 

57.92 

 

247.32 309.35 

Less: Other Income (4.72) 

 

(4.47) 

 

(80.47) (13.21) 

Less: Exceptional Items - - - - 

EBITDA 108.09 167.42 548.30 584.11 
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS AFTER MARCH 31, 2024 

 

 

Except as stated disclosed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of 

Operations”, no circumstances have arisen since March 31, 2024, that could materially and adversely affect or 

are likely to affect, our trading, our operations or profitability, or the value of our assets or our ability to pay our 

material liabilities within the next 12 months.  

 

i. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 18, 2024, transacted, and approved, amongst other 

items, the following material matters: 

a. DLOF for proposed Rights Issue of Equity shares was discussed during the meeting. However, 

as one of Director of the Company requested Board to give some more time for review of DLOF. 

The Board therefore decided to take up the approval in the next Board meeting to be conducted 

within next fifteen days. 

b. Approved the formation of Limited Liability Partnership between Emerald Leisure Limited and 

Mr. Raj Gala Shah of Gala Group and to give NOC for use of word Emerald in naming the LLP 

as Emerald Realtors LLP. 

 

ii. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 30, 2024, transacted and approved, the following 

matters: 

a. Approved the Audited Financial Result for the quarter & year ended March 31, 2024. 

b. Approved the Auditor Report on the Financial Results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 

2024.  

c. DLOF for proposed Rights Issue of Equity shares was discussed during the meeting. However, 

as one of Director of the Company requested Board to give some more time for review of DLOF. 

The Board therefore decided to take up the approval in the next Board meeting to be conducted 

within next fifteen days.  

d. d. Adopted the Declaration regarding the Auditors' Report with unmodified opinion(s) pursuant 

to regulation 33(3) (d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

iii. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on June 10, 2024, transacted and approved, the following 

matters: 

a. In-Principal approved the Draft Letter of Offer ('’DLOF"), for issuance of equity shares by way 

of rights issue, to the existing shareholders of the Company for an amount not exceeding Rs. 

12.51 Crores (Rupees Twelve Crores Fifty-One Lakh only) in accordance with the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018, as amended and other applicable laws ("Rights Issue") in the ratio and price to be decided 

at a later stage, for submission of the same to the Stock Exchange where the equity shares of 

the Company are listed. The DLOF will be submitted to BSE Limited for seeking in-principal 

approval for the said Rights Issue.  

 

iv. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 14, 2024, transacted and approved, the following 

matters:  

a. Approved the Un-audited Financial Result for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 pursuant to 

Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

b. Approved the Limited Review Report on the Un-audited Financial Results for the quarter ended 

June 30, 2024. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS 

 
You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our 

Audited Financial Statements as of and for the year ended on March 31, 2024 and Unaudited Financial Results 

as of and for the three months period ended June 30, 2024included in this Letter of Offer. Our Audited Financial 

Statements for Fiscal 2024 and Unaudited Financial Results as of and for the three months period ended June 30, 

2024, were prepared in accordance with Companies Act and Ind AS including the reports thereon, included in 

the chapter titled ‘Financial Statements’ beginning on page 78 of this Letter of Offer. Unless otherwise stated, the 

financial information used in this section is derived from the Audited Financial Statements and Unaudited 

Financial Results of our Company.  

 

This discussion contains forward-looking statements and reflects our current views with respect to future events 

and financial performance. Actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking 

statements as a result of certain factors such as those set forth in the sections titled ‘Risk Factors’ and ‘Forward-

Looking Statements’ on pages 19 and 15 respectively. 

 

Our financial year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular “Financial Year” and 

“Fiscal” are to the twelve (12) month period ended March 31 of that year. References to the “Company”, “we”, 

“us” and “our” in this chapter refer to Emerald Leisures Limited, as applicable in the relevant period, unless 

otherwise stated. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires, (i) the financial information for the Fiscal 

2024 included herein is based on Audited Financial Statements and (ii) the financial information included herein 

for the three months period ended June 30, 2024is based on the Unaudited Financial Results included in this 

Letter of Offer. For further information, see “Financial Statements” beginning on page 78. 

 

Overview of Our Business 

 

We are an integrated hospitality company engaged in the business of providing club, banquet halls and 

accommodation services. We operate our Club under the name ‘Club Emerald’ which is located at Swastik Park, 

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai 400071, Maharashtra. Our Club, banquet halls and rooms are 

located in a single business premises enabling us to recognize ourselves as a ‘full-service provider’ in hospitality 

space offering services to various sections of society from middle-class segment to the upper-class segment. The 

strategic location of our Club premises provides us with an added advantage of offering ‘Business cum Leisure’ 

services to corporate customers for conducting conferences, meetings, exhibitions etc. Our Club’s premises are 

spread across approx. 5,977 sq mtrs plot of land. 

 

Our Company was incorporated on March 8, 1933 as ‘Phaltan Sugar Works Limited’ and later on came to be 

known as ‘Apte Amalgamations Limited’. Thereafter the name was changed to its present name i.e. ‘Emerald 

Leisures Limited’. The Company ventured into the business of providing club membership in the financial year 

2013-14. While our banquet and room accommodation facilities are open for all, our members get access to wide 

range of recreational and sports facilities provided by our Club. We provide various sports facilities to our Club 

members such as badminton, table tennis, squash, snooker/billiards and other indoor and outdoor games along 

with additional access and benefits related to gym, library, spa and beauty salon, multi-cuisine restaurants and 

bar, swimming pool and well-designed rooms on fee-based arrangement. As on June 30, 2024, we had 688 club 

members. We have 70 affiliations with other clubs and resorts as on June 30, 2024. 

 
Significant Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations 

 

Our business, financial condition and results of operations are affected by numerous factors and uncertainties, 

including those discussed in the section entitled ‘Risk Factors’ on page 22 of this Letter of Offer. The section sets 

out certain key factors that have had, and we expect will continue to affect our business, financial condition and 

results of operations: 

 

• Bottleneck capacity of Club memberships and Banquets; 

• Customer spending and general economic and market conditions; 

• Seasonality of business and overall performance of hospitality sector; 

• Competition from Clubs, Hotels and Restaurants; 

• Changes in government policies and regulations; laws pertaining to industry. 

 

Significant Accounting Policies 
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The accounting policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Unaudited Financial Results 

and Audited Financial Statements. For details of our significant accounting policies, please refer chapter titled 

“Financial Statements” on page 78.  

 

Change in Accounting Policies  

 

There has been no change in accounting policies during the Financial Year 2024 and for the three months period 

ended June 30, 2024. 

 

Reservations, Qualifications and Adverse Remarks/Other Observations in CARO 

 

The following is the summary of qualifications/reservations/emphasis of matters/adverse remarks/other 

observations in CARO (as applicable) in limited review report for the three months period ended June 30, 2024 

and the Audited Financial Statements for Financial Year 2024:  

 

Period Type of 

Financials 

Qualifications/Reservations/Matter 

of Emphasis/Adverse 

Remarks/Other Observations in 

CARO 

Impact on the 

Financial 

Statements of the 

Company 

Three months period 

ended June 30, 2024 

Standalone Matter of Emphasis 

We wish to draw your attention to 

Note 4 to the unaudited financial 

results regarding impairment 

assessment of non-current financial 

assets performed by the Company. 

Based on the assessment performed, 

the management believes that there is 

no requirement for impairment of non-

current financial assets as on June 30, 

2023 and therefore no material 

adjustment is required to the financial 

results for the quarter ended June 30, 

2023. Our opinion is not modified in 

respect of this matter. 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 

Financial Year 2024 Standalone  We also wish to draw your attention to 

Note 9 to the financial results 

regarding impairment assessment of 

non-current financial assets 

performed by the Company. Based on 

the assessment performed, the 

management believes that there is no 

requirement for impairment of non-

current financial assets and therefore 

no material adjustment is required to 

the financial results for the year ended 

March 31, 2024. Our opinion is not 

modified in respect of this matter as 

well. 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 

 Standalone Based on our examination which 

included test checks, the company has 

used accounting softwares for 

maintaining its book of accounts 

which has a feature of recording audit 

trail (edit log) facility such as: 

 

1. Shawman MMS* Ultra, property 

(Management of inventory at 

various stores within the entity), 

2. Property management system 

(PMS) (Management of room 

occupancies and invoicing) and 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 
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Point of sales management system 

(Management of restaurant and outlet 

operations at the club from order 

booking to invoicing). 

Financial Year 2023 Standalone  We draw your attention to Note No. 

35 to the financial statement, which 

describes the impact on the financial 

statement of the Company with 

respect to restatement of financial 

statement for previous year ended 

March 31, 2022. The Company has 

issued non-cumulative redeemable 

preference shares amounting to Rs. 

4,000.00 lakhs and Rs. 1,000 lakhs 

during the financial year 2017-18 and 

2019-20 respectively. The Company 

did not account for the fair value gain 

on initial recognition and interest cost 

associated with the issuance of these 

non-cumulative redeemable 

preference shares. During the current 

financial year, the Company has 

restated the opening numbers as at 

April 01, 2021 and as at March 31, 

2022, and has appropriately accounted 

for the fair value gain and interest cost 

related to the redeemable preference 

shares. Our opinion is not modified in 

respect of this matter 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 

  We also wish to draw your attention to 

Note No. 36 to the financial 

statements regarding impairment 

assessment of non-current financial 

assets performed by the Company. 

Based on the assessment performed, 

the management believes that there is 

no requirement for impairment of non-

current financial assets and therefore 

no material adjustment is required to 

the financial statements (or results) for 

the year ended March 31, 2023. Our 

opinion is not modified in respect of 

this matter as well 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 

  CARO reporting clause 2(a) - No 

physical verification of inventory has 

been conducted by the Management 

during the year. Hence, we are unable 

to comment on the appropriateness of 

the coverage and procedures of 

inventory verification and on dealing 

of discrepancies of 10% or more in the 

aggregate for each class of inventory 

in the books of accounts. 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 

  CARO reporting clause 14(a) - In our 

opinion and based on our 

examination, though the company is 

required to have an internal audit 

system under section 138 of the Act, it 

does not have the same established for 

the year. 

No impact on 

financial statements 

of the Company 
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Principal Components of Our Standalone Profit and Loss statement 

 

Income 

 

Our income comprises of revenue from operations and other income. 

 

Revenue from operations comprises of Room income, Banquets and Restaurant income, Membership Sales & 

AMC Income, Guest fees & Other Club Income, Other operating income.  

 

Other income comprises of interest income and other non-operating income. 

 

Expenses 

 

Our expenses comprise of the cost of material consumed, changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-

progress and stock-in-trade, employee benefits expenses, finance cost, depreciation and amortisation expenses 

and other expenses. 

 

Cost of materials consumed 

 

The cost of materials consumed comprises of Food, beverages and other operating supplies, laundry expenses.  

 

Stock loss/ damage, Approval fees. 

 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade 

 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade comprises of difference in amount 

of inventories of material for consumption at the beginning of period vis-a-vis amount of inventories at the end of 

period. 

 

Employee benefit expense 

 

Employee benefit expenses comprises of salaries and wages, contribution to provident fund and other funds, staff 

welfare expenses, leave encashments and gratuity to staff/ workers. 

 

Finance cost 

 

Finance cost comprises interest on secured and unsecured loans, unwinding of interest cost on non-cumulative 

redeemable preference shares and unwinding of interest on membership deposits. 

 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

 

Depreciation and amortization expense comprises of depreciation on buildings, plant and machinery, electrical 

installations, furniture and fixtures, office equipment, computers and hydraulic pipeline. 

 

Other expenses 

 

Other expenses comprises of  Banquet Expenses,  Repairs to Buildings ,Repairs to Machinery, Repairs to Others, 

Fuel, Power and Light, Commission, Brokerages & Sharings , License Fees, Rates & taxes, Insurance, Advertising 

and Publicity, Telephone & Postage, Legal & Professional charges, Payment to Auditors (Refer note below),Bank 

Charges, Outsourced Support Services, Directors' fees ,Travelling and Conveyance, Security Expenses, Loss on 

Sale of Asset, Bad Debts ,Sundry balances written off, Software charges, Miscellaneous Expenses. 

 

Tax expense 

 

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable 

income for the year/period as determined in accordance with applicable tax rates and the provisions of applicable 

tax laws. 
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Deferred tax liability or assets is recognized based on the difference between taxable profit and book profit due to 

the effect of timing differences. Our deferred tax is measured based on the applicable tax rates and tax laws that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the relevant balance sheet date. 

 

 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars 

Quarter ended June 30, 

2024 

Quarter ended June 

30, 2023 
Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 

Amount % of 

Total 

Income 

Amount % of 

Total 

Income 
Amount 

% of 

Total 

Income 

Amount 

% of 

Total 

Incom

e 

Revenue 

from 

Operations 

359.63 

 

98.70% 

 

400.29 98.90% 

 

1,578.84 

 

 

95.15% 

 

1,475.37 99.11% 

Other 

Income 
4.72 1.30% 4.47 1.10% 80.47 4.85% 13.21 0.89% 

Total 

Income 

 

364.35 

 

 

100.00% 

 

404.76 100.00% 

 

1,659.31 

 

 

100.00% 

 

1,488.59 100.00% 

Cost of 

Material 

consumed 

56.14 15.41% 58.26 14.39% 300.77 18.13% 247.86 16.65% 

Changes in 

Inventories 

of finished 

goods, work 

in progress 

and stock in 

trade 

(0.00) (0.00) (0.65) (0.16%) (42.40) (2.56%) 0.00 0.00% 

Employee 

benefits 

expenses 

46.81 12.85% 42.70 10.55% 186.35 11.23% 174.26 11.71% 

Finance cost 336.79 92.43% 345.70 85.41% 1,354.62 81.64% 1,284.96 86.32% 

Depreciation 

and 

Amortization 

expenses 

54.53 14.97% 57.92 14.31% 247.32 14.90% 309.35 20.78% 

Other 

Expenses 
148.59 40.78% 132.56 32.75% 585.82 35.31% 469.15 31.52% 

Total 

Expenses 
642.86 176.44% 636.49 157.25% 2,632.47 158.65% 2,485.58 166.98% 

Profit 

/(Loss) 

before tax 

(278.51) (76.44%) (231.73) (57.25%) (973.16) (58.65%) (996.99) 66.98% 

Tax expense:         

- Current 

Tax  
- - - - -  - - 

- Deferred 

Tax  
- - - - -  17.21 1.16% 

Net Tax 

expenses 
- - - - -  17.21 1.16% 

Profit/(Loss

) for the 

period after 

tax 

(278.51) (76.44%) (231.73) (57.25%) 

 

(973.16) 

 

 

(58.65%) 

 

(1,014.20

) 
(68.13%) 

 

Quarter ended June 30, 2024 compared to Quarter ended June 30, 2023 

 

Total Income 

 

Our total income for the Quarter ended June 30, 2024, decreased to ₹364.35 lakhs by 9.98% from ₹404.76 lakhs 

for the Quarter ended June 30, 2023. Our total income comprises of revenue from operations and other income. 
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Revenue from operations 

 

Our revenue from operations decreased by ₹ 40.66 Lakh i.e. 10.16% from ₹400.29 lakhs for the Quarter ended on 

June 30, 2023 to ₹359.63 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024. This decrease was on account of reduced 

business impacting corporate travels and as well as Non Corporate travels which had impacted our revenue from 

operations.      
 

Other Income 

 

Other income is increased by ₹0.25 lakhs or by 5.62% from ₹ 4.47 lakhs for the Quarter ended June 30, 2023  to 

₹4.72 lakhs for the Quarter ended June 30, 2024. Primarily due to increase in amount of Net gain arising on 

financial assets designated as FVTPL.  

 

Expenses 

 

Our total expenses increased by ₹6.37 lakhs or by 1.00% from ₹ 636.49 lakhs for the Quarter ended June 30, 2023 

to ₹642.86 lakhs in the Quarter ended June 30, 2024. 

 

Cost of Materials Consumed 

 

Cost of materials consumed decreased by ₹2.13 lakhs or by 3.65% from ₹58.26 lakhs for the Quarter ended on 

June 30, 2023 to ₹56.14 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024. Despite an increase in cost of material 

consumed mentioned above, it constituted 15.41% of the total income for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024 vis-

à-vis 14.39 %of the total income for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily due to 

increase in sales. 

 

Change in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade 

 

Cost of change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress decreased by ₹0.65 lakhs 

from ₹ 0.65 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2023to NIL for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024. 

 

Employee benefits expense 

 

Employee benefits expense increased by ₹4.11 lakhs or by 9.63 % from ₹42.70 lakhs for the Quarter ended on 

June 30, 2023 to ₹46.81 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024. This was primarily due to increments  in 

employee pay. The total employee benefits expenses constituted to 12.85% of total income for the Quarter ended 

on June 30, 2024 as compared to 10.55% of total income for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2023. 

 

Finance costs 

 

Finance costs decreased  by ₹8.92 lakhs or by 2.58% from ₹345.70 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2023 

to ₹336.79 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024. Finance cost constituted 92.43% of the total income for 

the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024 and decrease in finance costs was primarily on account of decrease in 

instalment amount as per repayment schedule as loans are nearing their maturity. 

 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by ₹3.39 lakhs or 5.86%, from ₹57.92 lakhs for the Quarter 

ended on June 30, 2023 to ₹54,53 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024 due to the use of Written  Down 

Value method. 

 

Other expenses 

 

Accordingly, other expenses increased by ₹16.03 lakhs or by 12.10% from ₹132.56 lakhs for the Quarter ended 

on June 30, 2023to ₹ 148.59 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024. Other expenses constituted 40.78 % 

of the total income for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024vis-à-vis 32.75 %of the total income for the Quarter 

ended on June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to  increase in license fees and increase in legal and 

professional charges   

 

Profit/(loss) before tax 

Considering above discussions, our loss increased by ₹46.78 lakhs from loss of ₹231.73 lakhs for the Quarter 

ended on June 30, 2023 to loss of ₹278.51 lakhs in the Quarter ended on June 30, 2024.  
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Tax expense: NIL 

 

Profit/(loss) for the Year 

 

Considering above discussions and following tax expenses adjustment, our loss increased by ₹46.78 lakhs from 

loss of ₹231.73 lakhs for the Quarter ended on June 3, 2023 to loss of ₹278.51 lakhs in the Quarter ended on June 

30, 2024. 

 

                             

Fiscal 2024 compared to Fiscal 2023 

 

Total Income 

 

Our total income for Fiscal 2024 increased to ₹1,659.31 lakhs by 11.47% from ₹ 1,488.59 lakhs in Fiscal 2023.Our 

total income comprises of revenue from operations and other income. 

 

Revenue from operations 

 

Our revenue from operations increased by 7.01% from ₹ 1,475.37 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹1,578.84 lakhs in Fiscal 

2024. This Increase was primarily due to Business Growth in Room/Banquet sales as well as Food and Beverages 

business. The revenue from room sales increased from ₹502.07 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹633.56 lakhs in Fiscal 

2024 on account of room bookings at nearly full occupancy. Revenue from banquets and restaurant sales increased 

from ₹633.06 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹658.03 lakhs in Fiscal 2024 on account of increased bookings.   

 

Other Income 

 

Other income increased by ₹67.25 lakhs or by 508.91% from ₹13.21 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹80.47 lakhs in Fiscal 

2024. The increase was primarily due to increase in Fixed deposit interest income, other deposit, net gain arising 

on financial assets designated as a FVTPL and written off liabilities payable.  

 

Expenses 

 

Our total expenses increased by ₹146.89 lakhs or by 5.91% from ₹ 2,485.58 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹ 2,632.47 

lakhs in Fiscal 2023. Our expenses comprise of: 

 

Cost of Materials Consumed 

 

Cost of materials consumed increased by ₹ 52.91 lakhs or by 21.35% from ₹247.86 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹ 

300.77 lakhs in Fiscal 2024. Despite increase in cost of material consumed mentioned above, it constituted 18.13% 

of the total income for the Fiscal 2024 vis-à-vis 16.65 % of the total income for Fiscal 2023. increase in expense 

is primarily due to SRA approval fees treated as WIP amounting to ₹ 42.00 lakhs 

 

Change in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade 

 

Cost of change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress increase by 100.00 %  from 

Nil in Fiscal 2023 to ₹42.40 lakhs in Fiscal 2024 due to recognition of approval fees treated as WIP.  

 

Employee benefits expense 

 

Employee benefits expense increased by ₹12.08 lakhs or by 6.93 % from ₹174.26 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹186.35 

lakhs in Fiscal 2024. This was primarily due to increase in salary and wages by 6.81% as well as staff welfare 

expenses by 22.21%. The total employee benefits expenses constituted to 11.23% of total income for Fiscal 2024 

as compared to 11.71% of total income for Fiscal 2023. 

 

Finance costs 

 

Finance costs increased by ₹69.66 lakhs or by 5.42% from ₹1,284.96 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹ 1,354.62 Lakhs in 

Fiscal 2024. Finance cost constituted 81.64% of the total income for Fiscal 2024 and 86.32% Fiscal 2023. Increase 

in finance costs was primarily due to increase in interest of unsecured loan and unwinding interest on non-

cumulative redeemable preference shares impact on IND AS. 
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Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by ₹62.04 lakhs or 20.05%, from ₹309.35 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 

to ₹247.32 in Fiscal 2024 primarily due to lower depreciable base of assets which is due to use of Written Down 

Value method. 

 

Other expenses 

 

Accordingly, other expenses increased by ₹116.68 lakhs or by 24.87% from ₹ 469.15 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹        

585.82 lakhs in Fiscal 2024. Other expenses constituted 35.31% of the total income for the Fiscal 2024 vis-à-vis 

31.52 %of the total income for Fiscal 2023. The increase was primarily due to an increase in cost of business 

activities such as Commission expenses, Licence Fees, Legal Professional charges and written off of bad debts by 

₹33.24 lakhs, ₹ 16.65 Lakhs, ₹16.55 lakhs and ₹ 44.16 lakhs respectively.  

 

Profit/(loss) before tax 

 

Considering above discussions, our loss decreased by ₹23.83 lakhs from ₹ 996.99 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹ 973.16 

lakhs in Fiscal 2024.  

 

Tax expense:  

 

Tax Expenses decreased by 100.00% from ₹ 17.21 Lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to Nil in Fiscal 2024. 

 

Profit/(loss) for the Year. 

 

Considering above discussions and following tax expenses adjustment, our loss decreased by ₹41.04 lakhs from 

₹1,014.20 lakhs in Fiscal 2023 to ₹ 973.16 lakhs in Fiscal 2024.  

 

Cash Flows 

 

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the cash flows for the periods indicated: 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 

Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) operating 

activities 

557.59 (360.92) 

Net cash flows from/ (used in) investing activities 12.87 49.12 

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) financing 

activities 

(590.22) 315.58 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (19.76) 3.78 

 

Related Party Transactions 

 

For details, kindly refer to the details for related party transactions mentioned in chapter ‘Financial Information- 

Related Party Transactions- Note 28 on page F-46.  

 

Details of Default, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default and present status, in 

repayment of statutory dues or repayment of debentures or repayment of deposits or repayment of loans 

from any bank or financial institution 

 

There have been no defaults in payment of statutory dues or repayment of debentures and interest thereon or 

repayment of deposits and interest thereon or repayment of loans from any bank or financial institution and interest 

thereon by the Company for the Fiscal 2024 and Fiscal 2023. 

 

An analysis of reasons for the changes in significant items of income and expenditure is given hereunder: 

 

1. Unusual or infrequent events or transactions 

 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Letter of Offer, there have been no unusual or infrequent events or 

transactions including unusual trends on account of business activity, unusual items of income, change in 

accounting policies and discretionary reduction of expenses.  
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2. Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing 

operations. 

 

Except as described under section “Risk Factors- Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our 

control may have adversely affect our business and results of operations” on page 35 there are no significant 

economic changes that may materially affect or likely to affect income from continuing operations. 

 

3. Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on sales, 

revenue or income from continuing operations. 

 

Except as described under section “Risk Factors- Our operating results may fluctuate significantly and could 

fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors due to various factors.” on page 31, in our 

opinion, there are no other known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material 

adverse impact on revenue or income from continuing operations. 

 

4. Future changes in relationship between costs and revenues 

 

Our Company’s future costs and revenues will be determined by demand/supply situation of our end services 

as well as the prices of our service suppliers, cost of employees, government policies and budget constraints 

of our customer(s). 

 

5. Increases in net sales or revenue and introduction of new products or services or increased sales prices 

 

Increases in revenues shall by and large be linked to increases in business activities.  

 

6. Status of any publicly announced New Products or Business Segment 

 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Letter of Offer, we have not announced and do not expect to announce 

in the near future any new products or business segments. 

 

7. Total Turnover of Each Major Industry Segment in Which the Issuer Operates 

 

Our Company currently operates in the Hospitality sector. Details of the industry turnover and other relevant 

information is disclosed in the section “Industry Overview” beginning on page 60. 

 

8. Seasonality of business 

 

Our Company’s business is partly seasonal in nature. Banquet income and F&B income is low during the 

period between June to October. 

 

9. Any Major Dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers 

 

There is no significant dependence on a single or few customers or suppliers.  

 

10. Competitive conditions: 

 

Competitive conditions are as described under the chapters “Industry Overview” and “Our Business” 

beginning on pages 60 and 67 respectively. 

 

11. Significant Developments after March 31, 2024 that may affect our results of operations 

 

Except as disclosed in this Letter of Offer, there have not arisen, since the date of the last financial statements 

disclosed in this Letter of Offer, any circumstances which materially and adversely affect or are likely to 

affect our profitability taken as a whole or the value of our total assets or our ability to pay our liabilities 

within the next 12 months. For further information, see “Our Business” on page 67. 
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SECTION VI - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 

 

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Except as stated in this section, there are no outstanding litigation with respect to (i) issues of moral turpitude or 

criminal liability on part of our Company; (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our Company; (iii) 

economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company; (iv) any pending matters which 

if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or our financial 

position: and (v) other litigation, including civil or tax litigation proceedings, which involves an amount in excess 

of the Materiality Threshold (as defined below) considered material in terms of (a) the “Policy for Determination 

of Materiality of Events and Information” adopted by our Board, in accordance with the requirements under 

Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and (b) the materiality policy adopted by the Board of Directors 

of our Company through its resolution dated May 18, 2024 for the purpose of litigation disclosures in this Letter 

of Offer (“Materiality Policy”). 

 

In this regard, please note the following: 

 

Any outstanding litigation involving our Company i.e., proceedings other than litigation involving issues of moral 

turpitude, criminal liability, material violation of statutory regulations or proceedings related to economic 

offences, shall be considered material and shall be disclosed in this Letter of Offer, if  

 

i. the monetary claim involved in such proceedings is exceeds the lower of the following: 

a. two percent of turnover, as per the last audited financial statements of the Company; 

b. two percent of net worth, as per the last audited financial statements of the Company, except 

in case the arithmetic value of the net worth is negative; 

c. five percent of the average of absolute value of profit or loss after tax, as per the last three 

audited financial statements of the Company. 

 

ii. any monetary liability is not quantifiable or does not fulfil the threshold as specified in 

paragraph (i) above, but the outcome of which could, nonetheless, directly or indirectly, or 

together with similar other proceedings, have a material adverse effect on the business, 

operations, results of operations, prospects, financial position or reputation of the Company. 

 

Therefore, based on (i) above, any pending litigation / arbitration proceedings involving the Company 

shall be considered “material” for the purposes of disclosure in the Issue Documents if such proceedings 

are above ₹ 29.51 lakhs i.e., two percent of turnover being 1,475.37 lakhs, as per the last audited 

financial statements of the Company (“Materiality Threshold”). 

 

Pre-litigation notices received by our Company from third-parties (excluding notices pertaining to any offence 

involving issues of moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings 

related to economic offences) has not been evaluated for materiality until such time our Company are impleaded 

as defendants in litigation proceedings before any judicial forum. 

 

All terms defined herein in a particular litigation disclosure pertain to that litigation only. A summary of legal 

proceedings involving our Company and our Subsidiary, which we consider material, is set forth below: 

  

1. Litigations involving our Company 

 

There are no issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability, material violation of statutory regulations or economic 

offences or material pending matters involving our Company, except as follows: 

 

A. Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability initiated against our Company 

 

i. Criminal Complaint bearing case No. 38/SW/2016 filed by Nahalchand Laloochand Private Limited 

(“Complainant”) v/s. Emerald Leisure Limited & Anr. (“Accused”) before the Hon’ble Court of the 

Learned Additional Chief Metropolitian Magistrate’s 11th Court at Kurla, Mumbai (“MMC”). The 

Complainant states the Accused No. 1, i.e. ELL cheated the shareholders (which includes the 

Complainant) and misappropriated the property of ELL by selling it under value to Accused No. 6 

(Metalores Private Limited) wherein Accused No. 2 and 4, being directors of the ELL were also directors 

of Accused No. 6. Order was passed by the MCC on September 13, 2017 to issue process against Accused 
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for the offence punishable under section 420 and 406 of the Indian Penal Code. The matter remains 

pending as on date of this Letter of Offer.  

 

However our Company has filed Criminal Revision Application No. 107 of 2018 before the Hon’ble 

Court of Sessions at Mumbai against Nahalchand Laloochand Private Limited and the State of 

Maharashtra seeking order to recall, quash and set aside the above mentioned Order as the same Hon’ble 

Court has erred in passing such Order when there is no sufficient evidence against the Accused and that 

the matter involved in it is of civil nature. The matter remains pending as on date of this Letter of Offer.  

 

B. Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability initiated by our Company 

 

Except as stated above in “Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability initiated 

against our Company”, our Company has not initiated any proceedings of moral turpitude or criminal liability.  

 

C. Proceedings involving material violations of statutory regulations by our Company 

 

Nil 

 

D. Economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company 

 

Nil 

 

E. Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the Materiality Threshold 

or are otherwise material in terms of the Material Policy and other pending matters which, if they result in 

an adverse outcome would materially and adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our 

Company. 

 

i. Interim Application of 2023 (the “IA”) was filed by our Company (“Applicant”) in Writ Petition (L) 

No. 8386 of 2022 in the matter between Chembur Ekta CHS SRA (Proposed)(“Petitioner”) versus the 

State of Maharashtra & Ors. (“Respondents”) in the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay. Our Company in 

the IA stated that it is the owner of the land admeasuring 4045.5 sq.mtrs at CTS No. 366/41 (part of) of 

village Chembur, opposite Swastik Park, Mumbai 400 074 (“Plot”). The Company further stated that the 

Petitioner played fraud on the Company by illegally executing a conveyance deed of the said Plot. 

Further, by virtue of the said Writ Petition, the Petitioner actually intends to implement an illegal Slum 

Rehabilitation Scheme with respect to the Plot, which admittedly does not belong to the Petitioner and 

which are not declared as slums in accordance with provisions of the relevant acts. The Company has 

preferred the IA for the purpose of getting added as an Applicant and is seeking to intervene in the matter 

to place on record the true and correct facts and for the purpose of seeking dismissal of the said Writ 

Petition. The matter remains pending as on date of this Letter of Offer. However, it is to be noted that 

the litigations are pertaining to plots other than the one where our Club is located and does not affect 

operation/business of our Club in any manner. 

 

ii. The Company has been made a party in the Writ Petition (L) No. 10183 of 2023 filed by one Bhimnagar 

and Acharya Nagar SRA Co-Operative Housing Society (“Petitioner”) against the Slum Rehabilitation 

Authority & Others (“Respondents”) in the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay (the “WP”). The said WP 

was filed by the Petitioners (i.e. the Society formed by ‘Occupants’ residing on property situated at CTS 

No. 366/6 (pt) of village Chembur, Swastik Park, Mumbai 400 071 admeasuring 6841.34 square meters 

(“Suit Property”)) due to the non-action of Respondent Nos. 1 to 4 and their inability to perform their 

statuary dues, powers and functions under the relevant acts, in issuing the required approval as per 

stipulated timeline for the rehabilitation of near about 428 dwellers on the Suit Property inspite of the 

Suit Property being declared as a ‘Slum Rehabilitation Area’ vide order dated November 1, 2022 passed 

by the Slum Rehabilitation Authority (“SRA”) (‘Respondent No.1’) and the Chief Executive Officer, 

SRA (‘Respondent No.2’). 

 

The said matter is not primary to the business of our Company, neither our hotel/club is not located on 

the Suit Property. However, the Company has been made a party as Respondent No. 6 to the said WP as 

the Suit Property is owned by the Company and the Company was appointed as Owner-cum-Developer 

to implement the S.R. Scheme to rehabilitate all eligible occupants/ slum dwellers residing on the Suit 

Property. The Company is willing and ready to implement the S.R. Scheme. However Respondent 4 is 
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not issuing the required certificate and hence depriving the Petitioners the statutory right of rehabilitation. 

Presently, the said WP is in the pre-admission stage and was listed for urgent hearing on October 4, 2023. 

The matter remain pending as on date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

iii. Suit No 2189 of 1996 has been filed in the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay against the Company 

(“Defendant”) by Vikas Narayan Raikar (“Plaintiff”) claiming additional FSI of 1992.50 sq.feet on CTS 

No 366/46 (Old CTS No 366/13) which was allotted to the Plaintiff for redevelopment during the year 

1979. The Company has disputed the same and the Suit is pending before the Hon’ble High Court of 

Bombay.  

 

In the meantime the plaintiff gave NOC to transfer the plot to Meena Towers Co-operative Housing 

Society Ltd as required under MOFA Act after development. Accordingly the Company executed and 

registered Deed of Conveyance dated October 31, 2015 in favour of Meena Towers Co-operative 

Housing Society Limited against this Deed of Conveyance another Suit has been filed against the 

Company and two others in City Civil Court at Bombay the Plaintiff for executing Deed of Conveyance 

in favour of Meena Towers Co-operative Housing Society Limited. This suit is also pending before the 

Hon City Civil Court. No material liability is expected by the Company from the above two suits.  

 

F. Tax Proceedings 

 

Below are the details of the pending tax cases involving our Company, specifying the number of cases pending 

and the total amount involved:  

 

Particulars  Number of cases  Amount involved (₹ in 

lakhs) 

Indirect Tax 

Sales Tax/VAT Nil Nil 

Excise  Nil Nil 

Customs  Nil Nil 

Service Tax Nil Nil 

Total  Nil Nil 

Direct Tax 

Appeal filed against the order 

passed against our Company 

Nil Nil 

Cases filed by our Company  Nil Nil 

Total  Nil Nil 

 

2. Litigations involving our Subsidiary 

 

Our Company does not have any subsidiary as on date of the filing of this Letter of Offer. 
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS 

 

Our Company requires various licenses, registrations, permits and approvals issued by relevant central and state 

authorities under various rules and regulations (“Approvals”) for carrying on its present business activities. The 

requirement for the Approvals may vary based on factors such as the legal requirements in the jurisdiction, in 

which the business of the Company is located. Further, our obligation to obtain and renew such approvals arises 

periodically and applications for such approvals are made at the appropriate stage. 

 

We are not required to obtain any licenses or approvals from any government or regulatory authority for the 

objects of this Issue. For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” at page 47. 
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

 

Authority for the Issue 

 

The Board, pursuant to its resolution dated July 24, 2023, authorized the Issue under Section 62(1) (a) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Draft Letter of Offer was approved by our Board, at its meeting held on June 10, 2024. 

 

This Letter of Offer has been approved by our Rights Issue Committee, at its meeting held on September 9, 2024.  

 

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on September 10, 2024, determined the Issue Price as ₹12.50/- per 

Rights Equity Share and the Rights Entitlement as 2 (Two) Rights Equity Share(s) for every 1 (One) Equity 

Share(s) held on the Record Date, i.e., Tuesday, September 10, 2024.  

 

Our Company has received ‘in-principle’ approval from BSE for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted 

pursuant to Regulation 28 of SEBI Listing Regulations, vide letter bearing reference number 

LOD/RIGHT/TT/FIP/720/2024-25 dated August 9, 2024 issued by BSE for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to 

be Allotted pursuant to the Issue. Our Company will also make applications to BSE to obtain its trading approvals 

for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars. BSE shall be the designated Stock 

Exchange for the purpose of this Issue.  

 

Our Company has been allotted the ISIN ‘INE044N20013 for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the 

respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company. For details, see “Terms of the 

Issue” on 103.  

 

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental Authorities 

 

Our Company, our Promoters, our Directors, the members of our Promoter Group and persons in control of our 

Company have not been prohibited from accessing the capital market or debarred from buying or selling or dealing 

in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any jurisdiction or 

any authority/court as on date of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Further, our Promoters and our Directors are not promoter or director of any other company which is debarred 

from accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under 

any order or direction passed by SEBI. 

 

Neither our Promoter nor our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of 

Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018).  

 

Association of our Directors with the securities markets 

 

None of our Directors are associated with the securities market in any manner. 

 

Prohibition by RBI 

 

Neither our Company nor our Promoters and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters or 

fraudulent borrowers by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines 

on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There are no violations of securities law committed by 

them in the past or are currently pending against them.  

 

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018  

 

Our Company, our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group are in compliance with the Companies 

(Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018. 

 

Eligibility for the Issue 

 

Our Company is a listed company, incorporated under Indian Companies Act, 1913. The Equity Shares of our 

Company are presently listed on BSE. We are eligible to undertake the Issue in terms of Chapter III and other 
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applicable provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Further, our Company is undertaking this Issue in 

compliance with Part B of Schedule VI to the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

Compliance with Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations  

 

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations, to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1) (a) of the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchange for listing of the Rights 

Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue. BSE Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange for the Issue. 

 

Compliance with Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

 

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations as explained below: 

 

1. Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter 

of Offer with SEBI; 

 

2. The reports, statements and information referred to above are available on the website of BSE; 

 

3. Our Company has an investor grievance handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our Board as regards share 

transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor 

grievances.  

 

As our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations and given that the conditions specified in Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations are not applicable to our Company, the disclosures in this Letter of Offer are in terms of Clause (4) 

of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

Disclaimer Clause of SEBI 

 

The Draft Letter of Offer has not been filed with SEBI in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations as the size of the Issue 

is up to ₹1,251.55 lakhs*. The threshold of the rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls 

below this threshold, the Draft Letter of Offer has been filed with the Stock Exchange and not with SEBI However, 

the Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for information and dissemination through the SEBI intermediary 

portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in terms of the circular (No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011) dated 

January 19, 2018 issued by the SEBI for record purpose only, and will be filed with the Stock Exchange. 
*Assuming full subscription 

 

Disclaimer from our Company  

 

Our Company accepts no responsibility for statements made other than in this Letter of Offer or in any 

advertisement or other material issued by our Company or by any other persons at the instance of our Company. 

Anyone placing reliance on any other source of information, including our Company’s website i.e. 

www.clubemerald.in or an affiliate of our Company, would be doing so at his own risk. 

 

All information shall be made available by our Company to the public and investors at large and no selective or 

additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any manner whatsoever, including at 

road show presentations, in research or sales reports, at bidding centers or elsewhere. 

 

Investors who invest in this Issue will be deemed to have represented to our Company and its directors, officers, 

agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines 

and approvals to acquire the Rights Equity Shares of our Company, and are relying on independent advice / 

evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this Issue. Our Company and its directors, officers, 

https://siportal.sebi.gov.in/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
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agents, affiliates and representatives accept no responsibility or liability for advising any Applicant on whether 

such Applicant is eligible to acquire any Rights Equity Shares. 

 

No information which is extraneous to the information disclosed in this Letter of Offer or otherwise shall be given 

by our Company or any member of the Issue management team or the syndicate to any particular section of 

investors or to any research analyst in any manner whatsoever, including at road shows, presentations, in research 

or sales reports or at bidding centers. 

 

No dealer, sales person or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained 

in this Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Letter of Offer 

is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity Shares and the Rights Entitlement, but only under circumstances and in 

the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in this Letter of Offer is current 

only as at its date. 

 

Cautions 

 

Our Company shall make all relevant information available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in accordance 

with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of 

the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner whatsoever, including at presentations, in research or sales reports, 

etc., after filing this Letter of Offer.  

 

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained 

in this Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Letter of Offer 

is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity Shares and the Rights Entitlements, but only under circumstances and in 

the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in this Letter of Offer is current 

only as at its date. 

 

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction 

 

This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and regulations 

thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in 

Mumbai, India only. 

 

Disclaimer Clause of BSE 

 

As required, a copy of the Draft Letter of Offer has been submitted to BSE. The disclaimer clause, as intimated 

by BSE to us, post scrutiny of the Draft Letter of Offer is as under:  

 

"BSE Limited ("the Exchange") has given vide its letter dated August 09, 2024, permission to this Company to 

use the Exchange's name in this Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company's securities are 

proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this letter of offer for its limited internal purpose of deciding 

on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in any manner: 

 

• Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this letter of offer; 

or 

• Warrant that this Company's securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or 

• Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its 

management or any scheme or project of this Company; 

 

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this letter of offer has been cleared or approved by 

the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this Company may 

do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the 

whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with such 

subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any other reason 

whatsoever” 

 

Designated Stock Exchange 

 

The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue is BSE Limited. 
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Listing 

 

Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares 

subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights 

Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing 

thereof. 

 

Selling Restrictions 

 

This Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from the Registrar. 

This Letter of Offer is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person.  

 

The distribution of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Common Application 

Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter (“Issue Materials”) and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Equity 

Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements 

prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Issue Materials may come are required to 

inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the 

Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch the Issue Materials only to Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company/ Registrar. 

  

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or 

distribution of the Issue Material or any other material relating to our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights 

Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be required for that purpose, except that this Letter of Offer 

has been filed with the Stock Exchange. 

 

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this 

Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights Entitlement may 

not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such 

jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be 

illegal to make such an offer. 

 

This Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your information and 

may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in 

whole or in part, for any purpose. If this Letter of Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where to do 

so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek 

to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to in this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised 

to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares or accepting any 

provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Equity 

Shares or Rights Entitlement. 

 

Neither the delivery of this Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any 

implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such 

information or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this date or the date 

of such information. Each person who exercises Rights Entitlements and subscribes for Equity Shares, or who 

purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set out below. 

 

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS BUSINESS, 

LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO 

ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF 

BUYING OR SELLING OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. AS A 

RESULT, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND 

TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING 

THE OFFER OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. IN ADDITION, OUR 

COMPANY NOR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES ARE MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY 

OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN 

INVESTMENT IN THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER 

ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS. 

 

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES  

 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE 

REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
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“SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, 

RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT IN A 

TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE 

BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE 

LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, 

AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS FOR SALE IN THE UNITED 

STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. 

ACCORDINGLY, LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR 

INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME. 

 

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Common Application Form which: (i) appears to our 

Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United 

States or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares and/ or the Rights Entitlements 

is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the 

Common Application Form, including to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Common 

Application Form is not in the United States and eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares and/ or the 

Rights Entitlements under applicable securities laws, and such person is complying with laws of jurisdictions 

applicable to such person in connection with this Issue; or (iii) where either a registered Indian address is not 

provided or where our Company believes acceptance of such Common Application Form may infringe applicable 

legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Rights Equity Shares 

and/ or Rights Entitlements in respect of any such Common Application Form.  

 

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Common Application Form which: (i) appears to our 

Company or its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not 

include the relevant certification set out in the Common Application Form headed “Overseas Shareholders” to the 

effect that the person accepting and/or renouncing the Common Application Form does not have a registered 

address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States, and such person is complying with laws of the 

jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with the Issue, among others; (iii) where our Company 

believes acceptance of such Common Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; 

or (iv) where a registered Indian address is not provided, and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue 

any Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Common Application Form. 

 

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the U.S. 

Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Securities Act”), any state securities commission in the United States 

or any other U.S. regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the 

merits of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Rights Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this 

Letter of Offer. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.  

 

NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA 

 

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES 

IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO 

AUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN, CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, GHANA, HONG KONG, 

INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT, MALAYSIA, NEW ZEALAND, SULTANATE OF OMAN, 

PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE, SOUTH AFRICA, SWITZERLAND, 

THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE UNITED KINGDOM AND THE UNITED STATES. 

THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO 

CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR 

RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS A SOLICIATION 

THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THIS LETTER OF 

OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO ANY OTHER 

JURISDICTION AT ANY TIME. 

 

Consents 

 

Consents in writing of our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Statutory Auditor, Legal 

Advisor, the Registrar to the Issue, Banker to the Issue/ Refund Bank to act in their respective capacities, have 

been obtained and such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Our Company has received written consent dated September 9, 2024 from our Statutory Auditor, M/s. P.G. 

Bhagwat LLP., Chartered Accountants for inclusion of (i) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 
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Company for Fiscal 2024 and their report thereon dated May 30, 2024 (ii) The Limited Reviewed Unaudited 

Financial Results for the three months period ended June 30, 2024 and their report thereon dated August 14, 2024 

and (iii) to include their name in this Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in relation to their report on the Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 in 

the form and context in which it appears in this Letter of Offer.  

 

Such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Expert Opinion 

 

Our Company has received written consent dated September 9, 2024 from our Statutory Auditor, M/s. P.G. 

Bhagwat LLP., Chartered Accountants for inclusion of (i) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 

Company for Fiscal 2024 and their report thereon dated May 30, 2024 (ii) The Limited Reviewed Unaudited 

Financial Results for the three months period ended June 30, 2024 and their report thereon dated August 14, 2024 

and (iii) to include their name in this Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in relation to their report on the Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 in 

the form and context in which it appears in this Letter of Offer.  

 

Such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date of this Letter of Offer. The term ‘expert’ and consent 

thereof, does not represent an expert or consent within the meaning under the U.S. Securities Act.  

 

Except for the abovementioned documents, provided by M/s. P.G. Bhagwat LLP., Chartered Accountants, our 

Company has not obtained any expert opinions. 

 

NOTICE TO INVESTORS  

 
NO ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN OR WILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC OFFERING 

OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN ANY JURISDICTION 

OTHER THAN INDIA, OR THE POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS LETTER OF 

OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL RELATING TO OUR COMPANY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS 

OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS 

REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT 

BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, AND NEITHER THIS LETTER OF OFFER NOR 

ANY OFFERING MATERIALS OR ADVERTISEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS 

ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR PUBLISHED IN OR FROM 

ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 

APPLICABLE IN SUCH COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION. THIS ISSUE WILL BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE 

WITH THE APPLICABLE SEBI REGULATIONS. EACH PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS 

ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN THIS IS SUE WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE 

MADE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS. 

 

Filing  

 

This Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations.  

 

Further, SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which 

the threshold of filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the 

rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores 

to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Draft Letter of Offer has been 

filed with the Stock Exchange and not with SEBI. However, the Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for 

information and dissemination through the SEBI intermediary portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in terms of the 

circular (No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011) dated January 19, 2018 issued by the SEBI for record 

purpose only, and will be filed with the Stock Exchange. 

 

Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances 

 

In compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular for Online Dispute Resolution 

(“ODR”) bearing reference number SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (“SEBI 

ODR Master Circular”) we have completed the registration process of our Company on the Smart Market 

Approach for Resolution through ODR Portal (‘SMART ODR’). Further we undertake to resolve and take action 

https://siportal.sebi.gov.in/
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on the complaints received in respect of the Issue expeditiously and satisfactorily and in accordance with the 

timelines provided under the SEBI ODR Master Circular and Securities and Exchange Board of India Circular 

bearing reference number SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/CIR/P/2023/156 dated September 20, 2023. The Company has 

authorized its Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer to redress all complaints in relation to the Issue 

including any complaints regarding the post–issue activities of the Issue such as allotment, refund, and dispatch. 

 

Our Company has adequate arrangements for redressal of investor grievances in compliance with the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required by the 

SEBI Circular no. CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011. Consequently, investor grievances are tracked online by 

our Company. 

 

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when 

required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to transfer 

of shares and effective exercise of voting rights. Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited is our Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent in consultation with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. 

 

Investor complaints received by our Company are typically disposed of within 15 days from the receipt of the 

complaint. 

 

Investor Grievances arising out of this Issue 

 

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue at: 

 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate,  

J.R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel,  

Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 011, India 

Telephone: +91 022 4961 4132/ 31998810 

Email: newissue@purvashare.com 

Investor Grievance Email: newissue@purvashare.com  

Website:www.purvashare.com 

Contact Person: Deepali Dhuri 

SEBI Registration Number: INRO00001112 

Validity: Permanent 

 

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address for any 

pre-Issue/ post-Issue related matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment/ share certificates/ demat credit/ 

Refund Orders etc. 

 

Kapil M. Purohit, is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. His contact details are set 

forth hereunder. 

 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Kapil M. Purohit  

Club Emerald Sports Complex, 

Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park,  

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, 

Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 071, India.  

Telephone: +91 22 25277504/ +91 9967255120 

E-mail: companysecretary@clubemerald.in  

Website: www.clubemerald.in 

 

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated 

investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors will 

be available on the website of the Registrar at www.purvashare.com. Further, helpline number provided by the 

Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties is +91 022 4961 4132/ 31998810. 

 

  

mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
http://www.purvashare.com/
mailto:companysecretary@clubemerald.in
http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.purvashare.com/
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SECTION VII – ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION 

 

TERMS OF THE ISSUE 

 

This section is for the information of the Investors proposing to apply in this Issue. Investors should carefully read 

the provisions contained in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the 

Common Application Form, before submitting the Common Application Form. Our Company is not liable for any 

amendments or modifications or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of the 

Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigation and ensure that the Common 

Application Form is correctly filled up. Unless otherwise permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with 

SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, Investors proposing to apply in this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by 

mechanism as disclosed in this section. 

 

Investors are requested to note that Application in this Issue can only be made through ASBA. 

 

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 

dated January 22, 2020 (“SEBI- Rights issue Circular”), all investors (including renounce) shall make an 

application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility. 

 

OVERVIEW  

 

This Issue and the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and 

conditions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the 

Common Application Form, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our 

Company, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of 

India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from the RBI or other 

regulatory authorities, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchange 

and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice. 

 

Important: 

 

1. Dispatch and availability of Issue materials: 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, our Company will send/ 

dispatch at least three days before the Issue Opening Date, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter, Common Application Form and other issue material (“Issue Materials”) only to the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions where 

the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction 

and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible 

Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid 

e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue 

Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. 

 

Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company and who make a request in this regard. 

In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent 

only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail 

address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided 

by them. 

 

Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Common Application Form 

(provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under 

applicable securities laws) on the websites of:  

 

(i) our Company at www.clubemerald.in;  

(ii) the Registrar at www.purvashare.com;  

(iii) the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com; and 

 

Shareholders who have not received the Application Form may apply, along with the requisite Application Money, 

by using the Application Form available on the websites above, or on plain paper, with the same details as 

mentioned in the Application Form available online 

http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
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Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the 

Registrar (i.e.www.purvashare.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible 

Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same shall also be 

available on the website of our Company (i.e. www.clubemerald.in).  

 

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to reach out the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have 

provided their Indian address through other means, as may be feasible.  

 

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Common Application Form, the Rights 

Entitlement Letter and the issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India 

is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit 

this Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer is 

being filed with SEBI and the Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares may not 

be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 

Entitlement Letter, the Common Application Form or any Issue related materials or advertisements in connection 

with this Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with and as permitted under the 

legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the 

Rights Entitlement Letter or the Common Application Form (including by way of electronic means) will not 

constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which such 

an offer, invitation or solicitation is unlawful or not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make 

such an offer, invitation or solicitation. In those circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, 

the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Common Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and 

should not be acted upon for making an Application and should not be copied or re-distributed. 

 

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter or the Common Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Equity Shares or the 

Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter or the Common Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might, contravene 

local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its affiliates to any filing or registration 

requirement (other than in India). If the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter 

or the Common Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, 

they must not seek to make an Application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer, 

the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Common Application Form. Any person who 

makes an application to acquire Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares offered in the Issue will be deemed to 

have declared, represented and warranted that such person is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and 

the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in such person’s jurisdiction 

and India, without requirement for our Company or our affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in 

India).  

 

2. Process of making an Application in this Issue: 

 

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA 

Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use the 

ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their 

Application through ASBA. For details, please refer to the paragraph titled “Procedure for Application through 

the ASBA process” on page113. 

 

Investors applying through the ASBA facility should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications 

before making their Application through the ASBA process. For details, see “- Procedure for Application through 

the ASBA Process” on page 113. 

 

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 

dated September 25, 2012, within the periods stipulated therein, Applications may be submitted at the Designated 

Branches of the SCSBs. 

 

Further, in terms of the SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making 

Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such SCSB should have a separate 

account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the 

purpose of making an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account 

for such an Application. 

 

Our Company, the Registrar and the SCSBs shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat details 

http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
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provided by the Applicants. 

 

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the offer 

to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that Eligible Equity Shareholders 

making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce 

any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process”. 

 

3. Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders  

 

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the 

credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. 

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the 

Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow 

account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements 

relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible 

Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar 

on the Record Date; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical 

form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our 

Company or Registrar; or (e) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (f) the ownership of 

the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings, as applicable (g) Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have not provided their Indian addresses. 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders, whose Rights Entitlements are credited in demat suspense escrow account opened 

by our Company, are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master 

sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective 

Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than two (2) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing 

Date, i.e., by Thursday, September 19, 2024 to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer 

from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to 

enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve 

as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also 

requested to ensure that their demat account is active, details of which have been provided to the Company or the 

Registrar, to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical 

form can update the details of their demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e.,www.purvashare.com ). 

Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their 

respective demat accounts. 

 

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat accounts 

of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock Exchange after 

completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity 

Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar after 

keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat. 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN THE DEMAT ACCOUNT 

DOES NOT, PER SE, ENTITLE THE INVESTORS TO THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AND THE 

INVESTORS HAVE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ON OR 

BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE AND MAKE PAYMENT OF THE APPLICATION MONEY. 

 

Other important links and helpline: 

 

The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes: 

 

• Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application 

process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors:www.purvashare.com 

• Updation of Indian address/ e-mail address/ mobile number in the records maintained by the Registrar or our 

Company: www.purvashare.com 

• Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form: 

www.purvashare.com 

• Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non-resident Eligible 

Equity Shareholders: newissue@purvashare.com 

• Renunciation and Trading of Rights Entitlement  

http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.purvashare.com/
mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
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Renouncees 

 

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds pertaining 

to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well. 

 

Basis for this Issue 

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose 

names appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of our Equity 

Shares held in dematerialised form and on the register of members of our Company in respect of our Equity Shares 

held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024. 

 

Rights Entitlements 

 

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-up Equity Shares held in 

dematerialised form or appears in the register of members of our Company as an Eligible Equity Shareholder in 

respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024, you 

may be entitled to subscribe to the number of Rights Equity Shares as set out in the Rights Entitlement Letter. 

 

The Registrar will send/dispatch a Rights Entitlement Letter along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the 

Common Application Form to all Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our 

Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity 

Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public 

offering in such jurisdictions, which will contain details of their Rights Entitlements based on their shareholding 

as on the Record Date. 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website 

of the Registrar (i.e www.purvashare.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of 

Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same shall also 

be available on the website of our Company (i.e. www.clubemerald.in). 

 

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders before the 

Issue Opening Date only in dematerialised form. If  Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in 

physical form as on Record Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the 

Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than 

two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of 

transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the 

Issue Closing Date. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details of 

their respective demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e.www.purvashare.com). Such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat 

accounts.  

 

Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will send/ 

dispatch the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Common 

Application Form only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our 

Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is 

permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their 

valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such 

Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be 

dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. For further details, see 

“Notice to Investors” on page 11. 

 

PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THIS ISSUE 

 

Face Value 

 

Each Rights Equity Share will have the face value of ₹5. 

 

Issue Price 

Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of ₹12.50/-per Rights Equity Share (including premium of 

http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.purvashare.com/
https://rights.kfintech.com/
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₹7.50/-per Rights Equity Share) in this Issue.  
 

The Issue Price for Rights Equity Shares has been arrived at by our Company prior to the determination of the 

Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024. 

 

Rights Entitlements Ratio 

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 2 

(Two) Rights Equity Shares for every 1 (One) Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as on the 

Record Date i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024.  

 

Renunciation of Rights Entitlements 

 

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights Entitlements 

credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.  

 

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa shall be 

subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry 

of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available to or operate in favour 

of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in compliance with the FEMA 

Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. 

 

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by way of On Market 

or through off-market transfer. For details, see “Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements” on page 115. 

 

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in 

physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar 

or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, will not be able to renounce their 

Rights Entitlements. 

 

Credit of Rights Entitlements in dematerialised account 

 

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the 

credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. 

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the 

Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow 

account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements 

relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible 

Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar 

on the Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders 

holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by 

Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (e) credit of the Rights Entitlements 

returned/reversed/failed; or (f) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court 

proceedings, as applicable. 

 

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for the credit of the Rights 

Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in a dematerialized form. A separate ISIN 

for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which is INE044N20013. The said ISIN shall remain frozen 

(for debit) until the Issue Opening Date and shall be active for renouncement or transfer only during the 

Renunciation Period, i.e., from Tuesday September 17, 2024  to Wednesday, September 18, 2024 (both days 

inclusive). It is clarified that the Rights Entitlements shall not be available for transfer or trading post the 

Renunciation Period. The said ISIN shall be suspended for transfer by the Depositories post the Issue Closing 

Date. 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders, whose Rights Entitlement are credited in demat suspense escrow account opened 

by our Company are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master 

sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective 

Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than two (2) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing 

Date, i.e., by Thursday, September 19, 2024, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer 

from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to 

enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve 

https://rights.kfintech.com/
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as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also 

requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to the Company or the Registrar 

account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in 

physical form can update the details of their demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e., 

www.purvashare.com). Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights 

Entitlements is credited to their respective demat accounts. 

 

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat accounts 

of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock Exchange after 

completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity 

Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar after 

keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat. 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN THE DEMAT ACCOUNT 

DOES NOT, PER SE, ENTITLE THE INVESTORS TO THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AND THE 

INVESTORS HAVE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ON OR 

BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE I.E., TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2024 AND MAKE 

PAYMENT OF THE APPLICATION MONEY. FOR DETAILS, SEE “PROCEDURE FOR 

APPLICATION” ON PAGE 112. 

 

Trading of the Rights Entitlements 

 

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Rights Entitlements credited shall be admitted for trading 

on the Stock Exchange under Rights Entitlement ISIN ‘INE0444N20013’. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our 

Company will obtain the approval from the Stock Exchange for trading of Rights Entitlements. Investors shall be 

able to trade/ transfer their Rights Entitlements either through On Market Renunciation or through Off Market 

Renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation will be settled by 

transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism.  

 

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on the secondary market platform of the Stock 

Exchange on T+2 rolling settlement basis, where T refers to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled 

on trade-for-trade basis. The Rights Entitlements shall be tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for 

trading of Rights Entitlements is One Rights Entitlement. 

 

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market Renunciation, 

i.e., from Tuesday September 17, 2024 to Wednesday, September 18, 2024 (both days inclusive). No assurance 

can be given regarding the active or sustained On Market Renunciation or the price at which the Rights 

Entitlements will trade. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market 

transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the 

Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. For details, see “- Procedure for Renunciation of Rights 

Entitlements – On Market Renunciation” and “- Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements – Off Market 

Renunciation” on pages115 and 115 respectively, of this Letter of Offer. Once the Rights Entitlements are credited 

to the demat account of the Renouncees, application in the Issue could be made until the Issue Closing Date. For 

details, see “Procedure for Application” on page112. 

 

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Investors on 

or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Terms of Payment 

 

₹ 12.50/- per Rights Equity Share (including premium of ₹ 7.50/- per Rights Equity Share) shall be payable, in 

entirety at the time of making the Application.  

 

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Rights Equity Shares and is Allotted a lesser number of Rights 

Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded/unblocked. The un-

blocking of ASBA funds/ refund of monies shall be completed be within such period as prescribed under the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed under 

applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law. 

 

  

http://www.purvashare.com/
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Fractional Entitlements 

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio 

of 2 (Two) Rights Equity Shares for every 1 (One) Equity Shares held as on the Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, 

September 10, 2024, therefore there shall be no fractional entitlements in this Issue.  

 

Credit Rating 

 

As this Issue is a rights issue of Rights Equity Shares, there is no requirement of credit rating for this Issue. 

 

Ranking 

 

The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the 

Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Common Application Form, and 

the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and 

regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to 

time, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchange and the terms 

and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice. The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and allotted under this 

Issue shall, upon being fully paid up, rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares, in all respects including 

dividends. In respect of the Rights Equity Shares, Investors are entitled to dividend in proportion to the amount 

paid up and their voting rights exercisable on a poll shall also be proportional to their respective share of the paid-

up Equity capital of our Company. 

  

Listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue 

 

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights 

basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange. Unless otherwise permitted by the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations, the Rights Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as practicable 

and all steps for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the Rights Equity 

Shares will be taken within such period prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company has received 

in-principle approval from the BSE through letter bearing reference number LOD/RIGHT/TT/FIP/720/2024-25 

dated August 9, 2024. Our Company will apply to the Stock Exchange for final approvals for the listing and 

trading of the Rights Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active 

or sustained trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under this 

Issue will trade after the listing thereof. 

 

For an applicable period, the trading of the Rights Equity Shares would be suspended under the applicable law. 

The process of corporate action for crediting the fully paid-up Rights Equity Shares to the Investors’ demat 

accounts may take such time as is customary or as prescribed under applicable law from the last date of payment 

of the amount.  

 

The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on BSE (Scrip Code: 507265) under the ISIN: INE044N01021. 

The Rights Equity Shares shall be credited to a temporary RE ISIN which will be frozen until the receipt of the 

final listing/ trading approvals from the Stock Exchange. Upon receipt of such listing and trading approvals, the 

Rights Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary RE ISIN and credited to the new ISIN for the Rights 

Equity Shares and thereafter be available for trading and the temporary RE ISIN shall be permanently deactivated 

in the depository system of CDSL and NSDL. 

 

The listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based on the current 

regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect the listing 

and trading schedule. 

 

In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading permission from the Stock Exchange, we shall refund through 

verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts, the entire monies received/blocked within four (4) days 

of receipt of intimation from the Stock Exchange, rejecting the application for listing of the Rights Equity Shares, 

and if any such money is not refunded/ unblocked within four (4) days after our Company becomes liable to repay 

it, our Company and every director of our Company who is an officer-in-default shall, on and from the expiry of 

the fourth day, be jointly and severally liable to repay that money with interest at rates prescribed under applicable 

law. 
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For details of trading and listing of partly paid-up Rights Equity Shares, please refer to the heading ―Terms of 

Payment at page 108. 

 

Subscription to this Issue by our Promoters and our Promoter Group 

 

For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and the Promoter Group, see “Capital Structure 

– Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group”. 

 

Rights of Holders of Rights Equity Shares of our Company 

 

Subject to applicable laws, Rights Equity Shareholders shall have the following rights: 

 

a) The right to receive dividend, if declared; 

 

b) The right to vote in person, or by proxy; 

 

c) The right to receive surplus on liquidation; 

 

d) The right to free transferability of Rights Equity Shares; 

 

e) The right to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in accordance with law, 

unless prohibited / restricted by law; and 

 

f) Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies Act, 

2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association. 

 

Subject to applicable law and Articles of Association, holders of Rights Equity Shares shall be entitled to the 

above rights in proportion to amount paid-up on such Rights Equity Shares in this Issue 

 

GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE 

 

Market Lot 

 

The Rights Equity Shares of our Company shall be tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for Rights 

Equity Shares in dematerialised mode is one (1) Equity Share. 

 

Joint Holders 

 

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold the 

same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in our Articles of 

Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, the Application submitted in physical mode to the 

Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be required to be signed by all the joint holders (in the same order as 

appearing in the records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for allotment of Rights Equity Shares offered 

in this Issue. 

 

Nomination 

 

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Rights Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the 

Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 

2014. 

 

Since the Allotment is in dematerialised form, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the Rights 

Equity Shares to be Allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with the respective Depository Participants of 

the Investors would prevail. Any Investor holding Equity Shares in dematerialised form and desirous of changing 

the existing nomination is requested to inform its Depository Participant. 

 

Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots 

 

The Rights Equity Shares shall be traded in dematerialised form only and, therefore, the marketable lot shall be 1 

(one) Rights Equity Share and hence, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required. 
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Restrictions on transfer and transmission of shares and on their consolidation/splitting 

 

There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of shares issued pursuant 

to this Issue. However, the Investors should note that pursuant to provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

with effect from April 1, 2019 and as amended vide SEBI Notification bearing No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2022/66 

on January 24, 2022, the request for transfer of securities shall not be effected unless the securities are held in the 

dematerialized form with a depository. Provided further that transmission or transposition of securities held in 

physical or dematerialized form shall be effected only in dematerialized form. 

 

Notices 

 

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, our Company will send / 

dispatch the Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Common Application Form and other issue materials 

(“Issue Materials”) only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our 

Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity 

Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public 

offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, 

the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders 

have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, 

to the Indian addresses provided by them. 

 

Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company and who make a request in this regard. 

In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent 

only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail 

address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided 

by them. 

 

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in (i) one 

English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation; (ii) one Hindi language national daily newspaper 

with wide circulation; and (iii) one Marathi language daily newspaper with wide circulation (Marathi being the 

regional language of Mumbai, Maharashtra where our Registered Office is situated) and/or, will be sent by post 

or electronic transmission or other permissible mode to the addresses of the Eligible Equity Shareholders provided 

to our Company. This Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Common Application Form shall also 

be submitted with the Stock Exchange for making the same available on their websites. 

 

Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Investors 

 

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, the RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue rights equity 

shares to non-resident shareholders including additional rights equity shares. Further, as per the Master Direction 

on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by the RBI, non-residents may, amongst other things, 

(i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; (ii) renounce the shares offered to 

them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) apply for the shares renounced in 

their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be, 

amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under FEMA in the matter 

of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of Rights Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlement 

Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-resident or NRI Investor has specific approval from RBI, 

in connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval with 

the Application details and send it to the Registrar by email on newissue@purvashare.com or physically/postal 

means at the address of the Registrar Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, 

J.R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 011, India. It will be the sole responsibility of the 

investors to ensure that the necessary approval from the RBI or the governmental authority is valid in order to 

make any investment in the Issue and our Company will not be responsible for any such allotments made by 

relying on such approvals. 

 

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Common Application Form shall be 

sent/dispatched to the email addresses and Indian addresses of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a 

reasonable effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company and are located in jurisdictions 

where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and does not 

result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. Investors can access the Letter of 

Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Common Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity 

Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from the 

mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
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websites of the Registrar, our Company and the Stock Exchange. Our Board may at its absolute discretion, agree 

to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by the RBI while approving the Allotment. The Rights Equity 

Shares purchased by non-residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions in regard totheir 

patriation as are applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Rights Equity Shares are issued on rights 

basis. 

 

In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be opened. 

Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant is liable to be 

rejected at the sole discretion of our Company. 

 

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION 

 

How to Apply 

 

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA 

Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either 

the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before 

making their Application through ASBA. 

 

For details of procedure for application by the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in 

physical form as on the Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024 see “- Procedure for Application by 

Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” on page 118. 

 

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their directors and officers and the 

Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc. in 

relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but 

not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA 

Accounts. 

 

Common Application Form 

 

The Common Application Form for the Rights Equity Shares offered as part of this Issue would be sent/ dispatched 

(i) only to email address of the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their email address; (ii) 

only to the Indian addresses of the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have 

not provided a valid email address to our Company; (iii) only to the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible 

Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company and are 

located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such 

jurisdictions. The Common Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement 

Letter shall be sent/ dispatched at least three days before the Issue Opening Date. The Renouncees and Eligible 

Equity Shareholders who have not received the Common Application Form can download the same from the 

website of the Registrar, our Company or Stock Exchange. 

In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Common Application Form along with the Abridged 

Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through email to email address if they have provided 

an Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity 

Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public 

offering in such jurisdictions. 

 

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for delay in the receipt of the 

Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Common Application 

Form attributable to non-availability of the email addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic 

transmission delays or failures, or if the Common Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are 

delayed or misplaced in the transit or there is a delay in physical delivery (where applicable). 

 

To update the respective email addresses/ mobile numbers in the records maintained by the Registrar or our 

Company, Eligible Equity Shareholders should visit www.purvashare.com. Investors can access this Letter of 

Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Common Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity 

Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from the 

websites of: 

 

(i) our Company at www.clubemerald.in; 

(ii) the Registrar at www.purvashare.com; and 

(iii) the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com;  

http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
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The Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website 

of the Registrar (i.e.,www.purvashare.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of 

resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same 

shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.www.clubemerald.in). 

 

The Common Application Form can be used by the Investors, Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the 

Renouncees, to make Applications in this Issue, based on the Rights Entitlement credited in their respective demat 

accounts. Please note that one single Common Application Form shall be used by the Investors to make 

Applications for all Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account. In case of Investors who have 

provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such Investors will have to 

apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding the Rights Entitlements 

and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a separate Common Application Form 

for each demat account. 

 

Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares by submitting the Common Application 

Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs 

(if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the 

Application in their respective ASBA Accounts  

 

Please note that Applications made with payment using third party bank accounts are liable to be rejected. 

 

Investors are also advised to ensure that the Common Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein, the 

ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to the amount 

payable on Application as stated in the Common Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB. 

 

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN 

number in the Common Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic 

Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Incorrect depository 

account details or PAN number could lead to rejection of the Application. For details see “- Grounds for 

Technical Rejection” on page 122 . Our Company, the Registrar and the SCSB shall not be liable for any 

incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants. 

 

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the offer 

to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that Eligible Equity Shareholders 

making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce any 

portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “- Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 

116. 

 

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders 

 

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Rights Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity 

Shareholder is entitled to. 

 

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in this Issue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholder can: 

 

(i) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or 

 

(ii) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing the 

other part); or 

 

(iii) apply for Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other part of 

its Rights Entitlements; or 

 

(iv) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional Rights 

Equity Shares; or 

 

(v) renounce its Rights Entitlements in full. 

 

  

http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/


 

 

 

114 

 
 

Procedure for Application through the ASBA process 

 

An investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA enabled 

bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. Investors desiring to make an Application in this 

Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Common Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB 

or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for 

authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA 

Accounts. 

 

Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Common Application Form, or have otherwise 

provided an authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account 

equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Common Application Form, as the case may be, at the time 

of submission of the Application. 

 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks 

 

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please refer to 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34. For details on 

Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Common Application Form, please refer the above-mentioned link. 

 

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. 

CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications 

may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs, in case of Applications made through ASBA 

facility. 

 

The Company, its directors, employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers and the 

Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions, and commissions etc., in relation 

to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded 

by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts. 

 

Acceptance of this Issue 

 

Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares (i) by submitting the Common Application 

Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs 

(if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the 

Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. 

 

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date for Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 

p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange. 

 

Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB are liable to be rejected. 

 

Investors can also make Application on plain paper under ASBA process mentioning all necessary details as 

mentioned under the section “- Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page116. 

 

Additional Rights Equity Shares 

 

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, 

provided that they are eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for 

all the Rights Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in 

part. Where the number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for 

Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the 

Designated Stock Exchange. Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment 

shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner prescribed under the section “-

Basis of Allotment” on page126. 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Rights 

Equity Shares 

 

Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional Rights Equity 

Shares. 

 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date cannot 

renounce until the details of their demat account are provided to our Company or the Registrar and the 

dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from suspense escrow demat account to the respective demat 

accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders within prescribed timelines. However, Such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders, where the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from the suspense escrow demat 

account to the respective demat accounts within prescribed timelines, can apply for additional Rights Equity 

Shares while submitting the Application through ASBA process. 

 

Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements 

 

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or 

in part (a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange; or (b) through an off-market transfer, 

during the Renunciation Period. The Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her 

own demat account prior to the renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off Market 

Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism. 

 

Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading in the 

Rights Entitlements. Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their tax advisor or 

stock broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied 

for trading in Rights Entitlements. Our Company accepts no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable 

taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the Investors. 

 

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Investors on or before 

the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

On Market Renunciation 

 

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by trading/selling 

them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through a registered stock broker in the same 

manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company. 

 

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the 

Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be 

admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange under RE ISIN INE044N20013 subject to requisite approvals. The 

details for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock Exchange from time to time. 

 

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights 

Entitlements is one Rights Entitlement. 

 

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market Renunciation, 

i.e., from Tuesday September 17, 2024 to Wednesday, September 18, 2024 (both days inclusive). 

 

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have to do so 

through their registered stock brokers by quoting the RE ISIN INE044N20013 and indicating the details of the 

Rights Entitlements they intend to sell. The Investors can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the 

extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account. 

 

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE under automatic 

order matching mechanism and on ‘T+2 rolling settlement basis’, where ‘T’ refers to the date of trading. The 

transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the stock broker will issue a 

contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange and the SEBI. 

 

Off Market Renunciation 

 

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by way of an 

off-market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialised 

form only. 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed 

in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to 

the Issue Closing Date. 
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The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have to do so 

through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the RE ISIN INE044N20013, 

the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights 

Entitlements (unless already having given a standing receipt instruction) has to issue a receipt instruction slip to 

their depository participant. The Investors can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights 

Entitlements available in their demat account. 

 

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the depository 

participants. 

 

The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as specified by the 

NSDL and CDSL from time to time. 

 

Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process 

 

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an Application to 

subscribe to this Issue on plain paper, in case of non-receipt of Common Application Form through e-mail or 

physical delivery (where applicable) and the Eligible Equity Shareholder not being in a position to obtain it from 

any other source. An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to the Designated 

Branch of the SCSB for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money in the said bank account maintained 

with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India. 

 

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not been 

entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Common Application Form for any 

purpose including renunciation even if it is received subsequently. 

 

The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders, in the same 

order and as per specimen recorded with his bank, must reach the office of the Designated Branch of the SCSB 

before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars: 

 

1. Name of our Company, being Emerald Leisures Limited; 

 

2. Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order and as per 

specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository); 

 

3. Registered Folio Number/DP and Client ID No.; 

 

4. Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date; 

 

5. Allotment option – only dematerialized form; 

 

6. Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to; 

 

7. Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for within the Rights Entitlements; 

 

8. Number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any; 

 

9. Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for; 

 

10. Total amount paid at the rate of ₹12.50/- per Rights Equity Share; 

 

11. Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant SCSB; 

 

12. In case of NR Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian address, details of the 

NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the SCSB with which 

the account is maintained; 

 

13. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials 

appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in 

case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to this 

Issue; 
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14. Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application Money 

in the ASBA Account; 

 

15. Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence and 

order as they appear in the records of the SCSB); 

 

16. In addition, all such Eligible Equity Shareholders are deemed to have accepted the following: 

 

“I/ We understand that neither the Rights Entitlements nor the Rights Equity Shares have been, or will be, 

registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “US Securities Act”), or any United States state 

securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or to the 

territories or possessions thereof (the “United States”), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction 

not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act. I/ we understand the Rights Equity Shares 

referred to in this application are being offered and sold in offshore transactions outside the United States in 

compliance with Regulation S under the US Securities Act (“Regulation S”) to existing shareholders located in 

jurisdictions where such offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. 

I/ we understand that the Issue is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights 

Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy 

any of the said Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements in the United States. I/ we confirm that I am/ we are 

(a) not in the United States and eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws, 

(b) complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with the Issue, and (c) understand 

that neither the Company, nor the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of the Company will accept 

subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who the Company, the Registrar 

or any other person acting on behalf of the Company have reason to believe is in the United States or is outside 

of India and United States and ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws of their jurisdiction.  

 

I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any 

jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person to whom it 

is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation. I/ We satisfy, and each account for which I/ we are acting 

satisfies, (a) all suitability standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the 

jurisdiction of my/our residence, and (b) is eligible to subscribe and is subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares 

and Rights Entitlements in compliance with applicable securities and other laws of our jurisdiction of residence. 

 

I/We hereby make the representations, warranties, acknowledgments and agreements set forth in the section of 

the Letter of Offer. 

 

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, 

pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise 

pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US 

Securities Act.  

 

I/ We acknowledge that the Company will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and 

agreements.”  

 

In cases where multiple Common Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights 

Entitlements credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow account, including cases where an 

Investor submits Common Application Forms along with a plain paper Application, such Applications shall be 

liable to be rejected. 

 

Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an Application being 

rejected, with our Company and the Registrar not having any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application 

format will be available on the website of the Registrar at www.purvashare.com. 

 

Our Company and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not uploaded by SCSB or funds 

are not blocked in the Investors’ ASBA Accounts on or before the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Mode of payment 

 

All payments against the Common Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar 

will not accept any payments against the Common Application Forms, if such payments are not made through 

ASBA facility. 

 

http://www.purvashare.com/
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In case of Application through ASBA facility, the Investor agrees to block the amount payable on Application 

with the submission of the Common Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, equivalent 

to the amount payable on Application, in the Investor’s ASBA Account. 

 

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the 

Common Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in 

the Common Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from the 

Registrar, of the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment as 

approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per the Registrar’s 

instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account which shall be a separate bank account 

maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 40 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be 

unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective 

SCSB. 

 

The Investors would be required to give instructions to the respective SCSBs to block the entire amount payable 

on their Application at the time of the submission of the Common Application Form. 

 

The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Common Application Form if the ASBA 

Account, details of which have been provided by the Investor in the Common Application Form does not have 

sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable on Application mentioned in the Common Application Form. 

Subsequent to the acceptance of the Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the 

Application on technical grounds as set forth hereinafter. 

 

Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form 

 

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights 

Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in 

dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as 

on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details 

of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, 

to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue 

Closing Date. 

 

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, among 

others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our 

Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company. In the 

event, the relevant details of the demat accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders are not received during the 

Issue Period, then their Rights Entitlements kept in the suspense escrow demat account shall lapse. 

 

To update respective email addresses/ mobile numbers in the records maintained by the Registrar or our Company, 

Eligible Equity Shareholders should visit www.purvashare.com. 

 

Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, 

September 10, 2024 and who have opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following 

procedure for participating in this Issue: 

 

(a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s), address, email 

address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self-

attested client master sheet of their demat account either by email, post, speed post, courier, or hand delivery 

so as to reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date; 

 

(b) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights Entitlements of such 

Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date; 

 

(c) The Eligible Equity Shareholders can access the Common Application Form from: 

 

http://www.purvashare.com/
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• our Company (at www.clubemerald.in); 

• the Stock Exchange (at www.bseindia.com). 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website 

of the Registrar (i.e. www.purvashare.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case 

of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same shall 

also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.www.clubemerald.in); 

 

(d) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall, on or before the Issue Closing Date, submit the Common Application 

Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the 

SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable 

on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT NON-RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, WHO HOLD 

EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON RECORD DATE, i.e. TUESDAY, SEPTEMEBR 10, 

2024 AND WHO HAVE NOT FURNISHED THE DETAILS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DEMAT 

ACCOUNTS TO THE REGISTRAR OR OUR COMPANY AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR 

TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE, SHALL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR 

RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AGAINST THEIR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE 

EQUITY SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM. 

 

Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE 

ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY 

ACCOUNTIN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD 

DATE OR THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE, AS THE CASE MAY BE. 

 

General instructions for Investors 

 

(a) Please read this Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and applicable settlement 

process. 

 

(b) Please read the instructions on the Common Application Form sent to you. 

 

(c) The Common Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Renouncees. 

 

(d) Application should be made only through the ASBA facility. 

 

(e) Application should be complete in all respects. The Common Application Form found incomplete with regard 

to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the 

terms of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Common 

Application Form are liable to be rejected. The Common Application Form must be filled in English. 

 

(f) In case of non-receipt of Common Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning all 

necessary details as mentioned under the section “- Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 

116. 

 

(g) In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA 

Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA 

process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their 

Application through ASBA. 

 

(h) An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA 

enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. 

 

(i) Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online/electronic through 

the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application 

Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing 

Date for Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such 

extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange. 

http://www.clubemerald.in/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://www.clubemerald.in/


 

 

 

120 

 
 

 

(j) Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue, our Company or the Registrar. 

 

(k) In case of Application through ASBA facility, Investors are required to provide necessary details, including 

details of the ASBA Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to the Application Money 

in the ASBA Account mentioned in the Common Application Form. 

 

(l) All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention 

their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for 

Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials 

appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be 

rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details 

have not been verified shall be “suspended for credit” and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity 

Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into the accounts of such Investors. Further, in case of 

Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants should sign the Common Application Form. 

 

(m) In case of Application through ASBA facility, all payments will be made only by blocking the amount in the 

ASBA Account. Cash payment or payment by cheque or demand draft or pay order or NEFT or RTGS or 

through any other mode is not acceptable for application through ASBA process. In case payment is made in 

contravention of this, the Application will be deemed invalid and the Application Money will be refunded 

and no interest will be paid thereon. 

 

(n) For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either in 

English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. 

Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a 

Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Investors must sign the Application as per the 

specimen signature recorded with the SCSB. 

 

(o) In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the 

relevant part of the Common Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) 

recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant’s 

name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant. 

 

(p) All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in 

address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment 

in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, folio numbers/DP ID and Client ID and Common 

Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, 

the Eligible Equity Shareholders should also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository 

participant, or to our Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares 

in physical form. 

 

(q) Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. 

CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, Applications made 

through ASBA facility may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Application through 

ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility. 

 

(r) In terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making 

applications by banks on their own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in 

own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of 

making application in public/ rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account 

for ASBA applications. 

 

(s) Investors are required to ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for by them do not exceed 

the prescribed limits under the applicable law. 

 

(t) An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of the RBI and must submit 

approval from RBI for applying in this Issue. 
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Do’s: 

 

(a) Ensure that the Common Application Form and necessary details are filled in. 

 

(b) Except for Application submitted on behalf of the Central or the State Government, residents of Sikkim and 

the officials appointed by the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax 

Act. 

 

(c) Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and 

occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects. 

 

(d) Investors should provide correct DP ID and client ID/ folio number while submitting the Application. Such 

DP ID and Client ID/ folio number should match the demat account details in the records available with 

Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to be rejected. Investor will be solely 

responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our Company, SCSBs or the 

Registrar will not be liable for any such rejections. 

 

Dont’s: 

 

(a) Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your 

jurisdiction. 

 

(b) Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground. 

 

(c) Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical 

Application. 

 

(d) Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order. 

 

(e) Do not submit multiple Applications. 

 

Do’s for Investors applying through ASBA: 

 

(a) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the 

beneficiary account is activated as the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted in the dematerialized form only. 

 

(b) Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the correct 

bank account have been provided in the Application. 

 

(c) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares (including additional Rights 

Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Rights Equity Shares}) available in ASBA Account 

mentioned in the Common Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective Designated 

Branch of the SCSB. 

 

(d) Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the amount payable on application 

mentioned in the Common Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the 

Application and have signed the same. 

 

(e) Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location and the 

Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location. 

 

(f) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your submission 

of the Common Application Form in physical form or plain paper Application. 

 

(g) Ensure that the name(s) given in the Common Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which 

the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Common Application Form is 

submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint names and such names 

are in the same sequence in which they appear in the Common Application Form and the Rights Entitlement 

Letter. 
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Dont’s for Investors applying through ASBA: 

 

(a) Do not submit the Common Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a 

Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice versa. 

 

(b) Do not send your physical Application to the Registrar, the Banker to the Issue, a branch of the SCSB which 

is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of 

the SCSB only. 

 

(c) Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process. 

 

Grounds for Technical Rejection 

 

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds: 

 

(a) DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application not matching with the DP ID and Client ID records available 

with the Registrar. 

 

(b) Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available with the 

Registrar. 

 

(c) Sending an Application to the Registrar, Banker to the Issue, to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated 

Branch of the SCSB or our Company. 

 

(d) Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the Application Money. 

 

(e) Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Common Application Form having been 

frozen pursuant to regulatory orders. 

 

(f) Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein. 

 

(g) Submission of more than one Common Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular 

demat account. 

 

(h) Multiple Common Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Common Application 

Forms along with a plain paper Application. 

 

(i) Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State 

Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts). 

 

(j) Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except Applications 

by minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by the Depositories. 

 

(k) Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any other 

SCSB. 

 

(l) Common Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods prescribed in 

the Common Application Form and the Letter of Offer. 

 

(m) Physical Common Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Investors. 

 

(n) Common Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, money 

order, postal order or outstation demand drafts. 

 

(o) If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief 

then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements. 

 

(p) Applications which: (i) does not include the certifications set out in the Common Application Form; (ii) 

appears to us or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from a Restricted Jurisdiction; (iii) where 

a registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Common Application 

Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Common Application Form may infringe applicable legal or 
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regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares in 

respect of any such Common Application Form. 

 

(q) Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable securities laws. 

 

Depository account and bank details for Investors holding Equity Shares in demat accounts and applying 

in this Issue 

 

IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO APPLY 

THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN 

DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING 

PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR AS ON THE RECORD 

DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR 

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP ID AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER/ FOLIO 

NUMBER IN THE COMMON APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST ENSURE THAT THE 

NAME GIVEN IN THE COMMON APPLICATION FORM IS EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE NAME 

IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE COMMON APPLICATION 

FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY 

ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN 

WHICH THEY APPEAR IN THE COMMON APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN PAPER 

APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE. 

 

Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, Depository 

Participant’s name and identification number and beneficiary account number provided by them in the 

Common Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain 

Demographic Details from the Depository. Hence, Investors applying under this Issue should carefully fill 

in their Depository Account details in the Application. 

 

These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such Investors including mailing of the 

letters intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The Demographic Details 

given by the Investors in the Common Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the 

Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their Depository 

Participants. 

 

By signing the Common Application Forms, the Investors would be deemed to have authorised the Depositories 

to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records. 

 

The Allotment advice and the email intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be 

emailed to the address of the Investor as per the email address provided to our Company or the Registrar 

or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs 

for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not Allotted to such 

Investor. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, 

the SCSBs or the Registrar shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such 

delay or be liable to pay any interest for such delay. 

 

In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the 

Investors (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID, and (c) the beneficiary account number, 

then such Common Application Forms are liable to be rejected. 

 

Modes of Payment 

 

All payments against the Common Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar 

will not accept any payments against the Common Application Forms, if such payments are not made through 

ASBA facility. 

 

In case of Application through ASBA facility, the Investor agrees to block the amount payable on 

Application with the submission of the Common Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, 

equivalent to the amount payable on Application, in the Investor’s ASBA Account. 

 

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the 

Common Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in 

the Common Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from the 
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Registrar, of the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment as 

approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per the Registrar’s 

instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account which shall be a separate bank account 

maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 40 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment on the 

Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the 

Registrar to the respective SCSB. 

 

The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be 

unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective 

SCSB 

 

The Investors would be required to give instructions to the respective SCSBs to block the entire amount payable 

on their Application at the time of the submission of the Common Application Form. 

 

The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Common Application Form if the ASBA 

Account, details of which have been provided by the Investor in the Common Application Form does not have 

sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable on Application mentioned in the Common Application Form. 

Subsequent to the acceptance of the Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the 

Application on technical grounds as set forth hereinafter. 

 

Mode of payment for Resident Investors 

 

All payments on the Common Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. Applicants are 

requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. 

 

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Investors 

 

As regards the Application by non-resident Investors, payment must be made only through the ASBA facility and 

using permissible accounts in accordance with the FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements prescribed by the RBI 

and subject to the following conditions: 

 

1.  Individual non-resident Indian Applicants who are permitted to subscribe to Rights Equity Shares by 

applicable local securities laws can obtain Common Application Forms on the websites of the Registrar and 

our Company. 

 

Note: In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 

Entitlement Letter and the Common Application Form shall be sent to their email addresses if they have 

provided their Indian address to our Company or if they are located in certain jurisdictions (other than the 

United States and India) where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such 

jurisdictions and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering such jurisdiction. The 

Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible 

Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in 

jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions 

and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions and in each case 

who make a request in this regard. 

 

2. Common Application Forms will not be accepted from non-resident Investors in any jurisdiction where the 

offer or sale of the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities 

laws. 

 

3. Payment by non-residents must be made only through ASBA facility and using permissible accounts in 

accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements prescribed by the RBI. 

 

Notes: 

 

1. In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the investment 

in Rights Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to the Income-

tax Act. 

 

2. In case Rights Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend and sale proceeds of the 

Rights Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India. 
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3. In case of a Common Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other 

distribution, if any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by the RBI as 

applicable at the time of making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary approvals. 

 

4. Common Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing abroad 

for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to conditions, as may be imposed 

from time to time by RBI under FEMA, in respect of matters including Refund of Application Money and 

Allotment. 

 

5. In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE Accounts, refunds 

and other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account. 

 

6. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory approval for 

applying for additional Rights Equity Shares. 

 

Multiple Applications 

 

In case where multiple Applications are made using same demat account, such Applications shall be liable to be 

rejected. A separate Application can be made in respect of Rights Entitlements in each demat account of the 

Investors and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Similarly, a separate Application can 

be made against Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and Equity Shares held in physical form, and such 

Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. A separate Application can be made in respect of each 

scheme of a mutual fund registered with SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. 

For details, see “- Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds” on page 130. 

 

In cases where multiple Common Application Forms are submitted, including cases where an Investor submits 

Common Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or multiple plain paper Applications, such 

Applications shall be treated as multiple applications and are liable to be rejected, other than multiple applications 

submitted by any of our Promoters or members of Promoter Group to meet the minimum subscription 

requirements applicable to this Issue as described in “Capital Structure – Intention and extent of participation by 

our Promoters and Promoter Group” on page17. 

 

Last date for Application 

 

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Common Application Form or a plain paper Application is 

Tuesday, September 24, 2024, i.e., Issue Closing Date. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend the said 

date for such period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from 

the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). 

 

If the Common Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchange and the 

Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as may be 

extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter of Offer shall be 

deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose of the Rights 

Equity Shares hereby offered, as provided under the section, “-Basis of Allotment” on page 126. 

 

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date for Applications through ASBA process shall be uploaded until 5.00 

p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange.  

 

Please ensure that the Common Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application 

number, Investors can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing about their 

Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may mention their internal 

reference number in place of application number. 

 

Withdrawal of Application 

 

An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw their Application at any time during Issue Period by 

approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Investor, applying through ASBA facility, 

may withdraw their Application post the Issue Closing Date. 
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Issue Schedule 

 
LAST DATE FOR CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS Thursday, September 12, 2024 

ISSUE OPENING DATE  Tuesday, September 17, 2024 

LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATION*  Wednesday, September 18, 2024 

ISSUE CLOSING DATE# Tuesday, September 24, 2024 

FINALISATION OF BASIS OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT) Tuesday, October 1, 2024 

DATE OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT)  Thursday, October 3, 2024 

DATE OF CREDIT (ON OR ABOUT)  Wednesday, October 9, 2024 

DATE OF LISTING (ON OR ABOUT) Friday, October 11, 2024 

* Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a 

manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 
#Our Board or the Rights Issue Committee will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided 

that this Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). 

Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 24, 

2024. 
 

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, i.e. 

Tuesday, September 10, 2024, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the 

Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than 

two (2) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Thursday, September 19, 2024 to enable the credit of 

the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat 

accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024. 

 

For details, see “General Information - Issue Schedule” on page 43. 

 

Basis of Allotment 

 

Subject to the provisions contained in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter, the Common Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated Stock 

Exchange, our Board or the Rights Issue Committee will proceed to Allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following 

order of priority: 

 

(a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlements of Rights 

Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or have applied for Rights Equity 

Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part. 

 

(b) Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible Equity 

Shareholders with zero entitlement, would be given preference in allotment of one additional Rights Equity 

Share each if they apply for additional Rights Equity Shares. Allotment under this head shall be considered 

if there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after allotment under (a) above. If number of Rights Equity 

Shares required for Allotment under this head are more than the number of Rights Equity Shares available 

after Allotment under (a) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation 

with the Designated Stock Exchange and will not be a preferential allotment. 

 

(c) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares offered to 

them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Rights Equity Shares. The Allotment of such 

additional Rights Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the 

number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, i.e. Tuesday, September 10, 2024, provided there 

are any unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after making full Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The Allotment 

of such Rights Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board or the Rights Issue Committee in 

consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential 

allotment. 

 

(d) Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, have 

applied for additional Rights Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after making full Allotment 

under (a), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be made on a proportionate 

basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential 

allotment. 
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(e) Allotment to any other person, that our Board or our Rights Issue Committee may deem fit, provided there is 

surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c) and (d) above, and the decision of our Board or 

the Rights Issue Committee in this regard shall be final and binding. 

 

After taking into account Allotment to be made under (a) to (d) above, if there is any unsubscribed portion, the 

same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’. 

 

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to the 

Controlling Branches, a list of the Investors who have been allocated Rights Equity Shares in this Issue, along 

with: 

 

1. The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company 

for this Issue, for each successful Application; 

2. The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and 

3. The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA 

Accounts. 

 

Allotment Advice or Refund/ Unblocking of ASBA Accounts 

 

Our Company will send/ dispatch Allotment advice, refund intimations (or demat credit of securities and/or letters 

of regret, only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit of 

securities and/or letters of regret will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit 

of securities and/or letters of regret will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses 

provided by them; along with crediting the Allotted Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts (only in 

dematerialised mode) or in a demat suspense account (in respect of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity 

Shares in physical form on the Allotment Date) or issue instructions for unblocking the funds in the respective 

ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of on or before T+1 day (T: Basis of allotment day). In case of failure to 

do so, our Company shall pay interest at 15% p.a. or such other rate as specified under applicable law from the 

expiry of such 15 days’ period. 

 

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the depository 

system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through email, to the email address provided to our Company or at 

the address recorded with the Depository. 

 

In the case of non-resident Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE or the FCNR 

Accounts, refunds and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any, shall be credited to such 

accounts. 

 

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Equity Shares in the Issue and is Allotted a lesser number of Equity 

Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded/unblocked. The unblocking 

of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be within such period as prescribed under the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed 

under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law. 

 

Payment of Refund 

 

Mode of making refunds 

 

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise would be 

done through unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility. 

 

Refund payment to non-residents 

 

The Application Money will be unblocked in the FCNR/NRE Account of the non-resident Applicants, details of 

which were provided in the Common Application Form. 

 

Allotment Advice or Demat Credit of Securities 
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The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts or the demat suspense account (in case of 

credit of the Rights Equity Shares returned/ reversed/ failed) will be credited within 15 days from the Issue Closing 

Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws. 

 

Receipt of the Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CANBE 

ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORYACCOUNT/ 

CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE 

RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO 

OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING 

DATE BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS 

ON THE RECORD DATE,OR (C) DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT PENDING RECEIPT OF DEMAT ACCOUNT 

DETAILS FOR RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS WHERE THE CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS 

EQUITY SHARES RETURNED/REVERSED/FAILED. 

 

Investors shall be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form. Our Company has signed 

an agreement dated November 23, 2000 with NSDL and an agreement dated November 1, 2000with CDSL which 

enables the Investors to hold and trade in the securities issued by our Company in a dematerialized form, instead 

of holding the Equity Shares in the form of physical certificates. 

 

INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES CAN BE TRADED ON THE STOCK 

EXCHANGE ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM. 

 

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue in the dematerialized 

form is as under: 

 

1. Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the beneficiary account 

should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our Company. In the 

case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same 

order as registered in the records of our Company). In case of Investors having various folios in our Company 

with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open separate accounts for such holdings. Those 

Investors who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step. 

 

2. It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and the names are in the 

same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories. 

 

3. The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Common Application Form vis-a-vis such 

information with the Investor’s depository participant, would rest with the Investor. Investors should ensure 

that the names of the Investors and the order in which they appear in Common Application Form should be 

the same as registered with the Investor’s depository participant. 

 

4. If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Common Application Form, the Investor 

will not get any Rights Equity Shares and the Common Application Form will be rejected. 

 

5. The Rights Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly 

credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Common Application Form after verification or demat 

suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding 

Equity Shares in physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.). Allotment advice, refund order (if 

any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by email and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, 

by the Registrar but the Applicant’s depository participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit 

of such Rights Equity Shares to the Applicant’s depository account. 

 

6. Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the Investors by the Registrar, 

by email and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch. 

 

7. Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment of 

Rights Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the Application is liable 

to be rejected. 
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Procedure for Applications by FPIs 

 

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity Shares is 

subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its investor group (which means multiple 

entities registered as foreign portfolio investors and directly and indirectly having common ownership of more 

than 50% of common control) shall be below 10% of our post-Issue Equity Share capital. In case the total holding 

of an FPI or investor group increases beyond 10% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, on a 

fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares or share 

warrants that may be issued by our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or investor group will be re-

classified as FDI subject to the conditions as specified by SEBI and the RBI in this regard and our Company and 

the investor will also be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements. Further, the aggregate limit 

of all FPIs investments, with effect from April 1, 2020, is up to the sectoral cap applicable to the sector in which 

our Company operates (i.e., 100%). 

 

FPIs are permitted to participate in this Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which maybe 

specified by the Government from time to time. Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, an FPI may issue, 

subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations as 

any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against securities held by it that are 

listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, 

only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons registered as Category I FPI 

under the SEBI FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are 

eligible for registration as Category I FPIs (where an entity has an investment manager who is from the Financial 

Action Task Force member country, the investment manager shall not be required to be registered as a Category 

I FPI); (iii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and 

(iv) compliance with other conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI. 

 

An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore derivative 

instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following conditions: 

 

(a) such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with the SEBI FPI 

Regulations; and 

 

(b) prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom the off shore 

derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre – approved by the FPI. 

 

Procedure for Applications by AIFs, FVCIs and VCFs 

 

The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things, the investment 

restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations prescribe, among other 

things, the investment restrictions on AIFs. 

 

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCIs are not permitted to invest in 

listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCIs will not be accepted in 

this Issue. Venture capital funds registered as Category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not 

permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital 

funds registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. 

Other categories of AIFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations. 

Such AIFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centers where such AIFs are 

located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are liable 

for rejection. 

 

Procedure for Applications by NRIs 

 

Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs that are 

ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws. 

 

As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”) may purchase or sell capital instruments 

of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India, subject to the conditions, 

inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the total paid-up equity 

capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or 

preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company and the total holdings of all NRIs and OCIs put 
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together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or shall not exceed 10% 

of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 

10% may be raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian 

company. 

 

Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been recently amended to state that all 

investments by entities incorporated in a country which shares land border with India or where beneficial owner 

of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country (“Restricted Investors”), will require 

prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from the press note whether or not an issue of the Rights 

Equity Shares to Restricted Investors will also require prior approval of the Government of India and each Investor 

should seek independent legal advice about its ability to participate in the Issue. In the event such prior approval 

has been obtained, the Investor shall intimate our Company and the Registrar about such approval within the Issue 

Period. 

 

Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds 

 

A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered with SEBI and 

such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The applications made by asset management 

companies or custodians of a mutual fund should clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which 

the application is being made. 

 

Procedure for Applications by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFC-SI”) 

 

In case of an application made by NBFC-SI registered with the RBI, (a) the certificate of registration issued by 

the RBI under Section 45IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificate from its statutory auditors or any 

independent chartered accountant based on the last audited consolidated financial statements is required to be 

attached to the application. 

 

Impersonation 

 

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of Section 

38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below: 

 

“Any person who makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or 

subscribing for, its securities; or makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different 

names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or 

otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to 

any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447.” 

 

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act for fraud involving an amount of at least ₹ 1 

millions or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term of not less 

than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall 

not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending upto 

three times of such amount. In case the fraud involves (i) an amount which is less than ₹ 1 millions or 1% of the 

turnover of the company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such fraud is 

punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to ₹5 

millionor with both. 

 

Payment by stock invest 

 

In terms of the RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock invest 

scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue. 

 

Disposal of Application and Application Money 

 

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the 

Designated Branch of the SCSBs receiving the Common Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by 

stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Common Application Form would generate 

an electronic acknowledgment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders upon submission of the Application. 

 

Our Board or the Rights Issue Committee reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any 

Application, in whole or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto. 
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In case an Application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the respective 

ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an Application is rejected in part, the balance 

of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Rights Equity Shares Allotted, will be refunded 

/ unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money was received / ASBA Accounts of 

the Investor within a period of 4 days from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company shall 

pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law. 

 

For further instructions, please read the Common Application Form carefully. 

 

Utilisation of Issue Proceeds 

 

Our Board declares that: 

 

A. All monies received out of this Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account; 

 

B. Details of all monies utilized out of this Issue referred to under (A) shall be disclosed under an appropriate 

separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies had been 

utilized; and 

 

C. Details of all unutilized monies out of this Issue referred to under (A) above, if any, shall be disclosed under 

an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which such unutilized 

monies have been invested. 

 

Undertakings by our Company 

 

Our Company undertakes the following: 

 

1) The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and 

satisfactorily. 

 

2) All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock 

Exchange where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken within the time limit specified by SEBI. 

 

3) The funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be made 

available to the Registrar by our Company. 

 

4) Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to the 

Investor within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall be credited 

along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund. 

 

5) In case of refund/ unblocking of the Application Money for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the Application 

Money in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the Applicants. 

 

6) Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications. 

 

7) Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to time. 

 

Minimum Subscription 

 

The objects of the Issue involve (a) Repayment, of all or a portion of certain outstanding borrowings (including 

interest thereon) availed by our Company and (b) General Corporate Purposes. 

 

Other than Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta, we have been informed by our Promoters 

vide their letters each dated February 28, 2024, their intention to fully subscribe to their entitlements arising out 

of the proposed Rights Issue. Additionally, Jaydeep Vinod Mehta, vide his letter dated February 28, 2024 has 

undertaken to fully subscribe to any under subscribed portion of this Issue. Further, we have been informed by 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta and Chetan Jashwant Mehta that they may or may not fully subscribe to their 

entitlements arising out of the proposed Rights Issue and may renounce whole or a part of their right entitlement 

in favour of third parties whom they may identify in due course or may renounce whole or a part of their right 

entitlement in the open market. Therefore, the minimum subscription criteria (of at least 90% of the Issue) as 

provided in proviso to Regulation 86(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations is applicable to this Issue. Pursuant to 
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regulation 86(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations in case of non-receipt of minimum subscription, all application 

monies received shall be refunded to the Applicants forthwith, but not later than four days from the closure of the 

Rights Issue. 

 

Note: Our Promoter Group does not hold any Equity Shares in our Company. 

 

Filing  

 

This Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations.  

 

Further, SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which 

the threshold of filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the 

rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores 

to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Draft Letter of Offer has been 

filed with the Stock Exchange and not with SEBI. However, the Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for 

information and dissemination through the SEBI intermediary portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in terms of the 

circular (No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011) dated January 19, 2018 issued by the SEBI for record 

purpose only, and will be filed with the Stock Exchange. 

 

Important 
 

1. Please read the Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the Common 

Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the 

conditions of this Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is liable to be 

rejected. 
 

2. All enquiries in connection with the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter or Common Application Form must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number or the DP ID 

and Client ID number, the Common Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity 

Shareholder as mentioned on the Common Application Form and super scribed “Emerald Leisures Limited 

– Rights Issue” on the envelope and postmarked in India or in the email) to the Registrar at the following 

address:  

 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J. R. Boricha Marg, 

Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 011, India.  

Telephone: +91 022 4961 4132/ 31998810; 

Email:newissue@purvashare.com  

Website: www.purvashare.com 

Investor grievance Email: newissue@purvashare.com 

SEBI Registration: INRO00001112 

Validity: Permanent 

Contact Person: Deepali Dhuri 

 

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated 

investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors 

will be available on the website of the Registrar (www.purvashare.com). Further, helpline numbers provided 

by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties are + 022 4961 4132/ 

31998810 

 

This Issue will remain open for a minimum 7 days. However, our Board or the Rights Issue Committee will 

have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days 

from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). 
 

  

https://siportal.sebi.gov.in/
mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
http://www.purvashare.com/
mailto:newissue@purvashare.com
http://www.purvashare.com/
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RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES 

 

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of 

India and FEMA. While the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India, prescribes the limits and the 

conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different sectors of the Indian economy, FEMA 

regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made. The Union Cabinet, as provided in the 

Cabinet Press Release dated May 24, 2017, has given its approval for phasing out the Foreign Investment 

Promotion Board (“FIPB”). Under the Industrial Policy, 1991, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment 

is freely permitted in all sectors of the Indian economy up to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the 

foreign investor is required to follow certain prescribed procedures for making such investment. Accordingly, the 

process for foreign direct investment (“FDI”) and approval from the Government of India will now be handled 

by the concerned ministries or departments, in consultation with the Department for Promotion of Industry and 

Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India (formerly known as the Department of 

Industrial Policy and Promotion) (“DPIIT”), Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs, FIPB section, 

through a memorandum dated June 5, 2017, has notified the specific ministries handling relevant sectors. 

 

The Government has, from time to time, made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press 

releases. The DPIIT issued the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2020 (“FDI Policy”) by way of circular 

bearing number DPIIT file number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020, which with effect from October 

15, 2020, consolidates and supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by 

the DPIIT that were in force and effect as on October 15, 2020. The Government of India has from time to time 

made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases which are notified by RBI as 

amendments to FEMA. In case of any conflict between FEMA and such policy pronouncements, FEMA prevails. 

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of the 

RBI, provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI 

Policy and FEMA and transfer does not attract the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non 

resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance 

with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI. 

 

The Rights Equity Shares purchased by non- residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions 

in regard to the repatriation as are applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Rights Equity Shares are 

issued on rights basis. The above information is given for the benefit of the Investors. Our Company is not liable 

for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date 

of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number 

of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations. 

 

 

RESTRICTIONS ON PURCHASES AND RESALES 

 

General Eligibility and Restrictions 

 

No action has been taken or will be taken to permit a public offering of the Rights Entitlements or the Issue Shares 

in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or distribution of this Letter of Offer, its accompanying 

documents or any other material relating to our Company, the Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares in any 

jurisdiction where action for such purpose is required, except that this Letter of Offer will be filed with SEBI and 

the Stock Exchanges.  

 

The Rights Entitlements and the Issue Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities 

Act and may not be offered or sold within the United States.  

 

The Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and none of this 

Letter of Offer, its accompanying documents or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the 

Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares may be distributed or published in or from any country or jurisdiction 

except in accordance with the legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction.  

 

Investors are advised to consult their legal counsel prior to accepting any provisional allotment of Equity Shares, 

applying for excess Equity Shares or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Rights 

Entitlements or the Equity Shares. 
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This Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents will be supplied to you solely for your information and may 

not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in whole or 

part, for any purpose.  

 

Each person who exercises the Rights Entitlements and subscribes for the Equity Shares, or who purchases the 

Rights Entitlements, or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions in their respective 

jurisdictions. 
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SECTION VIII–OTHER INFORMATION 

 

MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION 

 

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not 

being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered 

into more than two years before the date of this Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material have been 

entered or are to be entered into by our Company.  

 

Copies of these contracts and documents for inspection referred to hereunder, may be inspected at the Registered 

and Corporate Office between 10 a.m. and 5 p.m. on all working days and will also be available at the website of 

our Company from the from the date of this Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date. 

 

1. Material Contracts for the Issue 

 

(i) Registrar Agreement dated May 17, 2024 entered into between our Company and the Registrar to the 

Issue. 

 

(ii) Banker to the Issue Agreement dated September 9, 2024 amongst our Company, the Registrar to the 

Issue and the Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Bank.  

 

2. Material Documents 

 

(i) Certified copies of the updated Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company 

as amended from time to time. 

 

(ii) Certificate of incorporation dated March 8, 1933 issued by the Registrar, Joint Stock Companies, Phaltan. 

 

(iii) Resolution of the Board of Directors dated July 24, 2023 in relation to the Issue. 

 

(iv) Resolution of Board of Directors dated June 10, 2024 approving and adopting the Draft Letter of Offer. 

 

(v) Resolution of the Rights Issue Committee dated September 4, 2024 finalizing the terms of the Issue 

including Issue Price, Record Date and the Rights Entitlement Ratio.  

 

(vi) Resolution of the Rights Issue Committee dated September 9, 2024 approving and adopting the Letter of 

Offer.  

 

(vii) Consent of our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Statutory Auditor, Legal Advisor, 

the Registrar to the Issue, for inclusion of their names in the Letter of Offer in their respective capacities. 

 

(viii) Copies of Annual Reports of our Company for Fiscals 2024, 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020. 

 

(ix) The Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal 2024 along with report dated May 30, 2024 of the Statutory 

Auditor thereon, included in this Letter of Offer. 

 

(x) The Limited Reviewed Unaudited Financial Results for the three months ended June 30, 2024 along with 

report dated August 14, 2024 of the Statutory Auditor thereon, included in this Letter of Offer.  

 

(xi) Statement of Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 from the Statutory Auditor included in this Letter of Offer. 

 

(xii) Tripartite Agreement dated February 11, 2021between our Company, CDSL and the Registrar to the 

Issue.  

 

(xiii) Tripartite Agreement dated February 11, 2021 between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the 

Issue.  

 

(xiv) In principle listing approval dated August 9, 2024 bearing number LOD/RIGHT/TT/FIP/720/2024-25 

issued by BSE. 
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Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if so 

required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the shareholders 

subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta 

(Executive Director and Chief Executive 

Officer) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024  

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Rajesh Motilal Loya 

(Whole-Time Director and Chief Financial 

Officer) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024 

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 

(Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024  

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 

(Executive Director) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024  

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Maneesh Taparia 

(Independent Director) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024  

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Gautam Chandrakumar Shah 

(Independent Director) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024  

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Dhwani Jaydeep Mehta 

(Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) 

  

   

 

Date:  September 9, 2024  

 

Place: Mumbai  
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DECLARATION 

 

I hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the 

Government of India or the guidelines/ regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have 

been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies 

Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued 

thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTOR OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Amit Vardhman Shah 

(Independent Director) 

  

   

 

Date: September 9, 2024 

 

Place: Mumbai  

  

   

   

 

   

 




